Public Document Pack

To: Members of the County Council

Dear Councillor

° - Cyngor
sir ddinbych 1'1
bl County Council v

Date: 23 May 2019
Direct Dial: 01824706141
e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk

You are invited to attend a meeting of the COUNTY COUNCIL to be held at 10.00 am on
THURSDAY, 30 MAY 2019 in COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, RUTHIN LL15

1YN.

Yours sincerely

G Williams
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services

AGENDA

PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF
THE MEETING

1

APOLOGIES

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business
identified to be considered at this meeting.

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local
Government Act, 1972.

4

IMPLEMENTATION OF AN ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY MODEL (ADM)
FOR VARIOUS LEISURE RELATED ACTIVITIES/FUNCTIONS (Pages 3 -
202)

To consider a report by the Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm
(copy attached) seeking Council’s view in respect of the draft Business Case
for establishing a Local Authority Trading Company, for a range of previously
agreed “in scope” leisure related activities/functions.



5 COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 203 - 206)
To consider the Council’s forward work programme (copy attached).

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors

Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies (Chair)  Councillor Alan James (Vice-Chair)

Mabon ap Gwynfor Barry Mellor
Brian Blakeley Melvyn Mile
Joan Butterfield Bob Murray
Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones Merfyn Parry
Ellie Chard Paul Penlington
Ann Davies Pete Prendergast
Gareth Davies Arwel Roberts
Hugh Evans Anton Sampson
Peter Evans Peter Scott
Bobby Feeley Glenn Swingler
Rachel Flynn Andrew Thomas
Tony Flynn Rhys Thomas
Huw Hilditch-Roberts Tony Thomas
Martyn Holland Julian Thompson-Hill
Hugh Irving Graham Timms
Brian Jones Joe Welch

Huw Jones Cheryl Williams
Pat Jones David Williams
Tina Jones Eryl Williams
Gwyneth Kensler Huw Williams
Geraint Lloyd-Williams Emrys Wynne
Richard Mainon Mark Young

Christine Marston

COPIES TO:

Press and Libraries
Town and Community Councils



Agenda Item 4

Report To: Councill

Date of Meeting: 30th May 2019

Lead Member / Officer: Clir Bobby Feely & CliIr Julian Thompson-Hill

Report Author: Graham Boase

Title:

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for
various leisure related activities/functions

What is the report about?

To consider the draft Business Case and associated information for the implementation
of a Leisure related Council owned, not for profit Local Authority Trading Company
limited by guarantee (LATC).

What is the reason for making this report?

To seek Council’s view in respect of the draft Business Case (Appendix A) for
establishing a Local Authority Trading Company (LATC), for a range of previously
agreed “in scope” leisure related activities/functions. Please note that elements of the
business case have been redacted where there was either a commercial interest or
where individuals could be identified.

What are the Recommendations?
That Council:-
Support the final Business Case for the Project

Support the establishment of a not for profit Local Authority Trading Company limited
by Guarantee, (LATC).

Support the appointment of the Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm to the
Board of the LATC.

Support the retention of the current name ‘Denbighshire Leisure’ for the LATC.

That Council confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of the Well-being
Impact Assessment, (Appendix B, Ref no 564), as part of its consideration.

Report details

The Strategic Case sets out the challenge of the current financial climate, and the
potential for the Council to make savings (initially via NNDR relief and VAT
exemptions), alongside future external trading opportunities. Whilst the consideration
of an ADM of this type is a new initiative for the Council, many other Councils
throughout the UK are already using similar ADM’s to deliver a range of functions.

Page 3



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Throughout the development of this project, Officers have benefitted from the
knowledge and lessons learnt by other Councils, within North Wales. Appendix C
provides details of other alternative delivery model companies established, and some
of the lessons learnt.

An assessment process was undertaken to determine the scope of the project, and
the Project Board used a scoring matrix to inform this process. The in scope facilities
and functions include the 7 x Municipal Leisure Centres, Prestatyn Nova, SC2, Rhyl
Pavilion Theatre, Rhyl Events Arena and events function, North Wales Bowls, Rhyl
Town Hall, Ruthin Craft Centre, Llangollen Pavilion, Operations and Business support
for Leisure, Commercial Catering (1891, SC2, Café R), and Strategic Leisure. Based
on the current staffing lists there are approx. 244 staff members who are within the
scope of the project. In 2018/19 the Council subsidy in respect of the in scope facilities
functions and activities was circa £3m. A detailed breakdown, including analysis of
revenue contributions funding borrowing, is included within Appendix 4E of the
Business Case, which is within Appendix A of this report.

Of the “in scope” functions, Strategic Leisure has generated most discussion. Both
Lead Members have clearly expressed their preference for Strategic Leisure to remain
“in scope”. The Strategic Leisure function is detailed within the Strategic case of the
Business case (Appendix A), at pages 15 & 16, where further details can be found
regarding the ten key areas of activity that it delivers. The inclusion of Strategic Leisure
within the LATC enables the provision of a broad and cohesive Leisure/ community
well- being offer with ease of access for all residents. From an organisational
perspective its inclusion facilitates staffing arrangements, enables knowledge and
expertise to be shared across the service, provides one brand with multiple points of
access to services, and enables staff to direct customers to additional activities in other
locations, which they may enjoy and/or benefit from.

The introduction of change to both those functions “within scope” and the
rearrangement of those functions “out of scope” across the wider Council management
structure is not without issues/risks. These issues/risks will be carefully managed
through the implementation phase of the project. Whilst the benefits of the project are
primarily related to financial savings, emphasis has also been placed on capturing the
wider benefits for the Council, and maintaining the quality of the service provision.

The Commercial Case provides a detailed overview regarding the selection of a
delivery model which would facilitate the identified savings and protect the Council’s
interests. At the start of the process this involved an initial high level appraisal which
considered a range of options; these were subjected to a detailed legal analysis which
suggested that an LATC would be the most appropriate model for the Council.

Within the ‘umbrella term’ of LATC there are a number of variations/different types of
LATC, and the recommendation for the Council is a ‘not for profit' LATC limited by
guarantee, that is wholly owned by the Council. This form of LATC is considered the
most appropriate to enable the savings associated with NNDR and VAT to be realised,
whilst providing a level of control to protect the Council’s interests. It also allows the
LATC freedom to trade elsewhere, and potentially generate a proportion of its income
from sources other than the Council.

Page 4



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

The LATC would be overseen by a Board, the composition of which needs to be
balanced to provide the Council with an adequate level of control, and ensure that the
LATC has the expertise, business acumen and support that it requires to be successful
in a commercial environment. It is considered that the LATC Board comprises 7 voting
members which could include the Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm, the
relevant Lead Member with responsibilities for Leisure, Chair of a Scrutiny Committee,
or the Chair of Corporate Governance, a further DCC Member, the Managing Director
of the LATC and the Finance Director (accountancy post for the LATC), and one
external non- executive Director. It is also proposed that the Council establish its own
Strategic Governance Board to challenge the workings of the LATC Board. This would
be in addition to the Council’s established reporting mechanisms of CET, Cabinet,
Council, Scrutiny, Corporate Governance etc.

To enable an LATC to be established as a legal entity, it needs to have one ‘living’
Director and a name, hence the recommendation that Council approve the
appointment of the Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm, and the name to
facilitate the progression of the project. This provides time for the Council’s
Recruitment Panel to review the other appointments with a view to them making a
recommendation to Council in respect of the LATC Board, and Cabinet in respect of
the Strategic Governance Board.

The Council will contract the LATC to carry out the in scope leisure related services on
its behalf. It is planned that the LATC would be given a 10 year contract to give it some
future surety, with a planning cycle and mechanism whereby the level of Council
subsidy and the outcomes/benefits that the Council wishes to prioritise through the
service delivery, are agreed each year. In this way the LATC can be challenged to find
savings in the same way as other Council departments, to respond to future financial
pressures. Equally should the LATC generate additional net income from trading
outside the Council contract, this will provide an opportunity to reduce the Council
subsidy, or reinvest income in the facilities, or a mixture of both.

The contract between the LATC and the Council will be managed in house, using a
similar form of contract management as that used for the Civica contract. The Heads
of Terms for the contract are included within Appendix D.

The buildings/grounds currently used for the delivery of the in scope Leisure services
will be leased to the LATC on peppercorn rents for a 10 year period and these will be
back to back with the contract. Provision will be made within the leases to protect the
existing SLA’s with schools, and maintain the current access to the building for
elections, emergency requirements etc. Likewise access will be maintained to the
Registrar’s office within Rhyl Town Hall. The leases will specify the maintenance
responsibility of the Council and the LATC, and routine inspection visits will be
included. These arrangements will broadly reflect the existing arrangements between
Leisure Services and Property and Asset Services, including Council decision making
processes around Capital (e.g. Asset Management Group, SIG, Cabinet, Council etc).

The existing ICT infrastructure, service and support will be extended to the LATC.

There may be extra costs associated with licence fees if the LATC is unable to benefit
from the Council’s existing preferential rates.

Page 5



4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

Whilst the implementation of an LATC will enable the Council to make savings on
NNDR and VAT, there are also costs associated with the delivery of the ‘in scope’
leisure activities /functions through a separate legal entity. The economic case
compares the financial costs and benefits of the introduction of an LATC as compared
with the existing, (‘do nothing’) model.

The savings are estimated at £1,107k. The NNDR advice received suggests that there
would be 90% relief on NNDR which equates to a saving of a £623k.

The VAT savings based on the advice received to date will be a minimum of £284Kk,
and further advice is being sought in respect of the potential for VAT savings
associated with a ‘cultural exemption’, and to review the opportunities relative to SC2.
When the company is established it will have to meet its own pay and other cost
inflation, and in 2020/21 this is in the region of £200k. The expectation is that the LATC
will continue to meet these inflationary costs in future years.

The NNDR savings noted within 4.14 are net of the Business Improvement District
(BID) Levy on the ‘in scope’ facilities within Rhyl as they all meet the criteria and will
pay the levy of circa 2% on the rateable value of the premises. Likewise should other
Business Improvement Districts be established, in scope facilities within those areas
will be liable to pay the full BID levy due.

There are a number of known ongoing revenue costs that the LATC and/or the Council
will incur should the LATC be established, and these are estimated at £304k. The
additional costs reflect the need for an accountancy post for the LATC, Directors costs
for insurance cover and remuneration for any independent Directors on the LATC
Board, contract management costs, external audit costs, staffing costs associated with
the allocation of the remaining Facilities Assets and Housing Service to other service
areas, reduction in dual use income due to NNDR relief, potential increase in pension’s
liabilities and software licence costs, and a risk contingency of £150k.

Based on the savings and costs outlined above the net annual saving in year 1 is
estimated at £800k. There will be a one off project cost of circa £200k for the
implementation of the project and this is associated with project management and legal
costs; this cost has been amended to reflect the recent more detailed project planning
work that is being undertaken. The majority of the project work will, where possible,
be completed using in house resources to minimise the cost.

The “in scope” functions currently benefit from the Council’s central support services
in terms of financial management, HR, and legal, among others, and it is intended that
for a period of at least 3 years, the current arrangements will be maintained for the
LATC where possible, which will limit the exposure to additional cost for services, and
aid with a smooth transition. This arrangement will need to be reviewed by the Council
and the LATC after 3 years.

Within the Financial Case the existing level of subsidy for the in scope facilities,
functions and activities based on 2018/19 budgets is stated at circa £3m, and after an
adjustment for the savings noted in 4.13 and any other changes agreed as part of the
2020/21 budget process, this will form the basis of the value of services that the
Council will contract from the LATC. It is absolutely clear that the LATC will be required

Page 6



4.20

421

4.22

4.23

4.24

to contribute to the Council’s budget process each year, in the same way as the
functions “in scope” have done in previous years.

Details regarding the project delivery can be found within the Management Case. The
project work has been divided into 2 distinct phases. Phase 1 is the pre -
implementation stage and will provide an opportunity to follow up on any outstanding
advice, and time to carry out the detailed project plan, which will provide a sense check
of the revenue savings that can be achieved through the implementation of the LATC,
and will provide more surety of the one off project implementation cost. When the
Phase 1 works are satisfactorily completed, the project will seek authorisation to
proceed from Cabinet. During phase 2, the implementation phase, work includes the
establishment of the LATC, preparation of the specification and contract for the
services to be provided by the LATC, the mobilisation of staff and resources, and the
mobilisation of the residual staffing arrangements.

As part of the mobilisation phase, the ‘in scope’ staff will be transferred to the LATC
under TUPE regulations. The LATC will have admitted body status into the Local
Pension Scheme which will mean that there will be no change to the transferring staff’s
pension scheme. As the LATC would be wholly owned by the Council, legally the LATC
and the Council would be seen as part of the same group, and therefore the staff within
each need to have equal terms and conditions; this “status quo” will need to be
maintained for as long as the delivery model remains the LATC.

The transition from the existing service arrangements to an LATC, may require an
interim staffing arrangement to be put in place, to advance any work required on behalf
of the LATC, before any staff are formally transferred. Further to a decision to proceed
with the project, the LATC will be established and some key personnel will initially be
transferred to the LATC to act on behalf of the company, and prepare for the go live
date in April 2020, when the remainder of the staff will formally transfer.

When the Head of FAH Service formally transfers to the LATC, the residual services
and staff from within FAHS will be allocated to the remaining Heads of Service. If the
implementation of the LATC does not go ahead, then the Services will remain
unchanged.

The indicative timescales for the project are as follows:-
e Council’s consideration of the Business Case/other approvals as stated in this
report, May 2019
Cabinet approval at the end of phase 1 June/July 2019
Establishment of the LATC July/August 2019
Commence preparation of specification and contract August 2019
Transfer of key staff and start of mobilisation phase September 2019
Transfer of residual staff September 2019

Formal appointment of remaining LATC Board Members September/October
2019

e Establishment of the Strategic Governance Board November 2019
e LATC commences trading April 2020.

Further project approvals will be required as the project progresses and these are
identified within Appendix E.

Page 7



6.1

7.1

7.2

How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities?

The decision will not impact adversely on the Corporate Priorities, as the LATC will be
contracted by the Council to provide the existing services associated with the in scope
activities/functions.

What will it cost and how will it affect other services?

There is a one off project cost of circa £100k if the implementation of an LATC is
approved. The business case has calculated that a net revenue saving of £800k will
be achieved in year 1.

What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment (WIA)?

The WIA was carried out by a multidisciplinary group of officers representing Leisure,
HR, Finance, Business Support, Support Services, Community Wellbeing, Corporate
Property, Strategic Planning & Performance and Project Management.

Overall the impact of the project was assessed as neutral, reflecting that at this stage
the consideration is about an alternative way of delivering a defined set of
activities/functions, it is not about delivering different or alternative activities/functions.

8 What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?

8.1

8.2

External consultation

e Discussion with legal and VAT experts who are providing expertise to the
project.

e Other local authorities who have established ADMC'’s for their lessons learnt.

e Welsh Audit Office for advice

e ‘Local Partnerships’ an external organisation who have provided guidance in
respect of the process.

e Rhyl Town Council in respect of their interest within SC2.

e Trade Unions in respect of the impacts on staff.

e Arts Council for Wales in respect of grant funding

Internal Consultation

e Cabinet Briefing, Cabinet, Members Budget Workshop where the Project has
been shared informally, and a Member Workshop specifically about the ADM.

e Al MAGs

e Reports to SLT in respect of the Project Brief, and the restructuring of services
required should the project be approved.

o Stalff briefings which included face to face information sharing with all
Managers within FAHS, a written staff briefing to all leisure related staff, and
Middle Managers across the Council, face to face staff briefings with all leisure
staff, and formal consultation with all staff affected by any restructuring of
services.

Chief Finance Officer Statement

Page 8



9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

11.

There is an opportunity to make significant savings by delivering the facilities
highlighted through a different legal structure. As the Council continues to have to
manage growing pressures with reducing resources, the creation of a local authority
controlled company to operate the facilities and services highlighted, provides the
vehicle to generate a level of savings without having to cut services. The report sets
out the estimated savings and costs associated with the decision.

There is an expectation from the Budget Board that a new ADM will continue to
contribute to the Council’s savings agenda and this will have to be reflected in future
business plans. The proposed company model provides a legal structure that allows
for commercial growth to be considered, which if successful, may contribute to the
savings agenda and help to reduce the level of financial support from the council.

What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them?

There are risks associated with the implementation of the LATC and these are included
within the business case. An analysis of the risks is included within Appendix F. The
key risks are:-

e Changes in National Legislation in the future could prevent the anticipated
business rate savings from being fully realised.

e The VAT savings cannot be fully achieved through a non for profit LATC model
and/or charitable status is required for those to be fully realised, which increases
the regulated regime and associated cost.

e There are unforeseen additional one-off or on-going costs with the
establishment of the LATC not have not been taken into account at the
implementation stage.

e The ADM is not as financially successful as hoped and any resultant additional
costs fall back on the Council to fund and/or the Company is unable to make
the adequate reinvestment into its day to day business activities due to lack of
funds.

Power to make the Decision

s2 Local Government Act 2000
s95 Local Government Act 2003

Local Government (Best Value Authorities)(Power to Trade)(Wales) Order 2006

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Project Title: Inplementation of an Alternative Delivery

Model (ADM), for various leisure related
activities/functions

Appendix A

FULL BUSINESS CASE

Version No:- 002
Issue Date:- 17t April 2019

Page 11



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Mode! (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

Contents

1.

2.

21
2.2
23
24
25
2.6
2.7
2.8
3.

3.1
3.2
33
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8
4.

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5

Executive Summary..............

Strategic Case...............
Context/background...................
Scope of the project {core businesses/services) ..........coccioreinininnns
Service User description ..............c.......
Budgetary and staffing information...........ccicinn e
Project Objectives ...................
Other plans policies and strategies impacted ...
Benefits .........ccoeennneeeen,
RiSKS...c.ccoiminrerinenannns

Commercial Case..............c......
Options Appraisal.............c..c.coon.
Project delivery arrangements.......
Legal implications .................
Regulatory regime implications ......
Property iIMPUCALIONS ......cooriviieis s s
IT IMPICAtIONS ..ottt e
Other asset implications.........cc.ccooiinnniinn
MONItoring arrangemMEeNts .........oceciviiimmmsnsisss s
Economic & Financial Case..........covriviiinmmminisnnsn s
Economic case for ChanGe .........cvveeiiiiiiinneesinsniisssse s
Potential Savings .................
Potential extra on-going recurring costs of operating an ADM...............
Likely ‘One-off’ costs of setting up the COMPanY...c..oovecicieeensennsrneeans

Potential net budget savings arising from the establishment of the

LEISUIE ADM .....oooreeeeeieeietiereeeraeseteiesarsar s g b s s e s o b AR S s e b e E s eSS

4.6
4.7
4.8
4.9
4.10

Potential Financial Risks to the Project ...........c...ocoeieea
Additional Risk =SC2 .........ccccooivimviiinnens

Financial Governance & Support Services ...
Financial ServiCes ..........cccimirimimniinennas

Financial Case: Affordability...........ccocoiiniin e

2
Page 12

© ~ ;o b

.16
.21

21

w25
verene 29
e, 27
w27
e 31
vrveres 32
.. 33
.38
.. 40
w42
.. 43
N Y

47

vennn 49

52

83 .
..53
e 04

65

505

59



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

5. Management Case ..ot b s s 60
5.1 Project Plan including transition plan..............cccooiiiiiiii e 60
5.2 Management and Governance of the project...........occoovvveeeiiieecieciceccnans 60
5.3 Governance SIFUCIUIE .........c..ocooiiiiiiiiiiiiieiesie s sie s s e e erseesnaessrenas 64
54 HR employment PrOCESSES ........ccoccveiiceeiceieciinicssieessiassiossassasssssssssssnesrsnses G4
5.5 Resources and workforce development...................oiiiiiii e 66
5.6 Stakeholder management plan ... 67
5.7 Benefits realisation plan ... e e sssse e e seanes 69
Appendices

Appendix 2A Assessment template

Appendix 2B Scoring matrix

Appendix 2C Leisure Centre facilities

Appendix 2D Adult group exercise class programme
Appendix 2E Leisure Centre opening hours
Appendix 2F Rhyl Pavilion Theatre programme
Appendix 2G Rhyl Events Arena programme
Appendix 2H Ruthin Craft Centre

Appendix 2| Llangollen Pavilion programme
Appendix 2J Leisure Performance indicators
Appendix 3A LATC sub —options

Appendix 3B Benchmarking pay for Non-Executive Directors
Appendix 3C Heads of Terms for lease

Appendix 3D Summary of Options Appraisal (RAG status)
Appendix 4A Business Rate assumptions

Appendix 4B VAT advice

Appendix 4C Potential initial VAT savings

Appendix 4D Pay inflation 2019/20

Appendix 4E Budgets 2018/19

Appendix 5A Project Milestones

Appendix 5B Governance Structure

Appendix 5C Analysis of Partners and Stakeholders
Appendix 5D Benefits Realisation Plan

Page 13




implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

1. Executive Summary

The project was initiated to consider the development and implementation of an
alternative delivery model, (ADM), for the management and delivery of a number of
leisure related facilities, functions and activities, in order to benefit from financial
savings associated with changes to legislation in respect of relief on business rates,
(NNDR), and exemptions from value added tax, {VAT), on leisure related income. The
principal aims of the project are to reduce the financial support provided by the Council
as part of the budget savings agenda for 2020/21 and beyond, and to try to protect
service provision as much as possible within a climate of ongoing funding reductions.

Although ADM's have been widely used for the delivery of services by other Council's
across the United Kingdom, this is a new initiative for the Counclil and given the
opportunity for VAT savings on leisure income, the decision was taken to focus on one
service area, Facilities Assets and Housing, (FAH) where the facilities, functions and
activities, (and associated staff), assessed as within the scope of the project, lend
themselves to a more commercial approach to the delivery of Council Services.

The potential savings identified can be achieved if the service is delivered through an
ADM, and some initial research was undertaken in respect of the various models
available, to review which company structure offered the features which would protect
the Council's interests, facilitate the NNDR savings, increase income by exempting
trading income from VAT where possible, and provide the ADMC with the potential for
commercial growth, beyond the services to be delivered on behalf of the Council.

Further to an assessment of the delivery models available, and the variations within
each, it was concluded that a non- profit distributing Local Authority Trading Company
limited by guarantee, (LATC), would enable the Council to achieve the savings on
NNDR and VAT. TECKAL trading rules would apply, whereby up to 20% of the LATC's
net income could come from sources other than the Council, which would allow the
LATC to look at other options for commercial growth, to contribute to the Council's
savings agenda.

The newly formed LATC will be run by a Board of Directors, and it is envisaged that
there will be seven Directors on the Board, and the membership will consist of a
Corporate Director, and a mix of Members and independent Directors to provide the
expertise to support the LATC. The ‘in scope’ leisure assets would be leased to the
LATC on peppercorn rents, which will be back to back with the contract, through which
the Council will commission the services to be delivered on its behalf. To ease the
implementation and reduce complexity and disruption the LATC will buy back services
from the Council for a period of time in respect of the support that Leisure Services
currently receives, such as finance, HR, ICT and legal advice.

Page 14



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

As a result of the establishment of the LATC, there will need to be some restructuring
of the remaining Council services. It is planned that the Head of Service for FAH and
some of its central 'operations and business support’ staff will be transferred to the
LATC under TUPE rules, as will all of the staff that work for the in scope facilities
functions and activities. Those services remaining with the Council will be redistributed
and absorbed across other Council service areas.

The Council subsidy for the in scope facilities, functions and activities in 2018/19 was
£3.03m. An analysis of the potential savings from NNDR, VAT on leisure income, and
the proposal that the LATC funds staff pay rises and other cost inflation in year 1 of its
operation, offers a saving of £1.107k. There are a number of known extra costs
associated that the LATC and/or the Council will incur if the LATC is established, and
these amount to £304k, hence it is anticipated that a net saving of circa £803k will be
achieved.

If the business case for the project is approved by Council, there will be phase 1 works
to firm up the net saving projection and to ensure that the Financial Plan for the LATC
is viable, before the investment decision is made. If approved it is planned that the
LATC will be established and trading from April 2020.

2. Strategic Case

2.1 Context/background

Over the last ten years there has been significant investment in Leisure Services,
which has seen it develop from an underperforming service with inadeguate facilities,
programmes, and business planning,(Welsh Audit Office 2008), to a high performing
service which is well regarded both within Denbighshire County Council {DCC), and
nationally across the wider leisure industry.

As part of the transformation, there has been significant investment in the Leisure
Centres to modernise facilities for school and community use, and changes to the
management approach and the centralisation of this function have enabled it to
become more commercial and customer focused, which has resulted in increased
participation.

The existing Head of Service for Facilities, Assets and Housing, (FAH), has a
background in leisure services within DCC, and was initially appointed to the role of
Head of Leisure Services in 2009. Over the years there have been various changes
to the Leisure services portfolio before it was incorporated within FAH from April 2016.
The service now has a fairly broad portfolio which has extended beyond the municipal
Leisure Centres, to include other leisure/arts/hospitality facilities, functions and
activities.

Page 15



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

in the current financial climate of significant real terms funding reductions to local
authorities in Wales, the ability to maintain the delivery of a high quality Leisure
Services is more challenging than ever for the Council.

The current Medium Term Financial Pian shows a savings requirement of over £7m in
2020 and a further £4.5m the following year. Over the last six years Leisure, as a non-
discretionary service, has contributed to the £35mof savings that the Council has
already had to make, and whilst the service will continue to explore the potential for
further efficiencies within the operation of the service, these will be insufficient to
address the extent of the savings that will be required in future years, without making
cuts to the current service provision, or exploring more cost effective models that
fundamentally change the way in which the services are operated in the future.

Other Local Authorities have utilised Alternative Delivery Models, (ADM's) to respond
to the financial challenges, and in 2015 a detailed review of the different delivery
approaches was carried out in respect of DCC's Leisure Services, initially with a view
to extending the commercial approach already adopted for operation of the service.
Upon completion of the review, an independent and external analysis of the findings
concluded that the Leisure offer within DCC was already strong, and there were
insufficient benefits associated with an ADM, to warrant further investigation at that
point in time.

However since 2015 the financial landscape has changed considerably due to a
sustained period of public sector austerity, which inevitably means that coungil
services will come under increasing pressure to deliver quality services within a
climate of ongoing funding reductions. Whilst the recent HM Revenues and Customs
‘Ealing Ruling’ has benefited local authorities in the way in which Value Added Tax
(VAT) is treated on certain leisure income streams, unfortunately this exemption is
unlikely to be of any financia! benefit to Denbighshire due to its extensive level of
capital spend over recent years and the resulting damage this might do to the
Authority's 5% partial exemption limit. Therefore the potential to make VAT savings
as well as significant savings in respect of Business Rates (NNDR) can only presently
be achieved through setting up a more tax-efficient, non-profit distributing company
type structure.

Given the increased pressure to achieve budgetary savings for the Council, and the
opportunity to make significant savings in respect of VAT and NNDR, in the autumn of
2017, the potential benefits associated with an ADM re-emerged as part of the budget
planning discussions for future years.

In 2018 the ADM project was commissioned by the ‘Reshaping the Council
Programme Board, (Budget Board), to explore the potential of an ADM in respect of
the operation of DCC's Leisure provision and any other “associated” functions and
activities within the FAH service. If an ADM is proved to be a viable option for the
delivery of services, it would need to deliver savings for the Council from 2020/21.

6
Page 16



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model {ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

A Project Team and a Project Board was established for the project, and work
commenced to explore the ADM options that would:-

¢ Protect the Council’s interests,

¢ Facilitate the business rates {(NNDR) savings

* Increase income by exempting trading income from VAT

« Enable an Alternative Delivery Model Company (ADMC), to generate income
from other commercial opportunities, with a view to making it more sustainable

2.2 Scope of the project (core businesses/services)

When considering the scope of the project the principle was to carry out a focused
piece of work within one Service area that could deliver an alternative way of delivering
certain functions that lend themselves to a more “commercial” approach for the benefit
of the Council and its communities.

The scope, in terms of the overall amount paid by the Council to an ADMC for the
delivery of services on its behalf, is an important factor for an ADMC, as the TECKAL
trading rules that would need to apply, require 80% of the ADMC's turnover to be in
the provision of services on behalf of the Council, and 20% for other trading. Thus the
higher the cost of the services procured by the Council from the ADMC, the more
headroom there would be for other external trading opportunities.

Whilst the Project Board were mindful of the TECKAL requirement, the overriding
consideration was that it was better to restrict the scope of functions and activities for
inclusion, to those that were part of the “core” leisure/events offer, which should
include the catering /hospitality functions. It was considered that this was a sufficient
challenge initially for an ADMC, and the focus at this stage should be on the
establishment of the model and getting it to function well.

In the future if the ADMC is a success for the Council, the preferred trading model will
enable opportunities to add further functions/activities, as and when it is considered
that the ADMC has the capagity to take on more and there is a supporting business
case.

To determine the scope of the project, an assessment template was designed to
capture and collate information pertaining to each facility, function/ activity to be
considered for inclusion. Each assessment concluded with an analysis of the pros and
cons associated with its inclusion within an ADM. The assessment template used is
included within Appendix 2A.

The assessment templates in the main, were completed by staff from within the
business support function for commercial leisure, with input from HR, and finance
officers. When completed the assessments were shared with the ADM Project team,
to be checked for accuracy and to enable comments to be shared.

Page 17



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model {ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

The ADM Project Board reviewed the assessments and any comments made by the
Project team, and determined which had merit for inclusion and which would be better
remaining with the Council. A scoring matrix was applied, and this is included within
Appendix 2B.

For the majority of the facilities functions and activities assessed it was fairly clear that
they should either be transferred to the ADMC, or remain with the Council, but
Strategic Leisure was a notable exception as there is merit to transferring it to an
ADMC, but equally with it remaining as a Council function. Strategic Leisure was
included within scope in the Project Brief that was approved by Cabinet in January
2019.

Further to the approval of the Project Brief, there have been further meetings and
discussion regarding Strategic Leisure, and although it is included within this business
case, it is probable that the Project Board will recommend to Cabinet that this function
remains with the Council in the immediate future.

The option to ‘remove’ items from within scope was highlighted at Cabinet in January,
as until the details are worked through as part of this business case and key
stakeholders such as of grant funding bodies are fully committed to the ADMC, the
Project Board wish to retain the option to recommend changes to the scope, where
they consider that there is merit in the light of new information, or developments that
materialise during the implementation stage that mean the Council will be
disadvantaged by the inclusion. An example could be that of a grant funding body that
is unable to offer grant funding for services that are to be delivered by an ADMC on
behaif of the Council.

When defining the scope of the project, some 24 facilities functions and activities were
considered for inclusion, of which 18 were assessed as in scope, and 6 out of scope.
They are as shown overleaf:

Page 18



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

In Scope

Llangollen Leisure Centre
Corwen Leisure Centre
Ruthin Leisure Centre
Denbigh Leisure Centre
St Asaph Leisure Centre
Rhyl Leisure Centre
Prestatyn Leisure Centre
Prestatyn Nova

10. Rhy! Pavilion Theatre
11.Rhyl Events Arena & events function
12.North Wales Bowls

S ke U R R e

SC2

13.Rhy! Town Hall
14.Ruthin Craft Centre
15. Llangollen Pavilion

16. Operations and Business Support for commercial Leisure
17.Commercial Catering (1891, SC2, Café R)
18. Strategic Leisure

Qut of Scope

—-—

2. Coastal Leisure (Bowling Greens on East Parade, skate park, the ‘Taste

R ol

Harbour & Maritime {Harbour, Marine Lake and associated facilities)

Academy' building and the Prestatyn weather station adjacent to the Nova
Leisure Development Framework

Building Cleaning & public conveniences

Integrated Childcare Centre (Oaktree Centre)

Family Information Service

2.3 Service User description

2.3.1 Municipal Leisure Centres & Prestatyn Nova

The following user groups have been defined in respect of the above facilities:-

Leisure Card holders — Residents and non- residents who purchase a Leisure
card. Discounts are given on a range of activities/facilities provided by
Denbighshire Leisure. Leisure Cards are renewed every 12 months.

General Public- residents/non-residents who access services at the above
facilities either regularly or occasionally, but pay for the services as they are
booked or used.

Sports Clubs/organised groups/individuals who hire the facilities for their own
use

Residents participating in the National Exercise Referral Scheme-
Denbighshire residents who have been prescribed an exercise intervention by
a Health care professional.

9
Page 19



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

» Secondary schools co-located on the same sites as Leisure Centres, who have
Service Level Agreements (SLA) with the Leisure Centres for the delivery of
their statutory PE and sport provision; typically this includes full access during
the school day to the sports hall, gymnasium, pitches, (grass and all weather),
some changing facilities, and limited access to other facilities by arrangement.

» Schools without SLA agreements which are predominantly primary schools
using the centres for swimming.

» Tenants who sub- let spaces within Leisure Centres either on an annual basis,
or via a formal lease arrangement.

The Leisure Centres and the Nova each have a range of facilities within, (in addition
to the essentials such as changing rooms/toilets, reception areas, associated offices
accommodation), that provide an offer to residents and non-residents countywide.
Appendix 2C provides details of the facllities available at each location, Appendix 2D
includes the Adult Group Exercise Classes programme offered across the sites, and
Appendix 2E the opening hours of the facilities, and the timetable for access to the
swimming pools at each location.

10
Page 20



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model {ADM) for various leisure related

activities/functions

The table below shows the activities available to service users at each location:-

Activities Offered

Prestatyn

Nova

Cardio and Resistance
training

National Exercise referral
scheme (NERS)

< “~ Corwen

“ o Prestatyn

Badminton

Table Tennis

“~ < o Llangollen

Netball

~ |1 o <y StAsaph

Gymnastics

Dance

Basketball

Martial Arts

LlllL]lLlL] (2]

Exercise classes

< J2 |

Soft Play

L PN P B

Parties

Football

<L

Hockey

Rugby

RN P P P P P PN PN

L2 e |2

Public swimming

Schools swimming

Learn to swim programme
Water based classes

< 2 L2 L

Squash

Sportzone

|2l L L L

<] PN P PLN P PN PN PN PN N Ll |2 |2 ) < éRUthln

Spinning

HHHE A9 (LY [H444 4 < Denbigh

Climbing

Children's Play Structure

Other Service offered

Meeting room hire

Public access Café/dining
facilities

<] <Li2a! |2

Function space hire

23.2 SC2

This new facility which is predominantly a leisure attraction, opens to the public from
April 2019 and offers the foliowing facilities:-

» Indoor Water Park which includes a pool and various slides
» Outdoor splash pool which includes a shallow pool, slide, water jets and a water

wall

Page 21



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

e TAG active, which is an interactive indoor adventure play arena which is split
into TAG active and TAG junior zones. Tag active is suitable for children aged
5+

e Café and food cutlets

The service users are:-

« Leisure Card holders — Residents and non- residents who purchase a Leisure
card. Discounts are given on a range of activities/facilities provided by
Denbighshire Leisure. Leisure Cards are renewed every 12 months.

o Members of the public

2.3.3 Rhyl Pavilion

Rhyl Pavilion is categorised as a receiving theatre, whereby ‘acts’ come into the
theatre, as it has no production areas. The facility includes a box office, a seated
theatre with 1031 seats, a large stage, an orchestra pit, artiste's facilities, and the
technical capability in terms of the equipment and associated team to run large scale
productions. The adjoining 1891 restaurant provides for 120 covers with bar facilities
for those both visiting and using the theatre. In addition the restaurant can be hired
for functions, and there are meeting rooms which can also be hired.

The service users include:-

« Members of the Public. This is viewed as a visitor attraction but equally offers

ease of access to the arts for residents

Schools/dance clubs who hire the use the performance space

Corporate use for functions/events

Visiting production companies

Friends of Rhyl Pavilion (who raise funds to pay for items such as advertising,

sell merchandise on behalf of the theatre, and volunteer for front of house duties)

e DCC and schools. (The technical team currenily provide a comprehensive
service to either schools or relevant DCC officers, which can range from advice,
or extend to include the design, procurement, installation, commissioning and
maintenance of technical equipment within schools and facilities. This includes
the annual technical set up at Llangollen Pavilion in readiness for the
International Eisteddfod.

Appendix 2F shows the current programme of events for Rhyl Pavilion.
Rhyl Events arena & events planning function

Rhyl Events Arena is located on the promenade, and is an outdoor venue comprising
of a large block paved area that can accommodate between 6,000 and 10,000
customers. The arena has a large uncovered stage with associated storage and
technical facilities, and is supported by changing facilities, toilets and a kitchen for
visiting artistes.

12
Page 22



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model {ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

The events programming and technical function for this facility is provided by staff from
Rhyl Pavilion Theatre. There is a regular summer events programme, for events
planned in house or in collaboration with Rhyl Town Council, and events planned by
others which take place at the venue.

Service users include:-

» Members of the Public. This is viewed as a visitor attraction but equally offers
ease of access to the arts for local residents

* Others who hire the venue

» Visiting artistes and production support staff

Appendix 2G shows a programme of events for Rhyl Events arena.

2.3.4 North Wales Bowls Centre

North Wales Bowls Centre is located in Prestatyn. The facilities include an 8 rink
international standard flat green indoor bowling complex, which includes an 80 seat
bar/restaurant area for dining and functions and a meeting room which can be hired.

The Service users are;-

* Members of the Public (individuals and groups) for dining experience /bowls or
facility hire
* North Wales Bowls Club members

The facility offers access to league and social bowling events for Members of North
Wales Bowls Club, who also enjoy concessionary rates. Coaching is available for
beginners and bowling equipment can also be hired at the venue.

2.3.5 Rhyl Town Hall
The Town Hall is a two storey Grade |l listed building centrally located in Rhyl.

The ground floor accommodates DCC's Registrar’s office; this has separate access
and consists of office accommodation and a ceremonial suite. The remainder of the
ground floor is accessed from a separate main entrance lobby and consists of a
meeting room which is available for hire, a staff room/cash collection office for DCC's
Parking Services, and an accessible toilet. There is also a ift to provide access to the
first floor.

The first floor consists of a large hall with a performance stage which seats up to 250
people with seating for a further 98 on the balcony area, technical facilities, a bar and
associated toilet facilities. This space has previously been hired out for parties, and by
Music Clubs for performances, and occasionally for some acts.

At present the facility is managed by FAH, but used by several DCC service areas.
Should an ADMC be established, the current status quo will be maintained and an

13
Page 23



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

arrangement put in place between the ADMC and the Council in respect of the
continuation of the current building use and management regime.

The service users include:-

» Members of the Public.
» Organisations/clubs who may hire the facilities
« Visiting artistes and production support staff

2.3.6 Ruthin Craft Centre

The Craft Centre was rebuilt in 2008, and is a purpose built ground level facility around
a courtyard, that consists of 3 exhibition galleries, a retail gallery (shop), 6 artists’
studios, education space and project space workshops, a tourist information point, a
café (and kitchen), which seats 60 and has a courtyard terrace, public conveniences
and a large car park which is free of charge.

The facilities are open every day from 10am to 5.30pm with the exception of Christmas
Day, Boxing Day and New Year's Day, and admission is free.

The craft centre attracts customers to its exhibitions, the retail gallery and the cafe,
and offers opportunities to participate in its various workshops.

Appendix 2H provides further comprehensive information about the work and
operation of the craft centre.

The service users are:-

Members of the public accessing the facilities and courses offered.

School Groups

Higher Education student groups

Studio artists (utilise a unit on site)

Retail artists (exhibit and sell work through the shop)

Exhibition Artists

Artists in residence (undertake projects on site, which are usually funded by the
Arts Council}

2.3.7 Llangoilen Pavilion

The Pavilion consists of an indoor hall with seating of up to 400 (Theatre style) or 250
(Cabaret style), a covered stage and arena for Trade Fairs, Concerts and Events
which holds between 2,500 and 3,950 people, staging and technical facilities, a range
of well-equipped meeting/conference rooms suitable for 4 — 80 in capacity, a
commercial kitchen and café facilities, fully ficenced bar, office space for DCC and
third parties, as identified within the service users. In addition there is a 4000 meters
square flexible open space with 3 large storage and toilet blocks, and car parking for
160 cars.

14
Page 24



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

Appendix 2| shows the programme of events held at Llangollen Pavilion during
2017/18. The service users include:-

* Members of the Public

* Other organisations who hire facilities for functions or events

* LIME* (Llangollen International Music Eisteddfod) staff who use office space
from which they organise the annual intemational eisteddfod at the site.

¢ New Dance who lease office space

¢ Visiting artistes

» Visiting production companies

(*LIME own Llangollen Pavilion and lease it to DCC. Within the terms of the lease DCC
has liability for maintenance and the set up costs in preparation for the International
Eisteddfod, when the site reverts back to LIME for a four week period.)

2.3.8 Operations and Business Support

This is a central support function that provides the leadership and strategy to direct
the operation of departments within FAH, which includes those facilities functions and
activities that are included within the scope of the project. This central resource
undertakes the marketing activities and provides the performance management
function, with intelligence led interventions applied to the Service by the function.

The service users are:-

 The staff within the facilities functions and activities that are managed from this
central function

¢ Other service areas (internal customers) who have an interface with this
department.

2.3.9 Commercial Catering (1891, SC2, Café R)

For the purpose of scoping the project these hospitality venues were reviewed
together, as some of the staff and resources are shared across the three sites.
The narrative for each outlet is included within that of its ‘parent’ site which are
Rhyl Pavilion Theatre, SC2 and Ruthin Craft Centre respectively.

2.3.10 Strategic Leisure

Strategic Leisure provides a range of services targeted at different user groups with
the aim of contributing to the wellbeing of DCC residents. The service delivery is
managed by DCC’s Health and Wellbeing Manager. One of the strengths of Strategic
Leisure is its ability to target and engage with hard to reach groups, at venues within
their communities; which includes facilities which are ‘out of scope’ for this project.

15
Page 25



implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

Community Arts -Provides opportunities for people to participate in arts,
regardless of experience, age and background. This includes community
partnerships and contributes to health related wellbeing benefits for particular
groups, e.g. not in education, mental healith, dementia, stroke recovery, children
and young people at risk.

Volunteering —includes volunteering campaigns, recruitment evenis,
processioning training and induction, to support programmes across youth
services and strategic leisure. The age range for Volunteers is 7 + and is not
restricted to Denbighshire residents.

As part of the Youth Service offer, the delivery of the Duke of Edinburgh Award,
(D of E), is coordinated and managed in conjunction with the D of E Wales
Development Officer. The programme is delivered to 14-25 year olds across the
county.

Active Young People Programme (also known as 5x60) — Secondary school
based community focussed extra curricula activity, including offsite trips, which
aims to provide a programme of activity that encourages young people to
engage in physical activity 5 times per week. The programme is aimed at pupils
aged 11-18 yrs.

Dragon Sport — Primary school based exira curricula activity, enabling primary
schools to delivery physical activity. Participation is aimed at pupils aged 7-11
yrs.

Young Ambassadors- Primary and Secondary school based extra curricula
activity, that recruits and trains children and young people to support delivery of
Active Young People and Dragon Sport programmes. Participation is aimed at
pupils aged 7-18 yrs.

Sport Leaders Accreditation — Primary, secondary and community based activity
that trains children, young people and adults in Sport Leadership, Play Makers
and sport specific activity (e.g. dance leaders). This programme is aimed at
young people between the ages of 10 and 25.

Disability Sport — Supporting community sport clubs to offer inclusive activity
through training, coaching, working through the ‘in sport’ programme. This
includes a health programme referral process to enable those with disabilities to
access sport opportunities. This is for children, young people and adults who
have disabilities, and for clubs who are on the journey to be more inciusive.
Community Chest Grants — Providing support to any constituted clubs to assist
them with funding applications; this includes the administration of Community
Chest funding, which offers grants of up to £1500

Bike ability — This is offered to every primary school in DCC, in respect of the
delivery of the national standard to train children in cycling proficiency. The
programmie is for pupils who are 10/11 years oid.

2.4 Budgetary and staffing information

2.4.1 Budgetary information

The table below shows the budgetary information for the ‘in scope’ facilities,
functions/activities.

16
Page 26



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related

activities/functions

18/19 18/19 18/19 Potential _
- Expenditure | Income Council NNDR Potential
In scope' Facilities, Budget Budget Subsidy savings | VAT
| functions & activities (90%) savings |
Llangollen Leisure
Centre £230,773 | -£179,332 £51,441| £10,184
Corwen Leisure Centre £375,183 | -£237381| £137,802| £14,572
Ruthin Leisure Centre £673,052 | -£483169| £179,883| £15,524
Denbigh Leisure Centre £701,131 -£656,850 £44 281 | £57,362
St Asaph Leisure
Centre £237,623 | -£252440 -£14,817 ] £13,104
Rhy! Leisure Centre £1,068,154 | -£1,017,876 £50,278 | £39,790
Prestatyn Leisure
| Centre £212,901 | -£160,128 £52,773 | £16,171
Prestatyn Nova £1,269,869 | -£870,300| £389,569| £60,138
| SC2 £135,138 £0| £135,138 | £216,000
Rhyl Pavilion Theatre £1,759,271 | -£1,106,689 | £652,582 | £34,695
Rhyl Events Arena, &
events function £173,856 -£64,490 | £109,366 £0
North Wales Bowls
Centre £288,437 | -£223650 £64,787 | £15497
Rhyl Town Hall £155,832 -£63,675 £92,157| £25212
Ruthin Craft Centre £735106 | -£659,588 £75518| £18,134
Llangolien Royal
International Pavilion £289,881 | -£126,050( £163,831| £80,492
Management,
Operations & Business
Support £772,803 -£91,295 | £681,508 £0
Commercial Catering -
1891 £554,954 | -£568,031 -£13,077 £0
Commercial Catering -
SC2 £0 £0 £0 £0
Commercial Catering -
Café R £238.783 | -£225419 £13,364 £5,899
*National Exercise
Referral Scheme
(NERS) £190,399 | -£159,074 £31.325 N/A
Strategic Leisure £497,597 | -£365,538| £132,059 £0
TOTAL £10,550,743 | -£7,520,975 | £3,029,768 | £622,775 | £284,008

*NERS is itemised separately for budgetary purposes, but is delivered at the majority
of Leisure Centres and the Nova as detailed within Section 2.3.1.

17

Page 27



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

The above table shows the current level of revenue subsidy (column highlighted in
yellow) given by the Council to operate the facilities/activities currently considered to
be ‘in scope’. As can be seen, this totals just over £3m per year, but the figure excludes
any County Landlord revenue and/or capital spend that is incurred in maintaining or
enhancing the actual buildings/assets.

The table also shows the NNDR and VAT savings that can potentially be made by
moving to a more tax-efficient delivery model. Whilst the NNDR savings can be
estimated against each activity the VAT issues are far more complex, so an
approximate global figure has been provided. A quick analysis of the figures shows
that potential savings of circa £820k {NNDR of £620k and VAT of £200k) can be made,
but of course the ADM would be expected to deliver savings on top of those from
NNDR and VAT, in the same way as they would if the activities remained within the
Council.

2.4.2 Staffing Information

The scoping templates provided a structure to establish which facilities functions and
activities should be within scope, and from a Human Resources, (HR), perspective the
FAH staff members who are employed to work at or within each fagility function/activity
are equally considered to be within scope.

There are some FAH staff members who as part of their existing role, currently carry
out work for both in scope facilities functions/activities, and also for those remaining
with the Council. In the main these were staff who were centrally located. To determine
whether these staff members were in scope, HR carried out an assessment process
which consisted of interviewing each member of staff to understand what work they
did. During the interview, they looked at the current job description and captured
what, if any, duties relating to Commercial Leisure they undertake. Based on this,
HR calculated what percentage of their duties related to Commercial Leisure. If 75%
or more of their role was related to Commercial Leisure then staff were deemed to be
in scope of the transfer. Staff have signed and dated the Interview form to confirm the
accuracy of the information.

Detailed staff lists have been created and included within the HR iTrent system, which
includes all of the in scope staff members, the role/s that they undertake and the grade;
this information is displayed either their place of work or the function/activity for which
they work. Within the sector there is a large call for support staff and casual staff to
provide cover at peak periods, and the support and casual staff are also included within
the staff lists. The staff lists will be updated each month to reflect any changes to
staffing.

At present there are 244 members of contracted staff (including seasonal staff}
currently within the scope of the project, who between them fulfil the staff roles
identified in the table below. These figures are indicative as at the date of the business
case and will need to be reviewed throughout the implementation, with a finalised list

18
Page 28



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related

activities/functions

to be agreed immediately before the transfer date. There are also a number of relief
staff who work as and when required for the facilities. The staff roles vary and are
dependent on the nature of the business. An indication of the roles undertaken at each
facility or by each function/activity is provided in the table below:-

Facility/Function/activity No of Staff roles
staff roles
1. Llangollen Leisure 5 The following staff roles are present at
Centre some or all of these leisure facilities:-
2. Corwen Leisure Centre | 10 Leisure Officer, Assistant Leisure
: Officer, Duty Officer, Admin Officer,
3. Ruthin Leisure Centre | 17 Leisure Centre supervisor, Leisure
4. Denbigh leisure Centre | 12 Attendant General, Leisure Attendant
' Fitness, Leisure Attendant Play, Activity
5. St Asaph Leisure Centre | 3 Instructor, Swimming Instructor,
Swimming Teacher, Trainee Assessor,
6. Rhyl leisure Centre 34 GP referral professional, Instructor
Climbing,
7. Prestatyn Leisure Centre | 3
8. Prestatyn Nova 31
9. SC2 38 |_eisure Attendant-Lifeguards, Leisure
Attendant-TAG, Duty Officer, Assistant
Leisure Officer, TAG Supervisor,
Receptionist, Maintenance Engineer,
Cleaner
10. Rhyl Pavilion Theatre 19 Commercial Manager- Coastal
Attractions, Leisure Officer, Marketing
Officer, Events Officer, Admin Support,
Box Office supervisor, Box Office
assistant,FOH Supervisor, Technical
Manager, Stage Manager, Chief
Electrician, Deputy Electrician,
Technical assistant
11.Rhyi Events Arena & 0 Staff at Rhyl Pavilion cover this facility
events function
12. North Wales Bowls 3 Food & Beverage Operations Manager,
Duty Officer, Assistant Cook, Leisure
Attendant, Bar staff
13.Rhyl Town Hall 3 Community Buildings Duty Officer,

Assistant site supervisor, Leisure
attendant, Assistant Cook, Assistant
caretaker, Cleaner, Bar Assistants

19
Page 29



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related

activities/functions

14, Ruthin Craft Centre

8

Director and Deputy Director of the
Centre, Education officer, Senior
Gallery Sales/Admin assistant, Admin
officer

15. Llangollen Pavilion

Technical Officer, Technical assistant,
Caretaker, Assistant caretaker, Catering
assistant, Bar assistant, Leisure bar
assistant, Leisure attendant

15.Operations and
Business Support
for commercial leisure

13

Head of Service; Lead Officer
Operations and Business Support; Lead
Officer; Lead Officer Assets and
Communities; Marketing Manager
Attractions, Brand and Digital
Communities; Marketing Manager-
senior digital officer & graphic designer;
Assistant Leisure Officer- Membership
& sales; Leisure Training Officer; Admin
Officer; Senior Support officer; Admin
officers front of house

17.Commercial Catering
(1891, SC2, Café R) Not
included SC2 as don't
have data

26

Head Chefs, 2™ Chef, Sous Chef,
Assistant chef, Catering Assistant,
Kitchen Porter, Restaurant supervisors,
Bar & waiting on staff

18. Strategic Leisure

13

Health & Wellbeing Manager, Active
Young people Officers, Dragon Sports
Coordinator, Disability Sport Officer,
Community Sports Activator, Bike ability
Coordinators, Community Arts
Development , Community Arts Project
Coordinator, Admin officer

20

Page 30




implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model ({ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

2.5 Project Objectives

Objective

Delivery Date

1.

To explore, develop and if viable create an alternative

318t December

delivery model company (ADMC) to deliver the in scope 2019
leisure related facilities functions/activities with effect from
15t April 2020

2. To provide a rationale in respect of the selection of the 318t March
preferred alternative delivery model, in terms of the 2019
benefits to be gained and any drawbacks or restrictions for
the Council.

3. To confirm the facilities functions/activities that are to be 31¢t October
operated by an ADMC, and the in scope staff. 2019

4. To achieve the initial cost saving associated with the 18t April 2020
implementation of an ADMC.

5. To incorporate a contract management and planning cycle | 315 December
within the design of the ADM project, that enables the 2019
Council to have an ongoing influence regarding the level of
subsidy to be provided, and the associated outputs and
outcomes required.

6. To complete the necessary transitional processes to 31st March
enable the ADMC to commence trading from 1% April 2020

2020

2.6 Other plans policies and strategies impacted

2.6.1 Facilities Assets and Housing Service Business Plan

The performance management information for FAH is currently collated by the
Business Support function within the service, however some of the senior
officers from this department will be within the scope of the ADM project. As the
FAH service will cease to exist, the remaining services will need to embed their
evaluation within that of their new service area, utilising the remaining resource
who have this expertise

There needs to be identification of the various WG returns and assessments
that are currently prepared by FAH and provision made either within the ADMC
or the remaining services for the continuation of this requirement.

Where it has been identified that officers have a dual role, and carry out duties
for Leisure and other departments within FAH, there needs to be clarity in
respect of the duties that need to be covered should they move to an ADMC or
remain with the Council, and where SLA's need to be established to buy back
services.

21
Page 31



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

2.6.2 Facilities Assets and Housing Service Risk Register

« The risk management associated with the in scope facilities functions and
activities will transfer to the ADMC, or the service area which is assuming
responsibility for any FAH services which are out of scope of the ADMC. Some
analysis of the risks will need to be undertaken as some current Leisure risks
may need to remain with the Council. Equally the ability of the ADMC to manage
risk will need to be incorporated within the contract management undertaken
by DCC.

2.6.3 Corporate Plan

» Housing

« Strategic Leisure work collaboratively with Housing to deliver a
Community programme; this will need to be maintained if the benefits
are to continue to be maximised. If Strategic Leisure remains within
scope of an ADMC, then the warking relationship will need to be
prescribed in the specification.

o FAH staff are involved in the Council House Developments, but the only
change anticipated as a result of the project is to line management
reporting.

¢ Connected communities

« ‘Events Project- Project Executive is the Head of FAH and significant
input is required from the Leisure officers for facilites and
technical/events officers from Rhyl Pavilion. The project will be delivered
over the next two financial years (2019/20 and 2020/21). It is intended
that a Mobile equipment inventory is established 31/03/2020, and that
the technical officers at the Pavilion will manage the inventory of
equipment and the loans.

¢ Project to ‘Make superfast broadband and mobile networks available to
everyone', which may include possible work streams whereby DCC's
assets are used to boost broad band. The project is looking at
supporting community schemes to improve broadband in housing in
Denbighshire, which will have some involvement with officers from FAH.

» Projects to address digital skills and get information on line. These have
yet to start but will include supporting people who lack the
skills/confidence/equipment to get online, and about increasing the
range and capability of DCC services with an online option. This
potentially will include front line staff, potentially including Leisure staff
to support on line access to their services.

¢ Resilient communities

« ‘People are involved in shaping and improving services' project, which is
ongoing and due to complete in March 2022, which includes Leisure
Services

« ‘Act to reduce domestic abuse’ project is ongoing and ends in March
2023, requires all staff to have awareness and follow the reporting
guidelines

22
Page 32



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

» The Supporting Carers project in Denbighshire which is due for
completion in March 2022, is supported on the Project Board by the
Community Wellbeing Manager from Strategic Leisure.

* Work has progressed on a project brief for ‘Dementia Friendly
Denbighshire’ and the expectation is that all front line staff, (including
leisure), will be involved.

* There are other projects in the pipeline for which funding has yet to be
identified, which are likely to include community development officers
from Strategic Leisure.

* Young people-

» the service level agreements with secondary schools need to be
maintained at an affordable cost to ensure that pupils have access to PE
and Sports facilities during the school day, both to deliver the statutory
school provision of PE and sport, and the extra -curricular ‘active young
people programme’, which is coordinated by Strategic Leisure.

» Access to swimming needs to be maintained for Primary schools

¢ A’supporting parents’ projectis pending, and will involve the Community
Wellbeing Manager from Strategic Leisure

e Environment
» As part of the Emergency planning arrangements, the Leisure Centres
are currently used as refuges

2.6.4 Corporate Risk Register

* Detail will need to be included within the specification and contract
documentation in respect of the management of the corporate risks that are
applicable to the facilities, functions and activities within the ADMC.

e DCC will also need to protect its duty to residents under the Social Services
and Wellbeing Act 2014 and the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act by
ensuring via the contract that an ADMC is fully compliant with this requirement.

2.6.5 Leisure Strategy 2012-2020

The desired outcomes of the existing Leisure Strategy will be relevant should the
services be provided through an ADMC, they are:-

 Organisations involved in delivering leisure opportunities work in partnership to
make best use of the resources to design deliver and promote leisure

* People in Denbighshire have access to a choice of high quality settings in
which to enjoy their leisure activities

» The Skills, resources and availability of all community organisers, leaders,
coaches and volunteers involved in providing leisure across all sectors is
improved

« Participation in Leisure opportunities among our key target groups is increased

The current Leisure Strategy expires in 2020, and work has commenced on the new
Leisure Strategy. There will be Council and ADMC representation on the development

23
Page 33



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

of the new strategy to ensure that it meets the requirements of both parties, and the
Leisure Strategy planning cycle needs to be realigned with the planning cycle for the
Corporate Plan, to reflect the needs of Denbighshire residents.

2.6.6 Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP)

The MTFP is a 3 year strategy that is revisited and adjusted every year. Any
contractual cycle established for an ADMC needs to be sufficiently flexible to respond
to the requirements. A process needs to be defined whereby the ADMC feeds into the
budget planning process as other DCC Heads of service.

24
Page 34



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

2.7 Benefits

The direct ‘cashable’ benefits associated with the establishment of an ADMC are as
follows.

Benefit

1. Financial saving associated with the 90% reduction of NNDR in respect of
the ‘in scope’ facilities.

Financial saving associated with the VAT

Net income raised by the ADMC in respect of other commercial
endeavours (outside of the services commissioned by DCC).

wiN

Should the project proposal be approved, as part of the services contracted by the
Council, there will be a requirement for the ADMC to deliver against a suite of cashabie
and non- cashable benefits that will contribute to the Council's delivery of its Corporate
Plan. The benefits selected will be aligned where possible with the existing key
performance indicators used by Commercial Leisure, with some additional specific
measures to identify the impact that the provision is having on the wellbeing of
residents, and the contribution that it is making to the economy of Denbighshire.

The Key Performance Indicators currently measured for the in scope facilities and
functions are included for reference within Appendix 2J

The performance measures will be reviewed through the contract management, and
the planning cycle will enable the performance measures to be reviewed and adjusted
at pre-set intervals, to allow DCC to respond to any emerging budgetary pressures, or
trends and identified needs.

2.8 Risks
The risks outlined below are the key risks identified with the establishment of an ADMC

for the delivery of the in scope facilities functions and activities.

2.8.1 Changes in National legislation in the future could prevent the anticipated
business rates savings from being fully realised.

2.8.2 The vat savings cannot be fully achieved through a not for profit Local Authority
Trading Model, (LATC), and/or charitable status is required for these to be fully
realised, which increases the regulatory regime and associated cost.

2.8.3 There may be unforeseen additional one-off costs associated with the
establishment of an ADMC that have not been taken into account within the
project budget.

2.8.4 There may be unforeseen additional revenue costs associated with managing
the on- going relationship between the Council and an ADMC,

25
Page 35



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

285 The ADM fails or is not as financially successful as hoped, and any resultant
additional costs /prudential borrowing loans fall back on the Council to fund
and/or the Company is unable to make the adequate reinvestment into its day
to day business activities due to lack of funds.

286 The Council's governance arrangements are inadequate to control and monitor
the ADMC's financial and operational performance.

287 Where external revenue grants form part of the existing income streams for
some facilities/functions, reductions or cessation of funding due to the differing
delivery arrangements or the financial climate, would either fall back to the
ADMC, and potentially the Council if the ADMC is unable to absorb any
reductions in income, or, will impact on service provision in these areas. if any
reduction in the revenue funding was due to the financial climate this would be
a risk for the Council regardless of the ADM.

288 Risk that the Local Authority become a ‘shadow Director’ and is liable for the
debts of the NEWCO.

2 8.9 Risk that Directors of the right calibre with suitable expertise cannot be found.
2.8.10 Risk related to the impact of the BREXIT outcome.

2.8.11

Page 36



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

3. Commercial Case

3.1 Options Appraisal

There are a plethora of alternative models of delivery available and different
terminology abounds. The term Local Authority Trading Company (LATC) is a
commonly used laymans’ umbrella term and will be referred to in reports and business
plans by officers, but there are a variety of different types out there. What is important
is that the Council's Monitoring Officer has a clear model in law to be able to match
the relevant legal power for setting up and entering into arrangements, which they can
report with certainty the statutory basis for proceeding in a particular way to members.

The options appraisal in the commercial case, has concluded that the Local Authority
Trading Company Limited by Guarantee, based on the due diligence carried out thus
far, is the most feasible and deliverable of the ‘trading’ models, for the reasons set out
below. The commercial case recommends that the plain LATC Limited by Guarantee
should be the legal structure, but that in order to maximise tax benefits this model may
need to be set up so that it can also be registered as what is known as a ‘community
interest company’. It would still be a company limited by guarantee. It is envisaged
that the company would not need to be registered with the Charity Commissioner in
order to benefit but it had to be in our considerations in the event that HMRC did not
approve certain exemptions or if the law changed in the future, could the vehicle be
converted for example.

A reading of this section will show that there were 3 stages to this options appraisal
namely: -

Stage 1) the initial high level appraisal (with support from Local Partnerships) see
Appendix 3D

Stage 2) a detailed legal analysis of the high level appraisal suggesting the LATC
option may be appropriate but with caveats around the tax issue depending on
how the vehicle is structured (with support from Hugh James Solicitors)

Stage 3) development of the LATC 'sub options’ that could be available (by DCC legal
services)

Firstly, the rationale for choosing an appropriate model of delivery was based on the
Council’'s requirements and its’ political aspirations, rather than ‘we want one of
those’ then attempting to make the model fit. These requirements are understood by
Officers to be (in no particular order of importance):

Local authority control
Ability to benefit from tax exemptions
Ability to trade and grow

27

Page 37




Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

Continuation and resilience of the Council leisure offer

Effective contribution to supporting delivery of the Council’s Corporate Priorities for its’
citizens and its’ duties under the Social Services and Well Being Act 2014 and the
Well Being of Future Generations Act 2015

The choice of potential headline models of delivery, were considered through an initial
high level Options Appraisal (stage 1 above), which was the starting point for the
discussion on which model could best fit the Council's requirements and which models
were discounted and why. The resulting ‘high level’ delivery models were as follows:

Status Quo , in house commercial leisure service

Qutsource to the Private Sector

A Leisure Trust, the same operating model as a previous ADM, Clwyd Leisure

A Local Authority Trading Company, which would be wholly owned by the Council.

The Options Appraisal concluded that further work and a detailed legal analysis of the
models should be undertaken.

External legal advisors carried out a legal analysis (stage 2) of this initial Options
Appraisal and they have supported the option of a Local Authority Trading Company;
but that further work was needed in establishing the best trading model which provided
the Council with the control it required, but could still benefit from tax exemptions and
be able to grow in the 'commercial sense’ and generate income, and adapt in the
future, for example, to support the Council to meet obligations under the Social
Services and Wellbeing Act 2014 and the Well Being of Future Generation Act 2015
duties. The ability to grow, includes the potential for some activities that have been
found to be ‘out of scope’, to be added at a future point in time, subjectto a full business
case and approvals for doing so.

In house legal services then drilled down further (stage 3), the options emanating from
the Local Authority Trading Company model, which could bring better clarity and
certainty of meeting objectives. The tables at Appendix 3A set out a summary of the
rationale for the models selected, with the advantages and disadvantages of each of
these ‘sub-options’,

The sub-options considered are:

A Company Limited by Guarantee

(with philanthropic objectives but not a registered charity)
Community Interest Company

(via a Limited by Guarantee structure)

28
Page 38



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

A Charitable Company

(also set up via a Limited by Guarantee structure, but also registered with the Charities
Commission}

As part of the commercial case, the ‘sub-options’ have been considered by an external
firm of solicitors in order to test out our internal thinking. The external legal advice
supports the shortlisted (sub-options) models and supports the Local Authority Trading
Company limited by Guarantee (CLG), with a view that such a CLG is also set up as
a Community Interest Company (CIC) as being more likely than a plain CLG to attract
the most favourable tax exemptions. The charitable company option is clearly more
likely to attract the tax exemptions but will involve the Council in another layer of
regulatory oversight, in the form of the Charity Commission. Some further detail is
set out below and at Appendix 3 A.

A Local Authority Trading Company Limited by Guarantee

The tables at Appendix 3A explain this model's advantages and this will be the
simplest of these sub-models for the Council to adopt. The Council will be its only
member (shareholder) and therefore control the composition of the Board.

A Community Interest Company (CIC)

A CIC is a limited liability company, formed under the Companies Act 2006, for
organisations that want to use their profits and assets for the public good. A CIC has
the specific aim of providing a benefit to a community and must use its income, assets
and profits for the community it is formed to serve. The primary purpose of a CIC is to
benefit the community and not its shareholders, directors or employees. CICs can be
incorporated as a new company and are relatively simple to form as the Regulator of
Community Interest Companies (the Regulator) provides a model constitution. They
can be companies limited by shares or by guarantee however they must satisfy and
continue to satisfy a community interest test.

The legal implication of setting up as a ‘CIC’, must satisfy the ‘community interest test’
at formation and continue o do so for as long as it remains a CIC. A CIC will satisfy
the community interest test if it can show that a reasonable person might consider that
its' activities are being carried on for the benefit of the community. A company will not
satisfy the test if its activities only benefit members of a particular body or its activities
are political. Not aff of the activities carried on by a CIC need to have a direct benefit
to the community to which it serves, but everything a CIC does should somehow
contribute to benefiting the community it is set up to serve. For example, a sports club
for employees of a business will only satisfy the community interest test if it provides
a wider community benefit by making its facilities available to the local community.

29
Page 39



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

A CIC cannot be a charitable company so will not need to be registered with the Charity
Commission.

Charitable Compan

[

This will add another layer of oversight and obligations upon a Company thatis a CLG,
but has sought and obtained ‘Charitable Status’. The following observations have
been provided by the external legal advisors:

.

The commercial case therefore suggests that the Council frame the arrangements to
support the ‘plain’ Company Limited by Guarantee model, but that the Council may
need to keep its mind open to also registering this company with the Community
Interest Regulator in the event the tax benefits suggest it sufficiently advantageous to
do so.

30
Page 40



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

3.2 Project delivery arrangements
The following sets out in summary the commercial steps required to achieve the new

entity — note some steps could be carried out in tandem or in an appropriately varied
order:

» Full Council to agree that the Council shall form a new company and the
preferred model.

. Resolution of Full Council should agree the proposed membership and
constitution of the Board of Directors.

. The minimum of one appointment of a living individual to role of Director is
possible initially, thereafter further appointments can be made later.

. Agree form of the Company's ‘Constitution’ (Articles of Association and a
Memorandum).

. Shareholders/Members’ agreement with the company drafted

J Council to agree the new company's proposed name together with it's
registered office.

. [if it is to be a CIC, then the Proposed ‘Community Interest Statement’ and

incorporation documents to be submitted to the Regulator for approval to
ensure it passes the community interest test.]

. [If the Company is to also be recognised as a registered Charitable Company
then approval needs to be sought from the Charity Commissioner]

. All stakeholders, including grant funders are kept updated on proposed
formation of the Company.

. Full Council agrees final composition of the Board of Directors

Formation of the company takes place and it is registered with Companies

House.

Key officers could be seconded (formally or informally) to the company/released

Company's business plan is developed.

Shareholders/Members’ agreement signed off.

Heads of terms of the leases drafted by the Council and considered at Asset

Management Committee.

. Recruitment of an external director and induction of all Directors takes place, to
include Role Descriptions.

. Register of Directors interests

. Directors training to take place

Directors insurance and indemnities will be put in place and approved by the
Council's Corporate Governance Committee.

Board meet, chair appointed.

Business Plan actions agreed by Board

All legal requirements, such as insurance and registration with HMRC.
Financial and banking arrangements put in place.

The Councils’ requirements from the Company are agreed and set out in legally
binding contracts and service level agreements between the Council and the

31
Page 41



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model! (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

Company. These will be agreed and signed but only dated at the time both
parties wish the contractual arrangements to come into effect.

. The Company’s requirements from the Council such as payroll or HR services
are drafted and agreed as set out in service level agreements between the
parties. These will come into effect only when the parties agree.

. Leases are finalised.

. Employers, Buildings and Public Liability insurance are put in place.

. The ‘go live’ date of service delivery is agreed and confirmed between the
parties, contracts and leases are exchanged and dated to reflect this
agreement.

. The Company Board adopts key policy documents such as Contract Procedure
Rules, HR policies, safeguarding, health and safety etc.

o Existing contracts that need to be in the Company's name will be novated to
the new entity.

. Staff will tupe over to the new entity on the same date the services contracts
come into effect.

o New Company commences delivery of service on the ‘go live' date.

3.3 Legal implications

The fundamental feature of the corporate model is that this will be set up as a separate
legal entity for the delivery of services fo the Council and if the Teckal' benefits are
also to engaged then services can also be delivered to the private sector up to 20% of
its' activities. The further benefit of setting up the company so that it satisfies the
Teckal provisions, are that the Council will not need to run a competitive tendering
exercise in accordance with procurement rules, in order to engage with this separate
entity to deliver the services it requires. Furthermore, an additional benefit of the
Teckal exemption is that it works both ways — the company as a local authority
controlled company can buy back support services or other services from the Council,
also without running a competitive tendering exercise itself; it could of course still
choose to do so but it would not be legal requirement.

The Council will need to clearly point to the lawful powers it is relying on and the legal
powers the Council will rely on in order to participate in the company will be the
incidental powers under s.111 Local Government Act 1972 and the well being power
in 5.2 Local Government Act 2000, as there is no general power to participate in a
company as such, but it is accepted that these implied powers will be legally sufficient.

Also, as one of the requirements is to be able to trade commercially in the future, the
specific model the Council can choose becomes more limited, as in law a Councii can
only trade in the ‘commercial’ sense through a company or an industrial or provident
society under s.95 Local Government Act 2003.

1 See 3.4 below for explanation of Teckal'.
32
Page 42



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
aclivities/functions

There will be no delegation of functions to the Company, as it is not possible to
delegate functions to a company, therefore in law the Council must enter into a
contract with the company to deliver the services on it's behalf.

3.4 Regulatory regime implications

Procurement impiications.

There will be no procurement implications for the Council if the Company is set up so
that it satisfies the so called ‘Teckal' exemption? contained within the procurement
regulations namely the Public Contract Regulations 2015.

However, if set up as a Council controlled company, the Company witl need to follow
procurement law when it contracts with the private sector. The proposal is that the
Company would follow and adopt a similar version of the Council's Contract Procedure
Rules, but adjusted to suit the decision making and scheme of delegation within the
Company. The Company would take the decision to award a contract; in the same
vein, any breaches of the procurement regime, which result in a successful challenge
would need to be met and paid for by the Company.

# From the case Teckal (C -107/98) now codified in Regulation 12 Public Contract Regulations 2015
Reg 12— Public contracts between entities within the public sector: Award of contracts to controlled persons

(1) A pubhic contract awarded by a contracting authority to a legal person falls outside the scope of this Part where all of the following
conditions are fulfilled:—

{a) the contracting authority exercises over the legal person concerned a control which is similar to that which it exercises over its own
departments;

(b) more than 80%; of the activitics of the controlled legal person are carried out in the performance of tasks entrusted to it by the
controlling contracting authority or by other legal persons controlied by that contracting authonity; and

(c) there is no direct private capital participation in the controtled legal person with the exception of non-controlling and non-blocking
forms of private capital participation required by national legislative provisions, in conformity with the Treaties, which do not exert a
decisive influence on the controlled legal person

(2) A public contract also falls outside the scope of this Part where a controlled legal person which is a contracting authonty awards the
contract to—

(a) its controlling contracting authonty, or

(b} another {egal person controlled by the same contracting authonty,

33
Page 43



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model {ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

The Company will want to benefit from any advantageous purchasing frameworks,
such as energy frameworks. The Company can benefit legitimately from the NPS or
Crown Commercial Service (subject to checking the precise terms) or other legitimate
procurement frameworks, similarly, it can if it chose to do so, set up its own
frameworks, issued in its own name, rather than the Councils’, but still in accordance
with public procurement law.

The 4 year, UK Leisure Framework, which was issued by the Council as Contracting
Authority, will in law, be out of scope from transfer over to the proposed Company, but
as part of the commercial case the new company could be contracted to deliver or
support the framework, estimated at a few hours per month. The way this Framework
is set up, there is only one supplier (Alliance Leisure) and the bulk of the work in
operating the framework is carried out by the supplier itself. The framework is due to
expire in 2021.

The Company, subject to Board approval, could choose to run a similar tender for a
further 4 years but that will be a decision for the Company at the time, depending on
market conditions in the sector and whether there is a requirement for a further
framework of this nature to carry out any capital projects.

VAT/NNDR regulatory implications

VAT

In order to benefit from VAT savings the advice received from David Ormisher
Associates is that the company structure should be a non profit distributing
organisation therefore the preferred option must be set up as a ‘not for profit’
organisation. Any profit must be ploughed back into the activity that generated them
in the first place, it would not be able to pass any profit back to the owner of the
Company (the Council}.

NNDR

The Council NNDR relief policy would need to provide for applications for non
mandatory relief would be submitted and decided on a discretionary basis. The
Council's current policy approach to NNDR is dealt with in the financial case.

Corporation Tax regime.

This is a tax on the taxable profits of a company. There are 2 rates, the lower rate
(small profits rate) and the upper rate (main rate) based on profit thresholds and
considered in more detail in the financial case. The Company would however need to
turn a profit, and this is unlikely to be the case in the foreseeable future.

34
Page 44



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Mode! (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

State Aid

Company Law

F

The Board of Directors

It is a basic tenet of company law that the Directors have primarily a duty to the
Company to run itin the interests of the Company and not necessarily in the interests
of the shareholders or owners (ie the Council). This fundamental aspect must be
recognised by the Council if they are creating a Company.

Notwithstanding the concept of ‘control’ in the Teckal® sense, the Council must leave
the running of the Company to the Directors as they see fit. This is not to say that the
owner (the Council) does not have rights, they may remove Directors, reserve certain
matters to them and so on.

? See above procurement implications

35
Page 45



implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

Representation on the board of the company is an important issue for the Council and
Board composition is dealt with in section 3.8 below. Whether Officers or elected
Members there is the issue of conflicts of interest that must be dealt with. Recognising
that the Director's first duty is to the Company will mean that if the representatives are
Members, their ability to participate in Council meetings where the business relates or
affects the Company, will be limited because of their interest in the Company.

Similarly with Officers, their duties under their contract of employment with the Council
may occasionally clash with their interests as Directors of the Company. There will
need to upfront clarity about their respective positions which would be addressed in
their appointment.

The Companies Act 2006 codifies existing duties of Directors and explicitly imposes a
general duty on them to avoid conflicts of interest. The Act includes four separate
provisions dealing with conflicts and their disclosure distinguishing:

(i) Interests in transactions and arrangements with the company (which must be
disclosed but need not be approved)
(i)  All other conflicts (which will normally require approval)

Training will need to be provided to all Directors on their duties.

The Council (via the Corporate Governance Committee) will need to consider and
formally approve the provision of an indemnity to their nominated representative
Directors pursuant to the Local Authorities (Indemnities for Members and Officers)
(Wales) Order 2006. There will not be an immediate cost to the provision of an
indemnity and this will be met from the insurance cover the Councit has in place.
Directors’ personal insurance is a cost and this is reflected in the financial case.

The Council should also be aware that it needs to be mindful that it does not risk
becoming a ‘shadow’ Director inadvertently by implicitly tasking or expressly directing
Officers or Members to vote a particular way at Board meetings or that the Director’s
themselves operate with the Council in mind, rather than the Company first and
foremost. The Council could then be liable then for the acts of the Company and this
is a business risk the Council should ensure does not happen. Following
appointments to the Board, Directors should be trained on their role. Regular training
and awareness should continue to be provided by Company, probably via an external
expert, and this will be at a cost, but must be incurred. This is estimated (NINIEGNG
@GS providing all Directors are trained together on the same day.

Company Administration

There will be a cost involved in the administration of the Company, but there is no
obligation in law anymore to have a formally appointed Company Secretary. The
Constitution of the company could require the company to have such a role. The
company secretary will deal with compliance with company law and regulatory

36
Page 46



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

requirements. The company secretary also supports the boards and committees that
form part of the governance structure, which allows the company to operate
compliantly as an entity. In addition, the role advises the directors on their personal
duties and obligations in law and under company governance documents, and its
structure, constitution and legal powers.

This service could potentially be delivered by the Council's Legal and Demaocratic
Services department. The Council would however need to give careful consideration
to setting up appropriate ‘chinese walls' so that there are no conflicts of interest for
advisors and in particular the Councils’ Monitoring Officer function will need to be kept
separate from the interests of the Board and its Directors. An SLA could be put in
place.

The company could choose to outsource this support and the private sector can offer
company secretarial support but no costings have been obtained as yet on this option
as it is envisaged that the Council would provide better value for the company given it
is already set up to run meetings efficiently.  All the Company meetings will be held
in private, save for the Annual General Meeting which will be open only to its
shareholders (the Council). There will be no requirement in law for the ordinary
meetings to be published eg on modem.gov for example. The Council will need to
accept that it must leave the running of the Company to the Board and its
management, and rely on its’ monitoring arrangements referred to in section 3.8 of the
commercial case.

In the event that the Company needed to be registered with the Community Interest
Regulator or alternatively as a registered Charity, this will have continuing obligations
and these costs need to be taken into account as part of it's administration:

. Annual Accounts will need to be filed with the Registrar of Companies.

. A Community Interest Company report showing it continues to satisfy the
community interest test with a filing fee of £15. This report records the CIC's
activities for that year including any details on assets transferred for less than
market value, dividends paid and the remuneration of directors

. A confirmation statement

. A records that the CIC's activities for that year including any details on assets
transferred for less than market value, dividends paid and the remuneration of
directors

. Annual Charity Commission administration (if applicable).

Freedom of Information

Freedom of Information legislation will also apply to a council controlled company.
The costs of administering this regime for the Company could be absorbed within
existing staffing costs, but will need to be resourced if the Company model is indeed
a Council owned and controlled Company.

37
Page 47



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

Internal and External audit

The company will be obligated to allow internal auditors to carry out audits
independently and without obstruction and with the co-operation of the managers and
Board: this is essential from a commercial perspective and was lacking in the ‘Clwyd
Leisure’ trust model. The Council will want assurances that this will be put in place
and on a legal footing in the agreements.

External auditing is dealt with in the financial case and the lodging of the company
accounts with Companies House.

3.5 Property implications

The buildings/ assets will need to be utilised by the Coungii for key events such as
elections and civil contingency arrangements; it will be acceptable for such conditions
to be included within the terms of the leases. Existing public services such as the
Registrars service from Rhyl Town Hall wili need to be maintained and provided for
within the arrangements; Legal Officers do not foresee any issues with such
provisions.

Reports on titles of the buildings and land thus far do not throw up any incumbrances
preventing the formation of the ADM, that is not to say that there is not anything
historical, but legal officers’ views thus far do not foresee any issues. C ]

.

School use

Leisure Services has SLAs in place currently with regard to the use of the facilities, at
agreed times, for schools, in order to meet their duties in respect of physical education.
The contract for the delivery of leisure services will make express provision for this to
continue.

Lease Management
Estates have provided the following comments:

The ongoing maintenance arrangements wouldn 't change, with surveyors from
Property arranging and monitoring works. This also gives the opportunity for ad hoc
inspections during the course of normal business.

In terms of a structured inspection regime. This would initially be bi-annually, reverting
to annually as confidence in the management of the buildings grows (obviously the
converse might apply). Assuming inspections would generally cover condition and FM
arrangements (cleaning & servicing etc.) | would anticipate the annual cost to the
Council to be in the region of £3k p/a — to include brief record keeping/report writing.

38
Page 48



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

Obviously more cost may be incurred if we get into a disagreement/need to increase
formal monitoring.

In reality the regular visits by Maintenance staff could incorporate checks of this nature
and the visits would only be a formalisation of the monitoring.

The Council is confident that it has an accurate understanding of the current condition
of its facilities and future liabilities

The Council looks at all it's buildings annually to formulate the capital maintenance
bid. While it's difficult to predict everything that might go wrong, there is a good handle
on the portfolio. There has been significant investment in the major elements of the
buildings (including what's proposed this year) so assets will be leased over in good
condition.

Lease Length
The Company would want some assurance on the term in order to plan service

delivery with some confidence and the recommended first term would be a 10 year
lease. The iease will contain the usual termination for breach clauses and be a back
to back arrangement that marries up with any contract for service provisions to ensure
consistency and legal clarity.

In order to maximise VAT benefits the leases wouid not be full repairing leases, but
this will provide the Council will another level of control over the lifecycle of the assets.
For further detail see the Economic and Financial Case and in particular the VAT
advice.

Asset Management Group

Any proposals in relation to the Council's buildings will need to be considered by the
Council’s formalised asset management committee, which is chaired by the Lead
Member for Finance and Assets and is open to attendance by elected members.

Other stakeholders

Ruthin Craft Centre and the Arts Council funding stream

Informal discussions suggest that the formation of a company limited by guarantee will
not impact on the funding subject to the Arts Council being kept updated of progress
on this alternative delivery model and having sight of the constitution of the Company.
Other public bodies have worked with the Arts Council in similar circumstances having
formed alternative delivery models and this is not necessarily a barrier to funding. A
for profit trading company could be a barrier, whereas a Company Limited by
Guarantee should not be. The philanthropic objectives of the company will be a key
area that the funder would need to consider.

39
Page 49



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model {ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

The terms and conditions of other grant funding the Craft Centre may apply for, have
been considered and do not on the face of it appear to negate the formation of an
alternative delivery model. The terms and conditions in some (not all) refer to the grant
only for ‘charitable purposes’ but the term is not always defined; some grants will not
be awarded to organisations that are ‘for profit’, some will only grant to a ‘legal entity";
some donors terms are quite vague or loose and many are project specific. (D

The formation of the company with philanthropic objectives in its constitution may in
fact be of assistance to future grant funding applications, rather than an application
being made by the Local Authority. Ultimately each organisation that is applied to, will
have different criteria.

Rhvt Town Council funding in relation to the SC2 waterpark.

Rhyl Town Council have contributed to the development of SC2 and an agreement is
in place between both Councils. The agreement will not prevent the formation of an
alternative delivery model, but it does allow for a seat of the management board in
respect of this particular facility. This will not affect the composition of the actual
Company Board, but the Town Council's requirements will continue to need to be met
with regard to the operational management of SC2 itself, as a key stakeholder.

Existing Contracts
A review of these will take place and novated as required over to the new company.

Legal Officers have standard templates to administer this process, within existing
resources.

3.6 IT implications

Data Protection/GDPR

The Company would need to be registered in its’ own right as a Data Controller with
the Information Commissioners’ office; and would need to appoint a statutory Data
Protection Officer (DPQ). This Officer could be an existing member of the leisure
service, who is not responsible for any data or information assets, or the Company
could buy back the service from the Council, or from an external supplier for a fee. The
key requirement is that the DPO has a direct line into the Board, in order to
communicate issues or concerns and is able to act independently without obstruction

40
Page 50



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

from senior management or managing director. The DPQO cannot be dismissed for
acting in accordance with their statutory duties.

By way of comparison all Denbighshire Schools have appointed one grade 7 FTE
temporary deputy DPO officer to deliver a DPO service for all of Denbighshire Schools,
who is line managed by the Council's DPO. There may be an opportunity to combine
this role going forward, subject to discussions with education and schoals. The
decision on appropriate appointment in house or to purchase the service from the
Council must be one for the Company to decide at Board level in advance of the date
of operational delivery and transfer of data to the Company takes place.

DCC ICT implications

ICT provision to the facilities and functions within the scope of the commercial case
can be broken down into a number of elements:

. The provision of network links into the establishments

. The maintenance of the building’s network infrastructure (physical cabling, WiFi
provision, network routing and switching) along with the connection of devices
to the network

The provision of telephony services

Management and maintenance of information systems

The provision of desktop hardware and software

Access to Denbighshire’s corporate ICT systems (e.g. payroll, general ledger,
etc.)

. Ongoing support

Most of these functions are currently delivered without a specific charge being levied
o the service and are included in the core funding allocated to ICT each year. The
exceptions to this are additions to the network as a result of new business
requirements (e.g. additional infrastructure required in a new or refurbished facility)
and the payment of maintenance contracts with third party suppliers (e.g. the leisure
services IT system XN Leisure). These exceptions are recharged to the service by
ICT or invoiced directly by the third party supplier.

Should the Council remove the funding for the in scope services from ICT's core
budget and the Company ‘buy back’ those services from ICT, in most instances, the
costs of providing these services to the Company will remain the same (subject to the
normal cost fluctuations caused by inflation, etc.) However, there would be an
additional overhead on ICT to manage the contract and recharging process for those
services and consideration will need to be given to how to manage this.

The greatest area of risk in terms of potential additional costs is around software
licensing. [CT are currently working with our Microsoft Account Management team to
understand the implications of transferring services to the Company on our licensing

41
Page 51



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

agreements. The Council holds an Enterprise Agreement (EA) with Microsoft, which
gives us cheaper ‘bulk rates’ for the purchase of our licenses for things like Windows,
Office and the software to manage our servers. Our Enterprise Agreement is a
specific public sector agreement and is not generally available to organisations from
the private or third sectors. If we are able to provide Microsoft applications to the
Company within the scope of our Enterprise Agreement, the costs of software would
remain consistent (subject to the normal cost fluctuations as above). (NS

ICT has experience and processes to recharge for these services and has a number
of Service Level Agreements which is can draw upon to develop a contract and/or
service level agreement which would meet the needs of the Company and ensure that
ICT is committing to what it can realistically deliver. Typically, ICT recharge on the
basis of a ‘device cost’ per year for support, licensing and periodic replacement; actual
cost recharge for network provision and actual cost recharge for access to corporate
applications. If approval to progress the project is forthcoming, ICT and Legal
Services will develop a draft scope, agreement and charging model for discussion and

agreement.

3.7 Other asset implications

The Council does not hold a central register of all grants and this is a risk that needs
to be recognised in the commercial case. There is a risk, that a grant could exist,
historical or otherwise, which limits expenditure in certain circumstances. This risk,
albeit unquantifiable, is recorded in the project risk register.

‘Asset Lock’

As described in the above, the company limited by guarantee may require to be
registered as a Community Interest Company and with that come some fimitations,
particularly in the context of its' assets.

The ‘Community Interest Regulations 2005’ specify that the CIC cannot transfer its
assets (including any profits or other surpluses generated by its activities) for less than
market value unless transferring them to another CIC or charity (that is either specified
in its or articles or consented to by the Regulator) or if the transfer is for the benefit of
the community it was set up to serve (known as the asset lock). This asset lock is set
out in the articles of association of the CIC. CICs must consider the asset-lock when

42
Page 52



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure refated
activities/functions

entering into commercial relationships and when deciding remuneration for its
employees and directors. The asset lock protects the assets of the CIC and ensures
that the assets and profits of the CIC will be devoted to the benefit of the community
and not for rewarding shareholders and directors.

3.8 Monitoring arrangements

The Councii will be anxious to ensure that it has the ability to monitor the company in
order to ensure its success and value to the Council and it's citizens.

A summary of the arrangements that couid feasibly be put in place to monitor the
company are set out in this section. These arrangements help support the
requirements for oversight and sufficient control, which the Council is seeking and
contributes to the overall commercial case for setting up a separate legal company.

Council Subsidy

The council subsidy is a lever that can be utilised as part of the monitoring
arrangements.

An effective Board and its’ composition

Officers recommend that the number of board members is set at 7 — there is no
maximum number but the board needs to be able to be an effective decision maker.

The Board has day-to-day control and responsibility for managing the company's
business operations and compliance with its legal duties and liabilities. There are
several types of directorships:

Executive director — a director who carries out executive functions and is usually a full
or part-time director.

Non-executive director — a director who is not an employee of the company or holder
of an executive office but who would usually devote part of his or her time to the affairs
of the company.

De facto director — a person who acts as if he/she is a director and is treated as such
by the Board but who has not been validly appointed.

Shadow director — a person in accordance with whose directions or instructions the
company is accustomed to act.

Page 53



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

The Board could be constituted by a mix of Councillors and Senior Officers and
probably a further one board member who has experience of the leisure industry, in
order to inform decision making and challenge the operation appropriately; in addition
to benefiting from a vote at Board level. The law does not require the Board to consist
of Lead Members necessarily. Appointments must be made by the Full Council.
Officers will be recommending a mix of Councillors and Officers on the Board, not least
because in the event of elected members not being re-elected, then there will be some
continuity, until new members are appointed.

The suggested composition could be as follows:

Director Managing | Director Director | Director Director | Finance
Director Director
/Company
Secretary
DCC DCC External ADCC Chair of ADCC External or
Senior Appointment | Lead Scrutiny or | Elected internal
Corporate | officer . Member | Corporate | Member | appointme
Director of Individual | £ Governance | —tobe | nt.
with Leisure | | gisyre confirmed
industry
skills and
background
Executive | Executive | Non Executive | Executive Executive | Executive
Executive or Non
Executive

With regard to the external appointment, there is likely to be cost to the company in
attracting the right applicant and this has been estimated in the commercial costs as
between the range paid to Committee Lay Members at the top of the band and the
benchmarking exercise carried out by ‘Registered Social Landlords in Wales’
[Appendix 3 B] and envisaged to be circa £200 per meeting. There is no legal
requirement however for this position to be paid necessarily, but an allowance may
result in more interest from suitable candidates.

All appointments to the Board are decisions for, and will be made by the Full
Council at a later date following the Full Business Case, in the event that the
decision to form the Company is made. [t is envisaged that the Councils
recruitment panel may interview and make recommendations to the Full
Council.

44
Page 54




implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

The Councii will have the ability to dismiss individual Directors from their position,
which will be a form of control it may prefer to use as leverage, rather than the usual
contractual provision contained within the contracts with a supplier eg penalty clauses,
which would not necessarily be to the Council's advantage with its own Company.

Contractual Powers

The Contracts for Services and SLAs will be drafted by the Council’s legal services
based on the Councils’ standard corporate terms of business for services. These
contain clauses which allow the Council to monitor including the ability to carry out
audits; KPlIs, provision of management information and data, contract manager
relationship and commitment to meetings, health and safety requirements, no
assignment of the contract without the consent of the Council, sub-contractors, record
keeping, confidentiality and publicity provisions, step in rights in addition to the usual
contractual terms you would expect the Council to have in place with contractors
generally, including termination provisions.

The contract provisions will also allow for reviews and variations.
The Leases

The leases will be of a term that is back to back with the contractual arrangements.
The proposal is that the leases and contracts should be for 10 years but with
appropriate termination provisions for serious and substantial breaches and break
clauses that are acceptable to the Council, but still offer a good degree of comfort to
the company. The Council will want a ROI from the costs that it has incurred in setting
up the company and these are set out in the financial case as appropriate. A 10 year
arrangement is more likely to provide the RO! on both sides.

The leases will give the Landlord the right of entry and inspection without notice, non
assignment without landlord consent, break clauses, reservations or rights to use the
buildings specified for situations such as a civil contingency or to hold elections for
example.

In order to maximise the VAT position, the leases should be at a peppercorn rent. An
example of typical heads of terms of a lease is attached as Appendix 3 C.

Any lease at less than market value should also be decided in the context of state aid
and this will be considered whilst the leases are being drawn up.

Obligations of Directors

Officers who are appointed to the Board will have a contractual relationship with the
Company.

Elected Members who are appointed to the Board will be made on a voluntary basis.

45
Page 55



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure refated
activities/functions

However, any Director (officer or elected member) could be dismissed from the board
by the Council.

Al directors are subject to the following statutory duties under the Companies Act 2006
and therefore these obligations provide the Council with some assurances on the
effective running, and therefore a form of monitoring, of the company:

To act within powers.

To promote the success of the company.

To exercise independent judgment.

To exercise reasonable care, skill and diligence.
To avoid conflicts of interest.

Not to accept benefits from third parties.

To declare an interest in a proposed transaction or arrangement.

Contract Management

The management arrangements the Council will have in place with the company for
the delivery of leisure services, is absolutely key to the success of the relationship and
for both parties to understand the requirements of each. It is envisaged that the
approach adopted with regards to our contract management with Civica for our
Revenues and Benefits service will be similar to managing the contract with the
company delivering leisure services.

The Council should recognise the value in ensuring that time and resources are built
into the project plan to properly scope out this particular contract to ensure it has
sufficient ‘teeth’ but is not so onerous that the company will be unable to deliver its
stated objectives.

Early warning signals and triggers will need to be set out expressly with appropriate
mechanisms for avoiding any unnecessary escalation, where the parties can work
together to find solutions.

This is likely to require a part time post, at least, in order to carry out sufficient and
effective contract management. These costs have been captured in the financial case.

A Strategic Governance Board

In a similar way that the Council manages the Civica contract for the Revenues and
Benefits service a board will be constituted that will allow the contract manager to feed
back to an overseeing strategic governance board. This board is likely to consist of
the Contract Manager, Monitoring Officer, s.151 Officer, Corporate Director (not the
individual that sits on the Company Board) and or the Chief Executive, Lead Member

46
Page 56



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

for Finance. The Board would invite relevant members of the Company Board to its
meetings.

Asset Management Group and the Role of the Corporate Landlord

This Committee consists of one Lead Member and Senior Officers and is another form
of oversight in respect of arrangements and proposals in respect of Council fand and
buildings. The committee operates transparently to the extent that elected members
can access the agenda and papers on modern.gov and may also attend in person as
observers. The Committee supports and challenges the role of the Corporate
Landlord and can provide a further level of oversight from the Corporate Landlord
perspective supporting the commercial case.

The cost of AMG monitoring or approving lease obligations or decisions can be met
within existing resources.

Internal and External audit

The Company's legal arrangements and constitution, will provide for auditors to carry
out audits and reviews independently and without hindrance.

Corporate Governance Committee

This Council Committee can receive reports from an auditor on the company and
consider the effective operation of risk management within the Council, which includes
its own controlled companies.

Performance Scrutiny Committee

This Committee may be particularly interested in the delivery of the contractual service
which the Council is purchasing off the Company.

Full Council or Cabinet (to be confied) to Approve the Annual Business Plan

This will be reserved within the constitution of the company.

4. Economic & Financial Case

4.1 Economic case for change

The crux of the economic case is underpinned by the opportunity to consider a tax—
efficient, non-profit distributing council owned company model that could deliver initial
savings resulting from the legal structure of the company, as well as providing options
for further subsidy reduction in future, including from the benefits that may arise from
trading freedoms for the company. The Commercial Case assesses the range of most
relevant models and recommends the local authority trading company as the most
appropriate vehicle to achieve the aims of:

* Reducing the cost and therefore the financial subsidy of the provision
immaediately through tax advantage

a7
Page 57



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

« Giving options for further subsidy reduction in future
« Allowing some commercial freedom to trade
¢ The council retaining appropriate levels of control

The substantive elements of the economic case are the advantages of business rate
reduction secured through the appropriate legal structure of the company and
opportunities to exempt elements of the income generated from the in-scope services
from VAT within a new company structure. The opportunity for the council to avoid
future inflationary costs is also available through a new delivery model.

Whilst there are savings available through a specific delivery model, there are also
some additional costs associated with the delivery of the services/functions through a
separate legal entity. The savings and costs are summarised in the following
paragraphs and some explanation of the core business case points noted below.

As the Commercial Case sets out the appraisal and recommended form of company,
this economic case compares the financial costs and benefits of the recommendation
against the existing model. The comparison of business rate advantage is relatively
straightforward in this regard as the discretionary relief is not available to the sites
while in council ownership. The specific advice supporting the business rate
assumptions is attached as appendix 4A

The VAT element is more complex and essentially arises from following the Ealing
Ruling in 2018, which determined that, under European law, the provision of sports
facilities by a local authority is exempt, and no longer standard-rated for the purpose
of VAT. Accordingly, many local authorities have changed their treatment of such
income from standard-rated to exempt, without amending their prices to the public,
meaning that they can retain the 20% which they used to have to pay to HMRC.
However, VAT recovery on purchases also has to be considered.

'ﬂil

Page 58



mplementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

Beyond the core elements of VAT saving assumed in the business case {below), it
has emerged recently that further tax advantages might be achievable through a
detailed review of theatre income and some of the income streams within SC2. The
provisions for possible tax advantage are less clear in some of these areas but the
possibility should be explored in more detail over the next few months (i.e. before the
company is legally established) to determine whether further savings can be made
through delivery of the functions via a company model.

It is therefore recommended that a further detailed review of these potential additional
areas of saving be explored before the company is established.

Further detail of the key elements is set out below:

4.2 Potential Savings
4.2.1 Business Rates (NNDR)

A Council owned Company Limited by Guarantee would qualify for Discretionary
Business Rates Relief and DCC could award the full 100% (90% funded by the NNDR
Pool and 10% by DCC). On present values this would generate an annual budget
saving of £623k. Presently each ‘dual use’ High School site has one rateable value
assessment and the total bill is split proportionately between the school and leisure
site. In order to gain future rate relief there will be a need to have separate rateable
value assessments to split the areas operated by the school and those operated by
the Leisure ADM. This could mean that the potential business rates savings could
increase or reduce accordingly. See appendix 4A.

4.2.2 VAT savings

49
Page 59



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

4.2.3 Savings/costs avoided by not giving the company any pay and other inflationary
increases

Once established the company will be expected to fund all pay and other cost
inflationary pressures. Based on present information this could be an annual saving in
cost avoided by the Council of approximately £200k (£162k on pay inflation alone).
See appendix 4D.

4.2.4 Future Opportunities

The proposed company model provides a legal structure that allows for commercial
growth to be considered, which if successful, may contribute to the savings agenda
and help to reduce the level of financial subsidy/support from the Council going
forwards. Teckal rules enable the company to generate up to 20% of its total turnover
from beyond its public sector owner thereby enabling it to look fo gain additional net
income. Whilst no assumptions have been made in the business case regarding extra
income growth there is confidence this could be achieved from a wide range of items
including partnerships and collaboration working, sponsorship and advertising
packages, media partnering etc.

It is assumed as part of this financial case that specific cash reserves earmarked for
leisure at the end of 2019/20 would transfer to the company. The company will have
to devise its own reserves strategy, presumably striking a balance between mitigating
income risks and investing to develop new business opportunities. Therefore, the
company will have the option to use reserves to develop new business opportunities.
However, a mechanism should also be developed where, following Board approval, a
business case would be submitted to the council as an ‘invest to save’ proposition for
it to consider.

While there are opportunities to develop additional revenue streams in future, there
should also be opportunities to consider the cost of management overheads and the
council would expect reductions in this area to contribute to the delivery of a reduced
subsidy going forward.

4.3 Potential extra on-going recurring costs of operating an ADM

There are a number of known extra costs that the company and/or the Council will
incur as a result of the establishing of the ADM. These include the foilowing:-

50
Page 60



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

a)

b)

d)

Accountant post

This is extra work that the company will need to provide and includes financial
business planning forecasts, ensuring that all financial processes and systems
are robust and auditable, ensuring that financial information complies with
company legislation, satisfying external auditors of the accuracy of financial
information, treasury management functions to ensure that cash-flow and
borrowing strategies are adequate and also completing the company’s monthiy
VAT return to HMRC as well as undertaking the VAT partial exemption
calculation. It is envisaged this will be a Grade 11 post costing £60k at top of
grade (including on-costs). Further detail and justification is set out in the
Financial Governance sections below.

Directors and Officers insurance cover
This needs to be in place as soon as the company starts to make decisions and

is likely to be an additional cost of circa £6k per annum.

Payment to independent Directors of the company

Any independent Directors employed by the company will be expected to be
remunerated accordingly. The independent member of the Council's Standards
Committee is presently paid £99 for up to 4 hours (allows for meeting time,
travel and prep) and £198 for 4 hours or more together with HMRC travel rates.
Assuming 2 of the Directors are independent of the Council and are asked to
work 1 day per month this is estimated to cost an extra £5k per annum.

Contract Management costs
It is assumed that 30% of a Grade 10 post will be required by the Council to

manage and monitor the contract with the company and that this work cannot
be absorbed within the present Council staffing structure. The anticipated extra
costs amount to £16k.

External audit costs
The company will be required under law to have its annual accounts externally
audited. We will assume a nominal charge of £2k to undertake this work.

Allocation of residual FAH services
If the company is established the remaining services within the current

Facilities, Assets and Housing (FAH)} Department will need to be allocated to
other Heads of Service (HoS). This may result in an increased cost within the
remaining SLT structure. Also, until all other residual functions have been
allocated to different service areas, there is a potential for further cost
implication as a consequence.

51
Page 61



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

9)

h)

Reduction in dual use income due to NNDR relief

Presently the ‘dual use’ income that leisure services receives from schools
includes an element for the recharge of NNDR costs. If the company receives
relief on the NNDR costs going forward it is anticipated this could mean a loss
of £65k income to the company. Whilst this figure can be built into the net
savings total initially it is on the assumption that a proportionate reduction can
be negotiated with the company over a 2 or 3 year period.

Potential increase in pension liabilities

Some other examples of Local Authority owned ADM's have resulted in
employer pension contribution rates increasing by anything up to 2% in total. At
this stage we are assuming there will not be any extra costs to the company but
this will only be confirmed once this work has been completed by the pension
actuary. The company will be granted admitted body status to the pension fund
and may require the council to act as guarantor.

Software Licence costs
There could be extra licence costs depending on the status of the company and

how the software vendors interpret this. (NG
]

As there are a number of potential financial risks noted above and in the risk
analysis below that are not certain, it would be prudent to allow a contingency
in the cost business case to allow the risk.

4.4 Likely ‘One-off costs of setting up the company

Project Management and other associated legal costs (including company
registration etc.) are estimated at circa £100k. These are one off costs and
are not recurring budget pressures.

52
Page 62



implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

4.5 Potential net budget savings arising from the establishment of the Leisure

ADM
1. Business rates (NNDR) savings £623k
2. VAT savings £284k
3. Savings from the company funding its own cost inflation
£200k
GROSS SAVINGS £1,107K
4. Less the following extra costs
a) Accountant post (E60k)
b) Directors and Officers insurance cover (£6k)
c) Payment to independent Directors of the company
(£5k)
d) Contract Management costs
(£16k)
e) External audit costs (£2k)
f) Reduction in dual use income due to NNDR relief
(£65K)
a) Contingency for highlighted risks (£150Kk)
NET ANNUAL SAVINGS IN YEAR 1
£803K

4.6 Potential Financial Risks to the Project

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.6.3

4.6.4

4.6.5

Changes in National legislation in the future could prevent the anticipated
business rates savings from being fully realised.

The VAT savings cannot be fully achieved through a not for profit Local
Authority Trading Model, (LATC), and/or charitable status is required for
these to be fully realised, which increases the regulatory regime and
associated cost.

There may be unforeseen additional one-off costs associated with the
establishment of an ADMC that have not been taken into account within the
project budget.

There may be unforeseen additional revenue costs associated with
managing the on-going relationship between the Council and an ADMC.

The ADM fails or is not as financially successful as hoped, and any resultant
additional costs/prudential borrowing loans fall back on the Council to fund
and/or the Company is unable to make the adequate reinvestment into its
day to day business activities due to lack of funds.

The Council's governance arrangements are inadequate to control and
monitor the ADMC's financial and operational performance.

53
Page 63



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

4.6.6 Where external revenue grants form part of the existing income streams for
some facilities/functions, any reduction or cessation of funding due to the
differing delivery arrangements or the financial climate, would either fall back
to the ADMC, and potentially the Council if the ADMC is unable to absorb
any reductions in income, or, will impact on service provision in these areas.
If any reduction in the revenue funding was due to the financial climate this
would be a risk for the Council regardless of the ADM.

4.6.7 Risk that the Lacal Authority become a ‘Shadow Director’ and is liable for the
debts of the NEWCO.

4.6.8 Given the nature of the activities offered at the new SC2 facility, there is
potential for an increase in insurance claims. While these will be defended,
there is a risk that claims increase and as the council meets the first £50k of
claims through self-insurance, there may be an impact. Increased claims
(even if defended) would also potentially impact claims history information
and therefore the cost of premiums.

4.7 Additional Risk — SC2

The new SC2 facility is included within the scope of the ADM and has been developed
based on a detailed financial business case. It is hoped that the assumptions within
the business case will prove to be correct and if so, the cost of running the facility
should be offset by the income generated from it. However, there is a risk, as was set
out at the time the decision to invest was approved, that the business case, as with
any business case, is based on well-informed assumptions or judgements that may
not ultimately materialise as planned. Since the original business case was approved
at Council in February 2017, it has been developed further as it moved toward opening,
including a change to the ‘dry’ offer of the TAG Active’ attraction and a revised pricing
structure. The original business case approved by council included a projected
financial deficit in the first four years of operation. The revised business case has not
been reported back to cabinet or council but, with the changes noted above shows the
facility potentially breaking even. However, both the original and latest business cases
are speculative as they have been produced before the facility opens, hence the need
for a watching brief and the highlighted risk. There is a risk therefore that if either
income targets are not achieved or costs increase beyond levels expected, or both
then it will create a financial pressure. The pressure would arise whether or not the
facility is operated directly by the council or by a separate company. There will almost
be a full year of trading activity to assess the financial performance of SC2 before
transfer and financial performance during 2019/20 will be managed within the existing
framework of dealing with service pressures or underspends. If future financial
performance is worse than predicted, then options to address the position should be
forthcoming from the company in the first instance before additional financial support
from the council is considered.

54
Page 64



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Mode! (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

4.8 Financial Governance & Support Services

In assessing delivery through a new model, financial management arrangements have
been assessed in respect of what is required and provided currently and what would
be required that is different or additional and how might that be provided. The
underlying aim is to avoid as much additional cost as possibie but to ensure also that
the appropriate functions and controls are in place and operating effectively from the
council's and the company's perspective.

To limit exposure to additional costs and to aid with a smooth transition, the general

principle should be use of existing council services and resources, unless there is a
specific requirement or mutual benefit for the company to provide such services itself.
The cost of existing services is an existing cost to the council overall and should remain
so for a defined period — i.e. 3 years at least. The cost of support provisions that are
not directly transferred to the company as part of the annual subsidy agreement should
be based on the existing accounting costs calculated for statutory returns (this is to
avoid the immediate resource implication of calculating more precise unit costs until it
is necessary to do so). These are caiculated on a full cost basis and apportion multiple
layers of on-cost throughout council services. A method applied to similar examples
of this arrangement is to base the nominal charge to the company on 50% of existing
support cost charges — this is deemed to take account of the circular nature appiied to
the apportion calculations used for statutory purposes and is a reasonable proxy to
represent the cost to the company.

The costs and income will have to be recognised in both the company's and the
council's accounts.

A more detailed analysis of the recommended approach to the various finance
functions is set out below and further detailed analysis has been produced and can be
made available if required. It can be seen that the solution provides a combination of
recommended approaches — to recognise a) those functions that should be
undertaken separately by the company (and therefore including some additional tasks
that are not currently provided) and b) those that can continue to be provided by the
council under contract for a fixed term.

The analysis of tasks and responsibilities leads to a recommendation that the company
will require its own qualified accountant, in addition to the accounting support already
provided.

4.9 Financial Services

The full range of existing and additional requirements has been assessed as follows:
4.9.1 Management Accounting and related Operational Financial Support
The role is currently provided by one member of staff whose role covers over 90% of

the functions and services that are in-scope. This would therefore continue to be
provided, either by the council or directly by the company at no additional cost.
However, given the details set out in the following paragraphs, it is recommended that
the role is transferred to the company.

55
Page 65



implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

4.9.2 Financial Accounting and Reporting

The company will be responsible for the production, publication and external audit of
its accounts and formal financial reports, including estabiishing its budget and medium
term plan. This is an additional responsibility. The accounts will have to be completed
in sufficient time to be consolidated into the council's accounts.

56
Page 66



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

4.9.3 Financial Systems

As a local authority controlled trading company, it can benefit from use at no or very
little additional cost of the council’s core financial systems. It is assumed no additional
license costs will be incurred.

4.9 4 Banking

The new company will need separate bank account with its own mandate
arrangements. It is recommended that this is done via the council's existing banker
and is unlikely to result in a significant additional cost, with rates likely to be on a par
with existing council provision. Overdraft and interest facilities will have to be agreed.
Bank accounts would have to be managed and reconciled by the company. The
company accountant (CA) would be responsible for ensuring the banking process and
controls are effective.

4.9.5 Credit Cards

The company will be responsible for the administration and management of corporate
credit card schemes and would be required to sign up to the Wales Procurement
Barclaycard scheme as a separate entity. The CA would be responsible for
establishing the processes and controls to manage this process.

4.9.6 Cash Flow and Treasury Management

This is currently completed corporately for the council but would be required to be
completed separately on behaif of the company, so is additional to existing provision.

The company’s cash flow will be assisted by the council making payment for services
provided by the company in advance (periods to be defined).

This critical role would have to be undertaken by the C A.
4.9.7 Bankline transfers

Separation of accounts will mean that bankline transfers would have to be arranged
and approved by the company.

4.9.8 Income Management

Direct debit, paying-in books, financial stationery would need to be managed by the
company.

4.9.9 VAT Management & Returns

The company will have to manage its own tax returns. The VAT element will be quite
detailed and require additional resource to that which is applied as the partial
exemption calculation and management will be more complex and should be
completed by the CA.

57
Page 67



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

4.9.10 Insurance Arrangements

As a local authority owned company, it will benefit from being able to remain as part
of the council's existing provision (and therefore cost). The current delegated budgets
for insurance premiums will be managed centrally but would have to be recognised in
both the council's and the company’s accounts. However, there is an additional cover
required for directors’ indemnity cover which is estimated to cost £6k per year.

If, over time, the activities or operations of the company were seen to be having a
direct impact on the council's claims profile and premium, the position would have to
be reviewed.

4.9.11 Payroll

The current provision is cost effective and all-encompassing. External provision could
be sourced for

CED & G ® Gl @ However, this would be for a basic

transactional/bureau service.

The payroll service includes such things as pension compliance, payroll production
and providing retirement estimates to management, to show employer costs where
there may be pending staffing changes or restructures. The service aiso includes tax
advice to both employees and management and the provision of monthly data via the
l-connect system to the Clwyd Pension Fund for the Local Government Pension
Scheme and PAYE and NI retums.

A separate payroll can be run for the company without incurring additional cost to
either the council or the company.

It is recommended that the service is provided by the council and ‘bought —back’ by
the company.

4.9.12 Payments (Accounts Payable}

In the last twelve months the Council processed approximately 6,000 invoices for the
in-scope departments (about 6% of the total invoices paid). (I

For the Trading Company to undertake paying invoices themselves it would require a
software purchase, possibly a P2P system similar to Proactis, BACS software, creditor
processing software plus of course staff time.

If the Trading Company did not continue with the Council then interfaces would be
required to the council’s financial systems for accounting and budget commitment
information.

The council ensures compliance with tax requirements (VAT, CIS and IR35).

58
Page 68



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model {ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

It is recommended the service is provided by the council and ‘bought back’ by the
company.

4.9.13 Debtors (Accounts Receivable)

Recommend continuation of existing provisions, systems and arrangements. Existing
use of the corporate debtors function is bought back by the company.

4.9.14 Grants

The council will generally be the grant recipient and will engage the company to deliver
the objectives of the grant funding on its behalf. The company will be required to
account for the grant expenditure in a way that is compliant with the grant conditions
and the council's accounting requirements.

4.9.15 Leisure Development Framework

The existing framework agreement is between the council and Alliance Leisure Ltd.
As the development partner. The agreement would remain with the council who would
engage the company to manage the framework. The council will be the recipient of
any income arising from the framework and will determine how it is applied.

4.9.16 Building Maintenance & Capital Investment

Buildings will remain the in the ownership of the council and will be leased on a
peppercorn basis to the company. Non-devolved building maintenance and capital
maintenance responsibilities will therefore be retained by the council who will manage
building condition and works through the existing processes and capital processes.

Within the allocations that will form the [evel of subsidy are the elements of devolved
revenue repairs and maintenance and these will be transferred to the company.

4.10 Financial Case: Affordability

The level of subsidy currently provided to the functions, services and management
roles in scope is £3.03m. This is based on 2018/19 budgets and forms the basis of the
value of the services that the company will provide on behaif of the council. Clearly,
the actual figure for 2020/21 will be adjusted for NNDR and VAT savings, 2019/20
inflation and savings and any other changes agreed as part of the 2020/21 budget
process. The detail of the current budgets is set out in the appendix 4E.

The subsidy for 2020/21 will assume that inflationary pressures estimated can be

absorbed by the company and therefore will not be funded by the council. The
expectation is that this will be the case in future years. There will also be a requirement
for the company to contribute to the council’s budget process each year — this wilf be
in addition to the expectation of funding inflationary pressures and will have to be
agreed annually. No assumptions for new income streams are included in the business
case but clearly if successful will help to support the company's position and allow the
potential for further council subsidy reduction.

59
Page 69



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model {ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

The company should have access to existing leisure reserves and will benefit in cash
flow terms from the council paying in advance for service provision.

A process for the company (with board approval) to submit business cases to the
council for investment will have to be developed. This will include capital investment.
Capital investment decisions will be assessed through the council's existing internal
processes and formal approval processes.

If approval is granted to establish the company, it will have to produce a business plan
over the coming months to demonstrate viability and sustainability and its ability to
deal with funding changes. As the principal funder, the council will have to recognise
and agree to changes to the delivery model as a result of changes.to funding levels.

5. Management Case

5.1 Project Plan including transition plan

The key milestones for the project are included within Appendix 5A. A detailed project
plan will be developed as part of the phase 1 work stream.

5.2 Management and Governance of the project

5.2.1 The project was commissioned by the Reshaping the Council Programme Board,
{Budget Board), which has approved a project budget with which to develop, and if
approved, implement the project.

The Budget Board was established to oversee the Medium Term Financial Plan for
the Council, and any initiatives that have potential to contribute to financial efficiencies
for the Council. The Budget Board meets monthly, and receives verbal updates
regarding the project progress, and has the authority to accept or reject any
recommendations made by the Project Board.

it is the Budget Board that will make any recommendation to DCC’s Cabinet, via the
Lead members for Finance and Efficiency & Well-being and independence
respectively. Cabinet will ultimately make any recommendations to Council in respect
of this project.

60
Page 70



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Mode! (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

The Budget Board members and advisors are:-

Programme Board members

Judith Greenhalgh Chief Executive

Graham Boase Corporate Director: Economy and Public
Realm

Nicola Stubbins Corporate Director Communities

Richard Weigh Chief Finance Officer/Section 151 Officer

Clir Hugh Evans Leader of the Council

Cilr Julian Thompson —Hill Lead Member for finance and efficiency

Attendance in an advisory capacity

Steve Gadd Chief Accountant

Catrin Roberts HR Services Manager

Liz Grieve Head of Customers, Communications &
Marketing

5.2.2 A Project Executive is in place and a Project Board has been established for the
project. The membership of the Project Board reflects the business, financial and
legal expertise required to provide direction to the project.

The decision maker is the Project Executive, and this role is supported by the Senior
User and the Senior Supplier. The Project Board is advised by the Project Manager,
and as required, other project team members or an external consultant may be asked
to provide specific advice or insight relative to their expertise. The Project Manager is
directed by the Project Board, and is responsible for coordinating the activity required
to reach the project objectives.

Project Board members currently participate fully in the Project Team meetings, which
are chaired by the Project Executive. Separate Project Board meetings are scheduled
as required.

61
Page 71




Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

The Project Board members are:-

Services

Project Board | Role Project Role

Members

Graham Boase Corporate Director: Economy and Public | Project
Realm Executive

Richard Weigh Chief Finance Officer/Section 151 Senior
Officer Supplier

Gary Williams Head of Legal, HR & Democratic Senior User

5.2.3 A Project Team has been established for the project. The membership includes
a PRINCE?2 qualified Project Manager from the Corporate Project Management team,
Project Team Leaders (PTL's) from relevant professions to provide the expertise
required to inform and complete the identified work streams, and other technical
expertise as detailed below. The Project Team meets monthly and updates are
provided from each PTL. Additional meetings are arranged if required, and each PTL
convenes their own departmental ‘task and finish group’ team meetings as required,

to progress and complete their work packages.

62
Page 72




Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related

activities/functions

The project team members and other technical advisors are:

Name

Role

Project Role

Project Team

Sian Price Project Manager (Corporate | Project Manager
Programme Team)
Jamie Groves Head of Service FAH PTL- Commercial Leisure
Lisa Jones Legal Services Manager PTL- Legal
Gareth Williams | Finance and  Assurance | PTL- Finance
Manager
Catrin Roberts | HR Services Manager PTL- HR

Sian Owen

Lead Officer Destination,
Marketing & Communication
team

PTL-PR/Communications for
the project

Michael Jones

Business Partner

PTL-ICT

Kerry Evans

Lead Business Partner -
Employee Relations

HR support

Other technical project advisors

David Lorey

Lead Officer Corporate
Property and Housing Stock

Advice regarding assets and
associated management

Lisa Lovegrove

Chief Internal Auditor

Audit advice

Paul Barnes

Business Support Manager

Contract management advice

5.2.4 Tolerances will be established for the implementation phase of the project as
detailed below:-
Project Team Leads
« Time — a minus 3 working day tolerance to the agreed timescales in
respect of all milestones.
» Cost- no tolerance agreed

Project Manager

 Time — a minus 2 working day tolerance to the agreed timescales in
respect of all milestones.
» Cost- no tolerance agreed

63
Page 73



implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

The PRINCE2 (Projects IN Controlled Environments), project management
methodology has been adopted for the delivery of all projects within DCC.

DCC uses a programme and project management software system ‘Verto', and it is a
requirement for all programmes and projects to be added to the Council’s ‘Verto Cloud’
system. Verto enables programme and project managers to monitor and manage
progress against milestones, costs and benefits and effectively manage risks and
issues. Project Managers' are required to produce highlight reports every month/6
weeks, which are authorised by the Project Executive.

Within DCC a project register, is produced for all projects in the delivery stage, (post
business casefinvestment approval), for the Corporate Executive Team, (CET), to
review on a guarterly basis. Reporting on information from the Verto system, the
project register provides information on the status of projects, which includes:-

Project delivery confidence
Project costs

Project timescales

Project risks

Project benefits

This provides CET with an awareness of any projects at risk, or those with infrequent
or inadequate reports, and the opportunity to provide further support, or challenge as
considered necessary.

5.3 Governance Structure

A governance structure has been completed for the project and shows the work
streams identified within 6.5 below. The Governance Structure is included within
Appendix 5 B

5.4 HR employment processes

5.4.1 Staff arrangements
Within the initial project development phase, it was acknowledged that the staff

members currently contracted to work at, or for, the in scope facilities functions and
activities would be transferred to the ADMC via a TUPE process.

As outlined within section 2.4.2 of the Strategic Case, some staff members are
currently contracted to carry out duties for the in scope facilities, functions and
activities as well as for other areas of FAH, and these staff members have already
been through an assessment process to determine whether they should be part of the
ADMC, or remain with the Council.

As a result of the assessment process, if the proposal for an ADMC is approved, it is
likely that the existing Head of Service for FAH will transfer to the new company. As
a result, there will need to be alternative arrangements put in place to manage the
services currently within FAH, but which are not within the scope of the Leisure ADM.

64
Page 74



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

This has given the Corporate Executive Team the opportunity to look at the distribution
of responsibilities across Council service areas, with the intention of absorbing these
amongst the remaining services. This is not a full restructure of the senior leadership
team, butin order to accommodate the residual services from FAH within existing
portfolios, there is a need to move services about where this creates a better fit or
distribution of responsibilities.

54.2 TUPE

TUPE refers to the "Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations
2006" as amended by the "Collective Redundancies and Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) (Amendment) Regulations 2014". The TUPE rules apply
to organisations of all sizes and protect employees' rights when the organisation or
service they work for transfers to a new employer.

The TUPE regulations apply if a business or part of a business moves to a new owner
or merges with another business to make a brand new employer. Commercial Leisure
would be seen as part of Denbighshire County Council that is transferring to a new
business.

When TUPE applies, the employees of the outgoing employer (Denbighshire)
automatically become employees of the incoming employer (new Trading Company)
at the point of transfer. They carry with them their continuous service from the outgoing
employer, and should continue to enjoy the same terms and conditions of employment
with the incoming employer.

If the proposal for an ADMC is agreed, then there will need to be a formal process of
consulitation with staff and the recognised trade unions.

1.4.3Terms & Conditions

Terms and conditions of employment will transfer as part of the TUPE Agreement
which offers a certain level of protection for an indefinite period. However, if the new
employer can demonstrate an economic reason for making changes then terms and
conditions can be changed post transfer.

As the preferred delivery model is a Local Authority Trading Company which would be
wholly owned by the Council, there are risks associated with the employment of staff.
As both companies would be seen as part of the same group, a member of staff in one
company could make an equal pay claim against the other company if they were in
receipt of better terms and conditions. This could be a Denbighshire employee against
the new Trading Company or an employee from the new Trading Company against
Denbighshire. Therefore, it will be necessary to stipulate in the constitution for the new
company that it is a requirement for the company to adopt all terms and conditions
applicable to Denbighshire County Council at the point of transfer and in the future
and these cannot be changed. In addition, it will need to stipulate that the company
cannot offer any enhanced terms and conditions over and above that which is offered
by Denbighshire County Council.

Terms and conditions of employment include the grade and salary that an employee
receives immediately prior to transfer. The outgoing employer cannot make any

65
Page 75



implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activitiesfunctions

changes to these in readiness for transfer. The incoming employer cannot make any
immediate changes to these posts transferred. However it is inevitable that there will
be changes fo job duties and responsibilities post transfer, and these will be subject
to the normal process of job evaluation within the new company, but using the job
evaluation scheme and salary scales as determined by Denbighshire County Council.

This will ensure that both companies are sufficiently protected against any future
claims, and provide reassurance to the staff transferring, that they will not be at a
detriment following the transfer.

5.4.4 Pension
Occupational Pension Schemes do not automatically transfer under TUPE although
the new employer shoutid offer a comparable scheme.

There is provision within the LGPS for Admitted Body Status (ABS) which allows
contractors, who take on local authority services or functions with any specific groups
of transferring employees, to offer transferring staff continued eligibility for the LGPS
during the contract. ABS provisions enable members of the LGPS to remain in that
arrangement and continue to accumulate benefits under their existing local
government pension scheme arrangements whilst their employment is transferred
between different contractors and as long as they remain employed in connection with
the delivery of the outsourced service.

The intention is that the new trading company will have admitted body status into the
{ ocal Pension Scheme which would mean that there would be no change to the
transferring staff's pension scheme.

5.4.5 Process for staff remaining with the Council

Since December 2018 SLT has been kept updated of the project progress and the
potential associated staffing impacts, and there has been informal consultation
undertaken with the Heads of the remaining services and the remaining Managers
from the FOH service.

In March 2019, a Consultation Document was circulated to staff that are due to remain

with the Council, detailing the proposed arrangements for the SLT structure. Staff have
been provided with an opportunity to feedback any comments by 29t March 2019,
and in addition, a ‘drop in’ session has been provided for staff who wish to have further
discussion, or prefer to feedback comments face to face.

Staff have been made aware that the proposal outlined in the Consultation Document
is dependent on the project proposal for an ADMC, (and all of the in scope facilities
functions and activities), being approved and implemented. If the Leisure ADM does
not go ahead then Facilities, Assets and Housing will remain in its current form.

5.5 Resources and workforce development

5.5.1 Where possible ‘in house' resources will be utilised to deliver the project, and
in this respect further departmental capacity has been made available to create
task and finish groups for each Project Team Lead. Some discreet work

66
Page 76



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
aclivities/functions

5.5.2

9.5.3

packages have been procured externally where there is not the specialist
knowledge in house, or where a further opinion is required, and this
arrangement will be extended as necessary if the project proposal is approved,
and it moves into the implementation phase.

Discussions with colleagues from neighbouring authorities has advised that in
practice, the delivery timescales can be quite challenging. The PTL's have
needed to be realistic when planning the work, and are mindful to highlight
when additional resource is required, before it becomes an issue.

Further to the approval of the business case the following 2 implementation
phases have been identified:-

Phase 1 (completion of outstanding items to inform the investment decision)

* Completion of gateway approvals prior to full implementation. (This
phase will include the completion of the Financial plan for the LATC, the
detailed project delivery plan, refined benefits realisation plan, the
completed estimate of the cost saving to the Council when all costs have
been confirmed, and confirmation of the one off cost to complete the
project and establish an operational LATC).

Phase 2 (Post investment decision)

» Establishment of the Local Authority Trading Company (LATC)

« Preparation of the Contract documents and specification

» Mobilisation and completion of the transition arrangements to an LATC,
for the in scope facilities, functions and activities

» Mobilisation of the residual staff arrangements

Chinese Walls

During both the implementation phase and post implementation of the project,
there be negotiation and work undertaken by DCC staff acting on behalf of the
Council and the LATC. Where a department of the Council acts on behalf of
both parties, different officers will be allocated, one working for the Council and
one for the LATC. Chinese wall protocols will be developed and implemented
to create an information barrier to prevent exchanges or communication that
could lead to conflicts of interest.

5.6 Stakeholder management plan

The following partners and stakeholders have been identified, and an analysis of the
interest and influence in respect of each has been completed:-

5.6.1

Partners
» Rhyl Town Council (financial contribution to SC2)
¢  Welsh Government

67
Page 77



implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

o Sport Wales funding for Strategic Leisure
o Tourism Investment Support Scheme, (T!SS), funding support to S2
o Vibrant and Viable Places funding for the Pavilion/1891
o Transport Grant for bike ability courses
Arts Council for Wales (Capital and revenue funding for the Craft Centre and
arts in the community funding)
Health Partners- e.g Public Health Wales who fund the GP referral scheme)
Alliance Leisure
Secondary schools collocated on sites, who have service level agreements
with Leisure
Liangollen International Music Eisteddfod (LIME) who own Llangollen
Pavilion and lease it to DCC
Natural Resources Wales- Regulator

6.6.2 Stakeholders

FAH Staff — those in scope who are directly affected

DCC Staff indirectly affected ( E.g. those in corporate roles who support
FAH)

SLT Members

All other DCC staff (who have an interface with the in scope staff and
services)

Lead Members for Wellbeing and Independence and Finance and
efficiencies respectively

Cabinet Members

Council Members

Member Area Groups

City Town and Community Councils relative to the location of in scope
facilities

Reshaping the Council Board Members

Project Board Members

Trade Unions

Leisure Card Holders

Members of the public participating in GP referral scheme

Generai Public (residents and visitors) that use facilities

Sports Clubs and organisations who hire and use facilities

North Wales Bowls Club

Artists exhibiting works and running courses at Ruthin Craft Centre
Tenants wo sublet space within facilities, (Flying Start, Gusto in Nova, pCcC
Registrar- Rhyl Town Hall)

Schools (primary, secondary and special schools via Head
teachers/Business Managers)- School use of facilities

DCC Residents

Key Media Contacts (Daily Post, Free Press, Rhyl Journal)

68
Page 78



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model {ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

* Welsh Government/National Government- industry standards regulators.
» Wales Audit Office

The analysis of the partners and stakeholders can be found within Appendix 5C

5.7 Benefits realisation plan

The benefits realisation plan for the project seeks to capture the broader benefits to
DCC, utilising in the main the existing key performance indicators used by Leisure
Services. The LATC's progress in respect of benefits realisation will be monitored
monthly, and measured quarterly at the Contract Monitoring meetings between the
Council and the LATC. The benefits have been categorised as follows:-

5.7.1

5.7.2

5.7.3

Financial benefits

As referenced in Section 2.7 of the Strategic Case, the cashable benefits for
the Council are the savings that the Council will make in respect of NNDR and
VAT, and the potential for the LATC to generate income from other commercial
endeavours.

Community/Partnership Working

As resources become more limited, there needs to be more emphasis on
partnership working to ensure that resources are used wisely within
organisations, to achieve the best outcome for the residents who are being
supported.

Equally it is recognised that some residents are either unable, or chose not to
partake in activities within the ‘in scope’ facilities, hence it is important that a
range of services are delivered within communities to promote the wellbeing of
residents, and resilience within communities.

Local Economy
There is an opportunity to attract new entrants fo the Leisure Industry from

within Denbighshire, through the offer of apprenticeships, traineeships or work
placements.

The goods and services procured by the LATC represent an investment in other
businesses and organisations, and it is wished to capture the investment made
within Denbighshire businesses.

At the Craft Centre for instance works of art and craft are sold in the retail
gallery, which in turn supports the sustainability and growth of these individuals
and businesses, and it is wished to quantify where possible the contribution that
the LATC will make in this respect.

69
Page 79



Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

5.7.4 Quality
The quality of the customer experience is important, and is a factor in the ability
to retain customers and attract new custom. The Council wishes to ensure that
the quality of the provision is sustained, and participation rates maintained.

The staff survey which is carried out biannually in the Council will be adapted
and extended to staff who have been transferred to the LATC, to capture their
level of satisfaction. It is intended that this will continue to be measured
biannually.

The outline Benefits Realisation Plan can be found within Appendix 5D.

70
Page 80



Jewso) Jpd e Ul JUaWssasse Yyaea Jwigns ases|d "AJenuer ul sajeq Jauige) pue Suyaiig 1aulge) o)
Bujod a1042q ‘6TOZ Asenuer ;g uo pieog 123png ay3 yIm paleys aq 01 JaLig 199014 Y3 3|geUR 0 SewIsLIY) 310439 JUaLWSsasse ay) 31ajdwiod 03 spaau pieog
199{01d 3y} se paAIadal A||ny21eld 3q ||IM SUOISSILIANS J3|11ed Aue '§TOT Jaquiadag w¥T AqQ pa131dwod 39 0) paau s)uUaLLSSASSE (|B IS[IYM JBY] D0U 35E3|d

" YN ACE RIS SIqUap @ 92 0PAO|| UEIS
Pejuod aseald paiinbail s ouessisse Jayung J) - passasse Fuiaq BaJE BY) 0} BAIIE[D) Paje.dialul 3g O} PIsU J(IM JO a|qeoidde aq |je Jou
Aew suoipas awos ‘peouq aynb s passasse Sulaq suoidUNy pue sanijidey o aSuel ayy se ‘palinbai [1e3ap a3 40 3sIApE 01 SD1|e31 LI papn[oul U3ag aAeY $I0N

"22)/u3s Jo Ayijioe) p21edado |1DuNo) B uleWSI PINOYS YIIYM PUB INQY Ue UIYUM 3q PINOYS YdIym Inoqe uo|siIap
pauwliojut ue axew o} paeog afoid Y1 9jqeua 03 ‘INQY ue ulyum ag 0} [euajod Bulaey e payIuap] UG IABY YIIYM SUOIUNS PUB SANN|II.Y | |8 JO
Wuawssasse 3y} 03 Yoeoudde pasipsepuens e apiroid 03 paje}|od uaaq sey Jewnio} siy3 '2dods U} 3q PINOYS SUORUNY pue S3jIIe) Y2ym dulw313p 03 JapJo U

"yaeoidde [e1313WwW0I e Woly UG 0} ‘adInaS Buisnoy pue

S1955Y $31|19€d UIYLM AJUDLIND 3UB YOIYM SIUBIUIAUOD Jijgnd pue uonduny Suues)d Suping ayy 10} jequanod g Aew 219y3 1eY) palyIuapl sem 3 uonippe
ul -juasedde se Jou sem 1y, 3y) oljosiod aunsia] SuSIX3 BY) UIYIM SUOIIIUNY pue san|1oey (enualod 13430 Joy seasaym ‘uonesado pue JuawaSeuew Jayy
0} Yyoeoudde |e12JawWod B WOy 1J2u3q PINoM Yaiym sai|ioey jo sadAy ayy ase Asyy Jo/pue Juawuieaus pue a.nsia| i SN304 21aY3 se yanwosul ‘Auedwon
[3pow AJ3A)ap SAlIRUISYE U UlyNM 31, 03 paueadde oyojuod aunsiay duiisixa ayi yo Ayurolew ayy ‘prsfoud gy ay1 Jo adods ay] Sumalnal Usym

"asodind siy3 104 pajedojje s| ey Sulpuny ayy JO SILIENSUOD BY UIYNM ‘SIUIPISSI J0 suoneJidse pue suofierdadxa ay) Joj Suipiaoid se jjam se ‘spasu
3.N3ny pue JU3.NJ Yjoq 0] puodsal pue ALY} 01 3|ge a1e Aay) Bulinsua ‘sadialas AsY 1oy ainyny 3|qeiA e aundas 01 si 19afoud N QY 3yl Joj 3AIRIqO By

Wauo)
(Owav} ‘ANVJINOD TIGOW AY3AITIA FALLYNYILIY IHL Ni {LON ¥O) NOISIYIINI 304 SNOILINNA '8 SIILITIOVS 40 ININSSISSSY

ajejdwa] 3uidoog

suojouny pue sajliAlde pajejas ainstaj snolea 1oy ‘(NAv) ‘19POIN AJanag sanew)y pasodoud vz xipuaddy

Page 81



¢ 3woduy astol 03 A1qo fo ssof
D Aq 10 310w Buils0d 13yNa AqQ ‘ainssa.d 3126png 0 31p3.1D Aow oy s103f maf 3xau ay3 uj buiyiAuo Jo a1omo nof 2y
231013uaB uondunf/AN0nf 1N0A s30p Aup Ji SUW0IU] IDYM

¢saunssald Aipyabpng aoipaunt Aup anoy noA op io 12bpnq inoA uiyum 3)psado o3 abouow nod og 192png

(71 01 pa10{a1 Jo 210mD 340 noA 10y} sjudWnbas bupauadj Aub 10N

‘(1dap 171 5,00 Aq J0U ji) pauipjuiows 3.0 A3y moy Jo spoiap yaim Jay1aboy

‘pasn a1omyos /suwaisAs bupoiado dfidads ‘swajl propubis-uou Aup ajou pup ‘pasn 13} ayi fo siivIap f311q apinoid
JU0NIDLadO 3] A0YYIIDS 0 PAsN Yi0M3u DI Y1 5| 40 HHOMI3U 3D 3y} Uo Apoof ays si 12

SI03A OT-§ 1X3U JaN0 SQu3Wainbay
£5aNssy JuaLna Auy

SSuIpuiow oym

¢PISDA[ 10 paUMD

Spasn aip juatudinba pup sajaiyan J0YM

(ajqeadde y1) uawdinba /sapIyaA

fuonaunf

JAunoof siyy 23013do 0} 13p10 Uf ‘uonoys1baj ym suplduwod Jo suia) uj s133dsp buiffoys tfirads Aup a3yl ary
£31qoyal a10fyiom ay) st “ffols up)al pup 3nidas 03 Asoa i S|

-app.b Apd pup $3j0. 113y} ‘Siaquiaw ffois fo saquiny

Juiyels

Jsaipoq Aiopinbai ay) 3o oym os Ji puo ‘uonaadsuy so/puo bupuady 03 133lgns adjalas InoA si
21nspaui NoA op S.1d) IDYM

éuonodpivind Jo [aAa] ayl i 104M

$PUNOQ 3w} 3 5] JO SNONUIRUOI UOISIA0ID 3IINI3S Y] S

£AI03Nn1015 UOISINGId 301435 3] S|

S WOYM 03 pup papinoid 310 $331A135 J0YM

uoisiaaad 331AIRS

Zpauoplioddp 10 paiajatt gns
saiddns 240 0s fi pup ‘siay10 Aq paipiado 310 Yo1ym sanian{ Ju30]po YIm paipys swasAs buipling 3yl Jo Auo a1y
¢54034 0T -5 1Xau 3y} Jano asodind 40f 3if UIDW31 0] 3} JOf J2PIO Ul Y10M I)3WS0D/ Jup2iftubis paau Ajpaof ayy saod

JSUL2IU0I § 1§ 1 /sBUILLI0I1IOYS IDIPIILL 3134] 2D IO ‘asodind ayz Jof 230nbapp Ajpoo.q Auficof 3y} s
&a20jd Ul y15/3s0al b 313y} 51 05 fI pup ‘Auipd paiyy b 03 pasn/13] -qns Ajof ays jo yiod Auo st

Zabosn o susanjod -uonoiado fo sinoy 3y} 3ip JOYM

cAupionf ayy suouow puo $a30.13do ‘sabououl oYM

‘saonds jpusaIXa ‘sa4nanays “sbuipping b°a ‘R a3y Jo spipap apinoid

{a1qeayjdde j1) adaias a3
JaAlap 03 pasn Ayl|ioe; Aue ja speyaq

ajua) aunsiay unny 6'a

.passasse
Bupaq Anpel/ uonaung aweN

Page 82



sweyp Aseg

Ys1am pieyary

aseog weyeio

ajep 3 uonesoyIny

pieog 128loi4 Y3 Aq pajs|dwod aq 03 UoIIS SIY|

JJeUOIIEl °F UO|IBPUALULIOIFY

: paj9jdwiod ajep 13 sfioyiny

"JNQY UD uiylim uoisnpul Aq

paaffp aq pino3 10y} 233 ‘as1iadx3 01 SSIIID 'S3j0J PAIDYS ‘SDIID dIIAIIS SSOIID SAMIGISUOSaL IADY Hois araym
U0i1013pISu0I "$331A435 jonpisad Jo buiffois: B3 ‘abuoys Aup yiim pajoiosso suoipoydus Butffols Aup Japisuo?
£2Jmnf 3y} Ut passaIppo aq asay} ULd 153G MoK

‘faiqisuodsai Ajjpqoyb puo

‘abonbupy ysiam BuiaLyy puo 210N JUDIGIA SIHUNLILIOI 3AISaY02 “Apjonba Uaiyapay ‘asuaipisal ‘Aisadsoad)
apinb o so Juawssasso odwy Buraqiiam a3 Jo spaib ;£ 3y} Buisn Buiagyam uo spodul Aup OS[D J2PISU0)
£21043do noA Joyy uoiyzunf/Auonf

3y} U0 SI0dWI! [DIUBWUOLAUS 10 (053] oI1BojoUYIa} 1DI3I30S IHI0U0IS ediN0d Aup fo 310MD NoA Aty
“24mnf ay3 Wi paboupw/pasiuido

34 UD3 35341 MOY pUD LU01IDIO 10K Jo 5103143 PUD $313UNLIOddO SISSAUNDIM SYIBUSLIS 343 MOY INOGD Nuiy)

{alwaJ s,)1pUNED 3yl Uy Suluiewal
40 JNQY UE UIYUIM LOJSR|IUl
3y} 0} 2ANL|24) SUOD pue soug

5}{D13p 3pin0.d 0s fi pup ‘suoodyddp Junib anuanas Buipuad Aup 313y3 a1y

¢5UOINIPUOD PUD SULL3) JUDLD 3if133ds Aur 313y} 2D pup ‘asodind joym Jof ‘uonpinp

DYy 10f pup Wnuup 13d 3n[DA 3Y] ‘WOYM OF S| 'u0NOSIUDDIO 13410 Aup Woaf Buipunf Juoib anuanal an3al nok og
‘s|t013p apino.d os fi pup ‘suonodijddo Juoib joydod Buipuad Aub aiayy aiy

& 6uot moy 1of pun ‘suonIpuod pup swiia} Jupsb [p)idod

03 133/qns 1135 NoA 340 0s fi pup 's33550 1N0A Jo Aup fo 103dsas uj Buipunf Jupib (o}dos wosf payfauaq nok snoy

snyejs Juelo

Page 83



40U 10 DT

SAVAOE/SUORIUNY ‘Say|ey 2d03s U) JO} PIOYSAIYL|

0 BLIZ1D 3yl M4 OF pajles
T BJ3II Y1 YUM 11 3Y) INOGQE SUDIIEAIBSII ILIOS)
[4 ePal 3yl saaw Ayl
£ €131113 Ay yum s1y Ajened
¥ B1I330 Y Yum 1} 21ge1daddy|
S BLRIIT YT UM 14 JUD|j2I%]
025 A20)0pOyau UOHIENEA]
L 1 S Q 1 INAIIG UOIEUWIOU] Ajlwuey
6 T [4 ] T {211ua3 321BO) aNUID Je3p|y) paresda)|
4 T [4 4] T $3IUBUIAUDD N|Gnd g Buiueap) Suiping
6 s E 0 T Ji0mauielf Juawdo[PAdg 2Insa|
8 T £ £ T 3insial _Bmmo&-
s 1 T [ z awnuep g Inogzeld)0
1T T S 0 5 2nsiaY MNdajely
LY 5 L g E {4 2482 725 "T681) FuIa1e) (B:2IAWWO;
ST H S 0 5 2/N5137 [21Jaw o’ 104 Joddng ssauisng g suonesad
ST 5 £ s [4 uolaeg uaj[oBuel
97 5 £ £ I€ 313U YRID unpIny
91 5 ¥ 5 [4 {1EH umo] JAyy
07 S S 5 5 $|MOQ SI|BM YHON
2] [ S £ L4 UC[1UNY SJUIAD 1§ "BUALY SIU3AT |AYY
81 S S g £ a11eay) UOI|IABY |AYY
81 5 € [ 5 05
91 3 £ 5 5 BAON uAle)sdid
0z S S 5 S BIU) 2NSIAT UAIRISANY
0Z 5 S s s 3J1u2) 2IN5137 JAyy
0z g 5 S 5 anua]) ansia ydesy 1y
ot S S < 5 anuan aunsia] ydiquag
0T 5 g S 5 31U 2INSIBT UIPINY
[¢]4 S S g G BIIUITY FINSIDT USMIOD
0z El S S 5 AU 3insia uAjodue)
VL0 sBuiaes Apxajdwody FEIET] Auedwo) uoipung fAuoey
13yuny 10} adodg Joype| LYA Jo/pue HONN| 24ns17 € 0} 330
aaaye o3 Ay

wpiew Bunoos ispuawssasse Suidods WY

SUOIIOUN) PUE SHINAIIOE PaLBJaI 2ANSD| SNOUEA 1O}

"TNQY) 1PPoW Auaniag eaneusally pasodold g2 xipuaddy




PIT WS1 01 Jun [10134 '8 180 03 DG B JUDINDISIY , 4 4 A

14015 BUIAIS oy A

-

#x M

Ajuo asn jooyrs . A
aceds jo j9|qng

[00Y2s Y31y yum Vs

uun ejay

e3se apeuawoid Jooping

s/woo. Bullaa

>

g3.Je Jeq/iueine)say

.

a11ua) Aeld Yos

[ood Sunuuwms

lilem Suiquuys|

oIpms ayig

5/1n0) ysenbs

wooy
Juuies) jeuondung

>

oIpns
Buimes) Aysuaau) y2iH

A

A

olpnis

A

A

NS SSauY4

azs Z/1

DEA

A

DEUSZ/T

azs g1

Youd sayjeam ||y

« M

a

rakakraks

A

A

s«
A

= M

safydid ssein
wniseuwis

BAON
ulyeysaid

A
anua)
3ansan

uAyeysald

A2 il i d i d i

asua)
ains}a)

Ay

A
U
ainsps

ydesy s

A
aaa)
2Insja
yaiquag

A
anua)
ainsja
uiIny

anua)
ainsja
uamIo)

A

AU
ansian

uajjodueq

[1ex suods
sanijey

JZ xipuaddy

Page 85



| I— LY e nm.M.__nT u..u.n.-._r.im._.
‘wond@39Y 1904U02 FE08yd UCHOWLGIN JAN] 104 J9A0 B35 50910 SESSOP 8u JO UoutISap B 04
PURYO UDD QIS JONS - 4 UOSSES X024 JiD «

+o_.u&omﬁﬁou2nb§uq<uoucaach_u:a§§ !
] u«guhéﬁgﬂggs‘tg.oﬂbﬁEﬁ%BEgé PIMOGO
] B@%Eggggzﬁgnﬂu%gna&uog_ﬂﬁsgo_ustbmvdmt

. e = )
SNIDARD U DD ¥ WO §OOL U0 LBTRUIVY UON -

T 4_4[‘{

-t UWARALY @D 0D

[wweovorwos s [P L 0]

| uwogys-woos

#WOOTQY U000 & 18Mm0d @IPAD dnasDy

*Bunio0q samnbas 5SSO - #

B

...I_.1 e —— - —
30 Cudo Jets

| #WOSlé-wooEd
e e

b (%

sxalizuujﬁc'mu'ﬁ_n

(HHERRERRRHE

B R e

uotDuoR] £593 wooot ~uxdoo's | B | ¥
- — ——— oy s - waiood | & | ¥ P 11 W
woos -woood | B T Ty EE—— - ] QT Yy
wsrg-woooe | A | X |00l dHonbyl ewdsig-wdsis a . as
WOOE - WL | ¢ | & + ©Oqung caby Ao wayR - wes k' I ol
s wosoe-wasol | B | I ; of » WwAgY's - W0, “ T T auo] ¢ darg
wooo® ~wdgof | N m E......TEaﬂhi.u. n =
Fd ¥ WAg@IRO a0 | # ey ;- w0 o N on3@ ¥y
| M.:- e .m. wage:¢ - sy FREEL L )
4 ° W E T i 4 -E&n.nuEﬂno.ﬂﬂ d| wmod@apiD
Yy | P 189m0 @URAD) GnouD -Enﬂ.._-E&ﬂ“ Yy n oKD
7 ol o W eque || woo( - waooy | | 88 so1084
3 m T EnS.TESoa.ﬁ h oBoy, |
ﬁ £-Wwdo'y | ...u._.-. soupd o
v v Y RN U0 sung sBe - wdag'y ny AL
v | o 10 y s = wdigg' N wxos
il 4 - wda0y ¥ sunpamod
¥ V | o| eenowshoomns] -uwiy | Y [T eerkoamir
3K [ ] -wds ¥ oo Anuo) @A choes
e
3k ¢
IE Al
9
¥
¥

9
S
1]
0 € - wda'z Bt )
- — | e ]
Z = wdoo't L 9 umoi-ynoup spuso,
'8 uoonN T ] @0quN] onby
6 o - wouC ol ¥ o1
k. i ~ oBoy - u0Es ol .Luznao_ e haiging
wosy ¢ -wooce | P | - wooc'y ¥ whp@eois dnom |

|

!

|

410Z 3unf 40g — AIPNUBT puZ dWWBIBOIY $855D]D 35(218X3 dnoi) |InpY

QZ XIANIddY



APPENDIX 20D

105 pUB 1w “08) g UO Brrao] MESECE M Aopihy
FRER 1RCe @ Denamy myps ALNOw SHpon cag soinas of xh 8 ol ¥ uogPuUoS i . - sung
g LA T T A S s e
By pue senExe Buyxinss-Apon pawdie SeuRguea 1) “(pgs Suon sy sy 50 8;d00d mou 1905
22 01 0130 Ouiuo), @Rz BuUpcinos Apoy 0 SAUKD | U - Bupun) @ QU7 puB #3;5908 o) Aunoddd Ay B8 GNSET &Y W0 KEM Peded sl v 1End 1 O UBdD SERD WU SEPIS Iy - WA, ATy
100 Wtg s e LB O pcu 1104 UeL semod (o8 WBsELY it D (BUsousyd (UB $9e) ORI P
o Haey 40 dn Penq ") wng Gl Bupeooy A nod | o Baues I PRy LN MArep EEQETNY “T1] 1D Neasiiy Buipngsuy - sueqerey
£uUr uoweBny; ‘rfunioy VRS BN THES 10 RURSAY J00X8 of RO Kyl “HD WS, i Pny0m DUR 10 POTRCRLI BAN J9L0 SS0U) LIS S3UBBc pUS om)jaaces s Oizen
3;859:“!9!!&3:!5“8!%25:?505&& . e e = ?Bﬁa - n..n_a:hnahx .
. FEAD SAOUTUS BAOTRATIES PRy
i vt v o Giusns Apog seauday try Duuen [Easey 1 Wiy LeRgs-sull AuGns pUS Sousw Le (Bupsrsg, ey Avenn-ybe) LiH - LiH
sapanxd spund @ wd Cubuagmp ‘Ouprdsy) Aoy pus esumeq ybulgs Rupownx Amaarzeg pus eculieq ‘e ‘sseuy ‘Agpoets 5103 “suoy 858w sanxhis 0f B TP
PR PUB K BTG (SUOSRIQA PUNCE) RIUBI PUT (S0MMSNS X)058uS) RN [ 7] géggilisigiggi UM Sopaep 1 DU Rl mama
g-%aiitﬂiiﬁ.&f ‘argsod im Apog ) O S8y Hceep e TUSYIDUNITE PUT SUMPDUS] TIERERT PG UOY v - Buyorens pur Aynqop Apog uny
SpEriL i adeys Apoq soumm ey Aeplamas wsoped
_gsgsg_ﬁigin!.gifi & Apae sa0xckiy OF dey [UR |BUIRIITY OB SSEI XS Y sugggnﬂlgfiaiib.g
“SHEyd pum efio), jo sagioud P ey Jenelal Tpung SEato, - sapaeSon i.isi!iﬁi-ﬁ!fl&‘gg!ﬂa&!si&.ﬂuggé.ﬁiﬂs,g
FIOUY R 204 STEING W0 oM O Al SywAD 000 -_-!.___.58.8.!_u.cﬁls!!nhsi_.__Bluine:._Ei.ﬁt_lﬂgﬁwaiﬁﬁﬁﬂ-iluﬂ.niﬁllsghﬂ
R
Pus ssapus eyt eprh 8:3 PeanQr3nd Syl HOMLS PUB RARLAOW LSSEIS] CB0 o1 Byl 1q AQ INCKIoM ADOT 80U SIRLLTN BT - 8500 @ A voddng BAxe upm 0K $amacxd ssudinks suplsys) ADouos uostd sxme R ogeply DUt s e Cuumn gra) - snoxs suiery
icopcs 130d £y OF 91 G SEPOYED LING O APOG L) BAY) ARG UOESE DURNTS JRTENE Y Bl 10
e e ™ V1 i S s el T e g._al..sbs Ay pur ‘U IR0 03 “AREQPaIY IBUBKS “RFIOSEACTA) BR T ESIAL 10 T20 38 Duacudin ;o esodind sy
Suom el ¥ 20y sockus Bullees of Buppo, ‘SEEP DURIRER RANIL SN0NGRY 8 20 SSURISEE PUB SSPUNCIAI 'dIyS 10 Uc: Sufuaresy - Simanors), Y POUDED o ¥n0 syl giﬁp_i!sgfassog!ii;.ﬁﬂo&.-uau_.an_F
UIHD U SEMDUs "Phiuess 800 Bugiing U0 GUITNOG) INMUOM SJ03 [PEIMUN Y — L0 WL R.
wanees el
PROF IR0 L) S 1 LOTRADOUW 310k SER0.5Y SORaexd Buadid 4p0q peralliny yam ssaow Asus sopdy ©f 4138 D LORRUGUIOD ¥ - suo L, Apog w0 - - - . SiRAs ST g
; Ol SUoRdD yhw SVONETS PUTINPUS BEy pur Bupury Budd s 7 Buusg Hqouem adus 10 Supstuoy) ‘sausuucped
i o i oA ) e e B MAIONR 1001 ok Dy 50y 52 AureTs WewaACs PUE B ST “ABMES SO O GO i ST P S s o
!E_F..&l_ﬂ-.ggvaSli.gﬁuaaiezi-l!ﬁiflai-npac_..u_-._.-..u.o_.h
AOTRpounY wRI LSy PUR Wi 0Ty Mol ST 5 [ .
o TP by e A ol 16 ieded Soide 8 24 i YR 0 By - . WA 9 20) SQELNG PUR LN FRAUE) TIK0M EWCUY-U0U 8529 ¥ 20y supoduum e 3 Bugen ssep Ll uy ]
PuFba £ Akuons seudny 5
1A - . A — o e O por y: P Apoq Sup 1T PUe SU0L 01 KFGAD PLY LI Bupsn SSIP 1B M0y v - suoiipog
Amae Bupuniyns Jnod o POXEE OB S0SSRS (P0G ‘snbrape;
IS Lhp INCEUOM RIISEANELRD B SSUU0D DaBulry It upng "anbiLapal S4008 U0 ST UMM TSR ¥ B BLEDIA i WANS - Hd WS TIEH0N {48 S3RAT 130 Sursonipuco ADOq FRISAO) TRR0 1905 PUR 00 U B 990 *AUING SUCIED DA 0o - 1yTog
Ui APOg Ik SUOTBLNKLICY daTT MOR0L AN 53
W 2 a0 $U0RCC Inonsom i) PUR ACT] “SERUY) IRAAD [R20UG0 SOA0XkD PUT U1 SITERGR £ 50 SIGELND €01 GERUGND 10 LU0L HETRD Y - suny § 4G “BUP0S FII0N CAED SATIER pus BusrBsus ue Buwsoped
SN 100y XNBU QM RIQUINL P TN ML SUBOSIN] GRARg eEPa dnodl o LDEIKIDR W AMOEAICT PUB MOU Y - @ BMNOQ
ERA R I 01 LOAD SU0R00 110 s0m 14 Putt mOn)  EERUN FERURD Seadudkay fg BEER DUl [ - S5uly daig Yast il Eifonn
o0 BT (80]
.-II_-Ilnilaunogﬁ.liln._g!i!ﬂ.ﬁlﬂﬂ%ﬂu!!afuﬁf& ¥ PUT &% RIOSuny By uogrpunoy Buaxs v peng ‘amisod Apog pus UTELD U U0 Dup) “SMUED papeoy
gggggzgiiggagziis.g%
om0 P IAXIS " Pich] 'ABAL ‘STESER UORINPGI SPNpA ST
"BB00U3 NOA §8 KNG 0 Ave 59 Dugeped sy omw 0y Bq “ApOG S SRS PR Sucy
0k U0 SIUITITRI (OO NOA "4 "SUMOP-000 ‘SR ‘SRS “SIUAPES O AP 'dnum, ‘FeSTd CIOM yinaan BUSoR) ap N8 SN o0 IS Reptas uy uapluens o 0! 57 EP0CRq U S53qaung Bupn senow 1oecuwnd oy pue YO Bursquico ¢5o Du v -1 Apog
RICIOUTE POSOAUE UB SN0 0f SELZINS AN SNOBA (N BUOD 08 SPITER Bursks J00puy - @AY ANGID | oRNTg
10190 puden BurEarpte e 10 120w PUB *BUIIE- AP0 *OUNORIPUOS-OIRMD 5,184 Micyam
gf!ﬂ-fii.glﬂgi!igl’giggg
10 100 500 R 15V SRRt s el $T80 syt Petp eq e Buntes lusuwdnbe 0 treder Aunw 1ng gﬁg.ﬁgiigigiigﬂgfgiﬁifﬂi&
SFEP PYSIQ IBQITY ¥ ARBUrsopiud 8 1§ SRS UDR R OB fady - stmod ust (E0UBAS LD STI00) B 1 SSEP EUTRSR BKTIRY B 1 SN - IO .39_!.P__uape_i.u!!ﬂif!ﬁggi!.s—laﬁglﬂg.oziﬂi&
'Pece 18 masu
0k B OF PRYIEA B0 U PUB QR AN BR0:0M Dupoy; ‘Suppen Syosesopes 10) SURpein g Gursn GI0ds e At HEeUeq (o.um D es ssor ISRERIONE 50 SUOKRR! SARTSO NS Bk OEIy) ‘0200 PUE TRUWOPGE
!-:Eggﬂsiﬁsi!ﬂiﬁn-giﬂ_ﬁaﬁzn-ﬂufuﬁ.i-&s&sﬂlutu agggfiii.sgﬁggiéisgnsgggg
SUR $90.0W S9RSL 04 10 %50 DU 828 104 WIpom 4203 (Y SR T FY Peyea pue AU s EEER Dupmos J0DRE LB 10 St ey - Dumogy P puty AP 10 SABLTE LED oA U AR SRy 5 ArEuomn PUR maswsiow 1o S5 e o8 ‘e o Wy Cueeg K ¥ - 10 snby
b
S5y BUua 3o A0 J igijogigfigggigs!igﬂflﬁsg
R e vy .B..!.n.w-E!gggignﬂilaﬂliiﬂﬁfsaiﬂnﬁﬂig 51 SOOI “IISLIBACL BB S IATOR 10 DU B UO peseg UKD s 1] SENIRD OF WETRATDS JRERDE Syl 5 o BSEE IAIC Y - SINOL) enby
Islizginﬂif!-ﬁnﬂ!g-iﬂﬂgiliii&ﬂi.glllcﬁ
Seeshusi) Wyl Kim ¥ vt s00d Ourgim Poufisep Am:oeds Supn UG DOSEQ 1) 180y ASunoo-5sa: o) sunies Buues sy ¥ Aaubuo ses Bupges. 5oy “Ouscl, pLE QupIORINCS
SRAN TRy PUB 9008 EB 10y Spune pUR ELA] ByI UO ASSO BFAD 9F #B.S:_r. uaauiisvux !.ggihggigni.-bgiuiiq.ig
.Il.ﬂ.gtnn.llaulllnnﬁssig}ilisggigfﬁftg ‘pamgin
$08400 1 BURPEIG LR IUSUISACL "&ati$0d “RRREEE A90q SAdadius &) EEpCiL) ISP S TUSDEUBNT PUR SURADUS ‘SEUNAAS SEBR - SINE 8._!.lnals_-a-.mtnﬁigiﬁigzgﬁagg.;.gsgnif.n..dnl«




AeQ s ieaj MIN pue Aeq Suixog

‘Aeq SEWNSHYD UBY) J3YI0 SAEPIOH yueg ||e J0) udo SuleWR) PIYM ‘eA0N uAlelsald syl jO uoidaixa ay) yiim paso)d aJe sa1ly1de} ||y -sAep|OH yueg

-1 S3ION
0081 oo'al 0081 008l 008} 0081 o8l
-0€'60 -0E°60 -0£'60 -0£'60 -0E'60 -0£°60 -02'60 Jeg g 3je)
00’8l 00'gl o0'8L 00’8t 00'et 008! 008t
-00°'60 -00°'60 -00°'60 -00'60 -00'60 -00°'60 -00°60 Ae|d 3InUIAPY
0081 00'8L 00'LZ 00’12 00’12 0012 00'Le
-0£'80 -0E'80 -0E"90 -0£'00 -0£'90 -0g°80 -0¢'00 aNg ssauld
eAON tAieisaid
00’12 0022 00'¢e 0022 00Ze
pesol) peso|D -0£'0L -0£'01 -0E'8t -0E'BL -0£'01 aJjua) ansia] uAiessalg
Y4 00°21 ¥ 00'ze 0022 00'zZ 00¢e
-08°80 -00'80 -51'80 -51°80 5190 -51'90 ~51'80 aqua) NS AYY
00'ct 00'ES o0's2 00'zZe 00'Z2 0022 0022
-0£'80 -0£'80 -5H'90 -00'SL 59’00 -00'Gt -5b'90 aqua] ns|a) ydesy IS
00'8L 0E'SL 0c0e 00’12 00’12 o0'lz 00'L2
-0D°'60 -0£°'80 -0€°9D -0’80 0800 -02°'90 ~0£'90 anu) wnsjal ydiquag
009l 00'sL 00'Le 0022 0022 00’2z 00'zZe
-00'60 -00'80 -0£'80 -0£'90 ~0¢'80 ~0€°80 -0£'90 a13u3) 8uns|a] UINY
oezL oceL 00’61 00’12 00’1z 00'te 00’1z
-0€'80 G180 -00°20 -00'60 00’1 -00'60 -0£'80 AU BINSE) UIMIO)
ootlL OO0°El 0012 ¥4 0012 00’12 0012
-D0'60 ~00°60 -00°60 -00'60 -0£°20 -00'60 -08'20 Inua) aunsia uajjouen)
ung es 14 anyy POM sony uo

sjood BulIWIMS pue SaRjjIde) apis Ap J0 sanoy BujuadQ — EAON UAIRISAI B SaxUB) Binsia] jedpdiuninl 3T xpuaddy

Page 88

32



mm::émﬁcmu §N°0 2 3INSISIBIYSYBIqUSD MMM | %N 0D YDAQUIPPIISUSPPLUDY MMM N.m::m_m_
& U2AQUIPP Uis

Lo Wwip
saAl Buacidw o sop saunpoddy | nopAmAg opomb qQmD4 ¢t ppacapid o PP 4

Adjjod sUOISSILIPD JNO 0} 18)8) asDald - S,8 JOpUf)

JOPUN PUD SIDBA £ - ~
wnpo sad 13-,
"SIGULUIMS +09 [ID 10} UOISSOs 8L - #

"aBubypD o} §23{qns §1 BQDIBW SUL
"Hinpo Buied D yum 294 210 UIPEYD - +

2E

38j0p Bumogo)
9y} uo wdp-wdg Aopsan]
[dy o6 B Yyouew wel Bunuusms daand ou aq
[axnbus 0] suoyd 35034d) AUDd 004 wdoe | —wdogz| im 25y Bupsoy jois o) ang
# unms otang WdOE'Z | = Woo'1 |

+ # WIMS AuDg woQQ'| | = Woog0l # uams ofand wdop"s = wdog £
# wImg Dligng W00l = WoL'g 5U0ssa) Bunuwmg JINpy wdgg £ ~ wdpo'2 o)
Appung 5U05537 Bupuwms Jouny wdpy 2 - wdoo v 1)
# wimg oygang wdog'e ~ wdoo'z O

(asnbud of suoyd es0aid) AUDd 100d / # WIMS Dliqng wdog"zZy — wogk'| | Aopsaupam

SUO0ssa BurLLIMS Joluny WoPE"| | -WoG|g ©
Appining {(eunjoiadwe) j0od is1002) # Wms BUDT wdpgs —wdoog O

SUOSSa BulUIMmS §NPY wdpe'g — widon:g

QN> Bupuwms wdg)'9 —wdsyy anD Bunuwmg / sUOSSeT BupLmS wdpo'g - wdoo

SUOssa7 Bupums wdsp'y — widey's # Wims opqnyg wdpg'y — wdoo'e

# wms ongng wdgpe —wdoo'e # WIMS Daqgngy wdoQ' | - wdoo'z)

# WIME DNGNd w0’ | —wdoo'zt ~e #§ BWIL YsOIdS SIPPO) Wwogy | | ~wog|('ol

# WIMS OfiGng Wo0E'g = W0’/ sJ|qosay onby w000 0| - WG |4

Anpiy Appsaen]

# Wms onang wdoe's — WAoE'g # WimS |Inpy widpQ's — widgy' £

# soiqosey pnby wdoe g = widpg £ qnyD) Bunuunmg widgy/ ~ wde '

# WIms ongng wdgg'/ —wdpp'y SUOssa) Bunuwims Jolng WG |9 = widgo'y

5UOSS87 BURLILLIMS JORINT wdpp'g - wdoe'e # Wimg orang wdpg v ~ wdog'e

# Mg opang wdog'{ ~wdoo'zl # wimg oNgng wdog'| = wdo0'zi

SaIq0Y JO|OM wdooz| - Wnoo's # wWims 2qQnd WIngE'g ~ WNOo'L

Anpsiny) Aopuowy

AN aCYELY Q7 L0

S|gpjawil BulliwIMS - 91jus) aInsia] USMIOD




anysybiquap
yaAquipp :is

3N oD amnsiajanysybiquap mmm

%N°'0 2 YDAQUIPPHSUSPPLIDY MMM

EINE]
uappwDy

saai] Busaoidun ‘|o 104 satjiunpoddo

NDpAMAQ DIamB 'qmbg | pRIC3|jAD

( Ad1jod suoissILIPO INO O} J3jai BSP3|d — 5,8 JBPUn

"aButii2 0} 129Iqns 5 SADISWH KL
‘HNPD BuADA © Y|im 331) 240 UBIDIYD - +

*SOUD| SOPNIDU} UOKSAS - |
“SIBUIWIMS +09 [ID J0) UOISSBS 8814 - #

anpD Buruums ulyiny

(saup 2} . # Buriuums DHand

+ # Bunuuims Apuoy

(sopun ¥ £ USIPIYD) J8IPPOL 7 juaind

« #20and
SuOsSa BurLLLMS

{souD £) . # suibuaT WIMS INPY
GNID UofyjoYY JORINY

QD LUIMS LIYINY

« # 31and

. # 2and

# WIMS |INPY
QD wims uiying

=« # 3fiAng
suossa Bunuunmg
« # 20QNnd
» # OHaQNd

N RS TAVA 4R EE

widoo v — wdon'z
wdg || =wogy'| |
wngg” | | = Wopo'ol
WoGY 4 —WD00'6
Anpung

wdge'Z = wdpo el
wdogzi = Wo00'8
ADpingps

wid0o'4 = widoo' g
wdpo'g = wdp)'?
wdpo's = wdo)'y
wdge: | — wdsygl
WG’ = WOSH'9
Aopiy

widoe' 4 =wdoe'
wdoe'g—wdg |/
wdg |z =wdg('9
wds "9 — wdsy'g

widpe’ | - wdeyZt
Wogy'g = WoGH9
Aopssny]

« # WIMS NPV
# unoaD onby

anbjuy2a] Wimg / sU0SSeT BURLILLIMS JINPY
£U05597 BulLIMmS

. # 24and

BIQDEDAD S8UD| g - . # JIANd

(uojsses PayDDOD) 14 UNMS

{wdpg £ — wdoo'9 AjUO SBUD| €] . # WIMS DHaNd
qnyD Bunuusmg

« # 21and

« # Olland

# WIMS inpY
wims Aliprqosiq
GQND WIMS UL INY
suossa’ Bupuunms
« # OIqnd

- # 2Hand

a|qpa W] BUILUWIMS - 31uaD 2InsIaT ulyiny

widoe: 4 — wadog'g
widge' g — WdoE/
widge £~ wdoo ¢
wdoo 2 ~ wdsy'e

widoe'| ~ wdgr'Z| %
WIOGH'g — WIDGY'9
Aopsaupam %J

wdog 6 — wdoe'g %
wdgz'g - Wwdgo'9
widgg'g - wdoo's
wdpg: | - wdsp el
WDGy™8 — WSy
Appsan}

wdpo's — wao0's
wdpo'g — wdoo' £
wdop' £ — wd0o'9
wdgo 9 - wdsy'e
woge'| { = WDOEQ|
WogH g —UDSH'9
Aopuowy




aINsI3|

> auysubiquap (N0 D7 AINSISIBIYSYBIQUSP MMM | HN'0D YDAQUIPPISUSPPUIDL MMM
. . usppuwpy

4= YDAQUIPP Jis

saal Buiaosdwi ‘yp 1oy sapunpoddg | NOpAMAQG blomb 'qmbg 1 ppaca)in %

Adljod suoissILIPD JNC 0} 18481 3sDB|d - 5,8 JapUf

"aBuoyo oy 123lqns 51 SKAD)BWY SIYL
"HiNPo Buiknd D yim ooy a0 UBIPIYD - +

"SOUD| S3PNOU UOKSSS -,
"UBUIIMS +09 IO SO} UIOISSSS 894 - #

S

LIH YhDY wdog g-wdpo'g
#. 2Hang widpo g-widpg £
qniD Bunuwams ybiquag widoo' Z-wudoe's
# . oIQnd widoge g = wdpg/ SUOSE BuRLLMS wdoe g-wdpe's
# sDIqolay Dnby widog £ ~ widge 9 #.20Qnd  widgy’ (-wdpy'z| O
5UOsSaY Bupuwmg wdoe'e = wdoge # Buums suo) anqng WoSH'g-Wosk' s, q)
igjppo] g |ueind  wdp)’) - wdorZ| {Ajuo saup1 Z) # Bupuuwimg suny digng WoSH /-Woge's O)

2E

#521Q0leY DNbY  WOGH g~ WDOO'Y Avpsen) (©
# Buruuwmg auo ougng w008 — W9 #, UWNMS NPV wdoo s-wdg g O
Aoppy jojou onby wdg | "g-udoe”,
#s WIMS BUDY NPV wdoo'é - wdoo'g #. dIand widoe” -wdge 9
gnD Bunuuams ybiquaq widpO'g - wdon's anD Bunuunms ybiqueg wdog 9-wdog's
uoissas Buuunms Amqosig eey widg:y ~ wdoo:y 5UOSSeT BupUwMmS widge s-wdge'e
#.20and  wdpy'| - wdop'zi #. J1and WoGH g-oQe'e
# Bunuunmg suoy oaang WoGHy'g — WDPE'9 Anpuowy
Aopuinyy qnD Bupwunms ybiquaq wdQo'9—wdo0'e
#a WIMS INPY wdoo 6 - wdog'g #.Mand  wdpo |—wdpo gt
#. DpQand wdoo'g — widog /£ #+ BupumS ApUIDS  WDGK' | |-WIDGH 6
# s2IqoiaY onby wdsy'e — widop'9 18|ppo] ¢ judiDg WOSH 4-LUID00 4
suossa) Sumunuimg wdpQ'e ~wdoe'e Aopung
# Bupuauims auny onqng WOGH'g — WDG"/ #.200Nd  wdog -wdoeZ|
(Ao s8uot Z) # Buruuims auni ogagng WIDGH 7 — WIDOE'9 suossa] Bununms  wdpe'Ziwoge'g
Anpsaupom Appsyng

| S e 10

3|gpiawl] Bulwwims - anuad ainsid] ybiquag




2E

auysybiquap
—» Y2AQUIPP Jis

N 03 3insia|NYsybiquap mmm

WN 0D YDAQUIPPASUSPPLIDL MMM

sanl Buiacidu '||p Joj sajiunpoddo | NOpAMAQG DIamb 'gmpg PPS03allAD

N.
re

EIHET

Adjjod suoEsUPD INO O} 18)6) 85084d —~ 5,8 Japun

"aBunyd o} joefans si aiqojel} SKiL

*AICIOIIOAD 0

uojjdanay joojuos  aspapd 'suolsses ajoaud 810 sejund Abpyg - v
inpD Buind D yim aal 810 uaIpiyd - +

‘Aluo jood UDW - ~
*S9UD] SBPNOUI UOKsSas - ,
"USUWILLIMS +09 (D IO} UOISSas 88H - §

gniD Sunuwimg

suossaT Bunuuims Amgosiq

8914 — uoissag Bupuunms Ajpqosiq

# « 2090d

# + o LOISSES Wnmg AfWID] 9 DHgng
Bapun ¥ SUiuOW 9E USIPEYD) JBIPPO] 7 jUSiDd
# - unms Jinpy

{sepun ¢ syjuow of uaPEYD) JBIPPO] g |UaIDd
suosseT Buruums |iNpy

v 3|qony) yaoionby §aim- ApRd [00d

“\ N s|qojopu) yo0ionby paIm
g # . 2uand

# — WIMS [iNPY
suOssa) BupuLMS

an|D Bupuwmg

su0ssa BuruLLimsg

# « 2And

# o = WIMS SUDT LSy ApD3

# « JliGNd

gD Bunuunmg
5U0ssaT BupLLLIMS

ey | 199212 82810

widge g — wdoe'e
wdgy's - wdg |y
wdg |y —wdg |
wdpo'e — wdsy|
wdg || = w0’ 11

Wwosygf — Wwoool
woQg' | | —Wwodgol

woSH 6 = WOD0'4
woQQ'0l = Wo00's
Anpung
widpe' ¥ —=wdoe'e
wdpo'e —wdg1'Z
wdgy | —wWdpE !

wdog'zi = Wwogp| |

UQON Z | —~ W00
Aopining

wdgy'g — wdog 9
wdoe 9 — Wdoee
wdoe'e - wdsy'z

widoe'g ~ Wdsy'9
wdoe'e ~Wwdoo's
wdpg'e — Wdoo

Aoptinyl

onby gng

anD Bupiugms

# + Jiand

sU0ssa Buuunmsg

# o= WIMS BUDT SIBSIY AOJ

# ~ WIMS IinpY

# oquinz pnby

# « SHAnd

SUOSSaT BuLIIMS
# .« ~21Qnd

# » ~ WIMS UD SI9S]Y ApD3

# s\IBua |iJ wimg
# SUIPIM |l Wiimg
# . JIaNg

anD Bunuwimg
5U0sse7 Buruwms
# oqQuing gU<

# ~ WIMS JINPY

# o+ ~ WiMg B8UD SIBslyY AuD3

Leeceon | ojgPRR W] BUILUUIMS — 91USD 3INsIa] JAUY

wdoo01 - wdoo's
wdpo'é - wdpg'L
wWdoe 2 — widpe'e
widge'9 = wdpo'v
WO g = Wo0E™L
ADpsaupam
wdog s ~wdoe g
wdpe g — widoe”/
widge'/ - wdg g
widoo'y — wdoo'v
WoGH' | | ~Wo0'1 |
WDQE'g — WDOE" L
Anpsan)

wdgo'ol ~wdaoo's
waQQ 6 ~ Wdoo's
wdpo'g — widsy'9
wdog 9 —wdoo's
wdoe'e = wdoo'y
wdsy'Z| —UoON Z1
UOON Z1 — W00’ | |
Wo0E' 8 — WDOE'?
Aopuow

U3PpPWDY

Page 92




AN"02 Y2AQUIPPIISUSPPWDL MMM EIHHE]

anysybiqusp Yn'oorainsia|aliysybiquap mmm |
L U42AQUIPP s usppuwoy

s9All BujAcidwi ‘b Jo seiunpoddy | npopAMAg D{|amMb ‘gmpq 1 ppaos|jAD \QM;

Adjjod suoKSIIPD INO O} Jejal Bspald - S,8 J1OpuUn

Bunjooq sannbai uogsses siyj - ,
"Auo ood uIow - -
"IBLILIMS +09 O 1O} UOISSOS 9914 - #

"eBunyd o} Josiqans s a|qoyawLY Syl
“}iNpD BuiAod D Yym 8y JI0 LaIPIYD) - +

# + umg Apuog g oggng wdog'g — wdog'e
# dUQng wdpp'e - wdpo'|
SU0ssa) Bupinums wdgpz | —Wopo'e # ~ WIMmS auD wdoe'g - wdoe vy
Aopung # iand wdg |’z -wdst s o)
# 21and wdo's -~ wdpg'e # 29N wdgp'y - wdspz
# ~ SIDOH4 ¥ syoY wdpg'z — wdog' Buuunms ooyos wdg|'z~wdsy'| o
# onand wdgp' | - WDs |'ot # ~ unms suo wdog' | =wdspyz| ©
# ~ Wims suo? W00l = WooD's # . DQWnz onby wdoeZ{ ~wope'1 | O
Abpinjog Bujuiunmg jooyos Wwop0’ | | = WROE's
# ~ Wwmg aup wdpe'g - wdog' ¢ Appssupem
# 21and wdg|"£ - wdog's suossa) Bupuwimg wdg|z - wdoge
~ WIMS DYUSWSQ] wdg|'g — tdpeZ # ~nand wdoo'e - wdpg'|
Bupuunms jooyog widg 'z —widg | # ~ unms auD wdog' | ~WOON Z|
# ~ wmg auo widog | —UOON Z1 Aopseny
Bupums poLos WODQE" | | —WOQE 0| # . oquny onby wdgp'g ~ wdgy/
Aopyy suosse) Bunuwimg wdgt /= wdpop
suossa] BupIIME AHIIGDSI] wdpe/ —wdoo'£ Bunuunms [ooyos wdg |’z —widg (|
SUOssE] BuuuImg wdg' £ - wdoo'y # ~ WimS BUDY wdoo' | = wdg |z
# ~oqQng wdoo'e = wdoo'g Bupupms jooyog UOON Z§ ~ W00 | |
# ~ UIME BuUD wdop'| = UOONZ| {Japun g syjuow 9¢ UBIPKYD) ~ BIPPO] P juaIDgd wioQQ'| | - tuosh 4
~ « S8IGDE ONby WIDOE (| —WOPE'S ~ « $9KJDg Onby WD’ | | - WDB0E'6
# ~ WIMS aUDT 195y ApD3 Wo0)'s — WOOE'9 # ~ uIms Bup sesy App3 WD00'4 = WIDDE'9
Appsiny) Aopuowy

 HANAVETA NS

agnjawi] Buiuwimsg — pAoN




Appendlx 2F =)

PAVILION THEATRE, RHYL April 2018 - March 2019

2018/19 Diary

Date Show Production Company
13th April Totally Tina Artistes International
14th April The Magic of Hollywood ETM PASHA
15th April You Win Again Entenainers
19th April The Bohemians ETM
27th April Darek Acorah Brian Shaw Concerts
28th April The Manfreds DFO

|2nd - 6th July Footloose

7th / 8thJuly Dance Fusion Linzi Grace

11th July Na Nal! Arad Goch

12th July Denbighshire Music Denbighshire Music Coop

13th - 14th July  {North Wales Schoal DecaDance

15th July Raymond Froggatt RBM Concerts

17th July Play List for Gar Harris Show Gay Harris Dancers/l.ocal Dance School
18th July Jason Manford Phil Mclntyre Ents

20th July Jools Holland Miracle Artists

21st July Rock n Roll Paradise Johnny Mans

23-27th July Junior showtime + rehersals Gay Harris Dancers

Page 94



Audienceawars

4th Oct Roy Chubby Brown

5th Oct Luther Wandross Tribute Book Em Danno

6th Oct 90's Might {Kuta} Kuta Events

7th Oct Buddy Holly Individual Entertainments Lid
11th Oct Swan Lake Amande/Book Em Danno
12th Oct Quadrophenia Book Em Danno

13th Oct Bay City Rollers Tangent Management
19th Oct Sally Morgan Audignce Aware

20th Oct Navi King of Pop Artistes International

25th Oct 10CC Kennedy Street/Nick Leigh
26th October Abba Mamia Handshake

27th -28th Oct

Young Farmers / cancelled

This is the Greatest Show

Book Em Danno

26th Jan Max Boyce Handshake {SD}

29th Jan Dan Snow Cloud Nine Entertainments
1st March St David's Day Concert (SD St Kentigerns Hospice
8th March Thank Abba for the Music (P} (SD} Derek Block

10th. March Sooty Book Em Danno

14th March Jason Mansford Phill Mcintyre

15th March A Beautiful Noise Flying Music

16th March Got to §‘ng Got to Dance Rainbow Promotions
21st March Flagh Back Can Sing Ltd

22nd March ruffydd Wyn

24th - 30th March [Joseph Bill Kenwright Ltd

Page 95



$3U9Ad Suipiods e JEpU3|eD SIUBAS BY3 UIYUM PIISI| SIUBAT Y10 3Y) ||V

'g1 / LT / 9T0Z BUDJY 1AYY Je pauwiopad aey ey} spueg / sISIY 3Yi JO Isi| & 51 2A0qy

IEN
eqeqnp sJuaA3 JAyy 8T0Z ‘3sn3ny 1T 1534 eualy
BU3lY
SIPIN Y1 pue J03aeg 51U3AT |AYY BTOZ sn3ny 7T 1594 eusay
euasy
Aysnq] se Jopwinzely auixe s1uaA3 |Ayy 8107 ‘1sn2ny 21T 1594 euauy
eualy
AppemAppemoys S)UA] [AYY 8TOZ snany 7T 1524 eualy
BUDIY
Jlews J1ayieay 51uaA3 |Ayy 8T0Z 1snBny 7T 1534 BUANY
BUILY
S2Ip3a 3Y3 pue 403307 syuan] |Ayy LT0Z I1sn3ny €T 1594 BIBjRISON
BUALY
suensuy) Yyl SUaAZ |AYY LT0T ISN8Ny €T 1524 eld|eIsoN
PUBLY
pemsy sjuaAg [Auy LT0Z 3sN2ny €T 1594 e18|eISON
BUIIY
AassApQ sjuaag JAyy L10Z 35n3ny LET 1524 e13|e1S0N
Uy
513351S |N0S WupIN SJU3A7 |AYY 9T0zT ‘Isnany ,TZ |nNOS apiseas
BUalY
sima] Aey Sutinieay Bunguq s SIU3A3 JAYY 9T0Z "1sN8nY 1T nog apliseas
CTENY]
guy) |esy ayt sjuaA3 jAyy 9107 "1sn3ny ;17 [nos 3piseas
eualy
spuoqe8ea ay) g sawef Awiwif S3UaA] 1AYy 9102 Ysnany 1T InNOS apiseas
Jowiouad /1y SNUdA aieq JUDAT

awwesSold eualy sjuanal JAyy oz xipuaddy

Page 96



Appendix 2H Business Case: Proposed Alternative Delivery Model, (ADM), for
various leisure related activities and functions

RUTHIN CRAFT CENTRE

Our Vision
To Celebrate Craft and the Art of Making

Page 97



« By presenting the very best Contemporary Craft
from Wales, the UK and Internationally

e By supporting makers of Contemporary Craft

By providing opportunities for engagement with
Craft and Making

‘Craft Counts’ programme Fact:

Since re-launch in 2008 the Centre’s 3 main exhibition
galleries have, in 10 years, shown 124 exhibitions (solo &
group displays) — exhibiting the work of 966 makers from

Wales, UK and internationally.

Page 98



1. Presentation

Destination venue for Contemporary Craft both physical and virtual

Open to the public 362 days per year — Free admission

Changing Exhibition programme across multiple gallery spaces

Provision of interpretation and information, e.g. publications, films, resource
materials

Working collaboratively and in partnership with key national and international
organisations

Displaying the diversity of ‘craft’ and applied art

2. Support

Recognition and celebration of established practitioners
Identification and nurturing of next generation of makers
Exhibition and Retail opportunities for makers

Facilitate ‘Collection’ acquisition opportunities for makers
Mentoring and training opportunities

Residency and engagement opportunities

3. Engagement

Activities programme for all ages / all levels

Embracing the breadth of ‘craft’ and the art of making

Opportunities change throughout the year — not static

Gallery & Exhibition talks / lectures / demonstrations

Outreach work with schools, colieges, community and targeted groups
Encouraging the next generation of makers

Master-classes and hands-on participation




“Over the last 25 years Hughes (with his depuly director Jane
Gerrard) has done an extraordinary thing: creating the
nation’s most vibrant and cutting-edge contemporary craft

gallery in north Wales.”
‘power List - of the most influential people in British craft’
Crafts Magazine (May/June 2018)

Our Assets are many and varied but include the following:-
» Reputation

Status

Support & Following

Infrastructure

Creativity

Reputation

The quality of the exhibitions, touring and publications emanating from RCC over 25
years of operation has established its reputation within the sector and internationally.
Over this period the combination of the complementary skills of Philip Hughes as
Director and Jane Gerrard as Deputy Director has been axiomatic to the
development of that reputation.

In 2017 the Director, Philip Hughes, received an MBE
- forservices to Craft and Applied Art

The successful model of bringing in experienced and knowledgeable guest curators
to create exhibitions within their specific specialisms allows a breadth and diversity of
voices alongside an easy authority across the disciplines. The programming of the
Centre is informed by regular and on-going creative conversations with craftspeople,
individuals and organisations in Wales, the UK and internationally.

Status

RCC receives annual revenue funding as one of the Arts Council of Wales' revenue
funded portfolio. We regularly represent Wales at events such as COLLECT (The
Intemational Art Fair for Contemporary Objects — presented by the Crafts Councii).

Ruthin Craft Centre stands as the nation’s most significant
centre for the crafts and applied arts in Wales.
ACW investment review 2015

The Centre is owned by Denbighshire County Council (DCC) within its Leisure
Portfolio giving us access to a wide range of financial, H.R. and maintenance
services. We work to delivering the local authorities priorities, as set out in the DCC
Corporate Plan including connected communities, resilient communities and support
for young people.

We are an active member of VAGW, the networking group for Visual Arts
organisations in Wales.

Support & Following
The present levels of support and engagement gained by our limited use of social
media identify this as fertile ground for further investment of time and resources:

« Following GDPR updating (May 2018) RCC maintained a subscriber database
of over 1,000; a 50% retenti?pdglé 100



* Open rate for Mailchimp announcements and updates is 50-60% against an
industry standard of 23% (for arts sector)

* RCC Twitter account has over 3,000 followers

* Visitor numbers to site are approx. 70,000 per year

Infrastructure

In 2008 the Centre re-opened after a major £4.3 million refurbishment with £3.2
million investment (75%) from ACW Capital Lottery - (25%) from DCC and other
funders. The Centre comprises - 3 Exhibition Galileries, a Retail Gallery (shop),
Education Space and Project Space workshops, tourist information point and Café
with a courtyard terrace. There is a free car park with capacity for 70 cars and 6
coach bay parking areas. The centre is open from 10am to 5.30pm, 362 days of the
year — closing only 3 days - Christmas, Boxing & New Year.

The Centre sits within its own extensive grounds. In 2015 we embarked upon a
programme of environment development by introducing 190 square metres of wild
flower planting for pollination across the extensive car park planting beds with
support from both the Town Council and the Keep Wales Tidy — National Buzz
scheme. In 2016 we were awarded an additional development grant and became
one of the 9 Welsh Natural Buzz 2016 Demo Sites — with additional planting and
works undertaken within the courtyard and the car park areas.

We are exploring potential further development in this area such as public art
installations/creations and external exhibition opportunities within the courtyard areas

etc.
Page 101



Creativity

Craft and its linked creativity is in itself a strength. It's potential as one of the
Creative Industries and to improving Health and Well Being is increasingly
recognised and links to the aims of the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales)
2015.

We work as Wales' leading venue for Applied Art and help deliver the Craft Council
of Great Britain's vision of Craft:

Craft is for everyone

Craft encourages us to appreciate beauty and authenticity. To celebrate
ideas. To value materials and notice how things are made.

It moves, amuses and provokes. It pushes us to ask guestions, to be
sensitive and to think carefully.

Craft gives us a link to the physical. A need to touch, shape, mould, feel
and create. To roll up our sleeves, have a go and get our hands dirty. To
say, what would happen if?

It encourages us to think with our hands. Feel with our heads. Listen with
our eyes.

Craft Changes lives.

it brings people together, starting con versations and changing
communities. It connects industries. Opens up opportunities. Makes the
futuristic possible.

The urge to make is human. Let’s celebrate the achievement of our
makers, collectors and supporters at a time when it matters more than
ever.

Let’s make a difference.
The Case for Craft: 2015-16 Impact Report, Crafts Council

Ruthin Craft Centre

Our Aims

« To develop, present and promote creativity, artistic excellence
and innovation across all areas of Applied Arts practice

« To support the makers of Contemporary Craft at all stages of
their careers

Page 102



* To create and maximise opportunities for people to engage
with and benefit from the very best in the Applied Arts

* To ensure that RCC runs along successful business and
operational lines

* To be the destination for Contemporary Craft

Aim 1: To develop, present and promote creativity, artistic
excellence and innovation across all areas of Applied Arts practice

The conscientious role that Ruthin Craft Centre plays in the
promotion and Innovative presentation of contemporary crafts
should be encouraged,

The Goldsmiths' Company

This aim expresses our core artistic mission. We need to ensure that Craft and
Creativity are, and are seen to be, at the centre of all we do. The challenge as a
Destination for Craft is to ensure that the experience of beautifully created Applied
Art is not only implicit but explicit in our presentation to our audiences.

Our galieries and their carefully selected and curated exhibitions are at the heart of
our Centre. The exhibitions, some of which have proved seminal as unique
showings in the whole of UK, have generated a profile and awareness of Wales as a
place that generates and welcomes artistic practice of the highest international
standard and ambition.

We present a balanced spectrum of Applied Arts media, exploring the fullest range of
professional artistic practice, resulting from new approaches to curation and
comprising a range of survey, monograph and thematic exhibitions. Our
programming each year covers the following categories of exhibition:

The profiling of new and innovative practice within the Applied Arts
The production of new major exhibitions profiling the work of key
practitioners
* Increasing the value of international cultural exchange to the arts in Wales
* The identification and promotion of the next generation of leading
practitioners

Page 103



Aim 2: To support the makers of Contemporary Craft at all stages of
their careers

Since 1996, Ruthin Craft Centre has supported my practice
and has been the main exponent of what | have been trying to
achieve in my work and | owe them much gratitude for my
success.

Clalre Curneen, Ceramic Artist

We research, identify and profile the very best of new talent. in doing so, we not
only show the work but we also mentor and encourage the artists giving them the
necessary support to facilitate the development of their careers.

Ensuring a vibrant and healthy economy to sustain creative and entrepreneurial
Applied Artists is vital to the future and sustainability of the Centre. We undertake the
following actions to support Applied Artists to develop and maintain their careers:

e Providing exhibition opportunities both in our main galleries and in the studio
spaces

e Providing retail opportunities in our retail gallery and through our artist
showcases

 Residency opportunities to support funded development work

» Opportunities to obtain employment as workshop leaders and assistants

« Support to source funding and opportunities to develop careers of young or
emerging artists and those at mid-career

« Professional development work of a wide-ranging nature including master-
classes, seminars and symposia, lectures and professional networking events
and portfolio review opportunities.

o Working with artist networks such as Helfa Gelf to communicate with a wide
range of local artists and crafispeople

« Deliver mentorship surgeries, Marketing Strategy workshops, Open Studios
and focus seminars for artists and makers covering a range of topics that will
allow them to develop their practice.

The Goldsmiths’ Company have a long-standing relationship
with Ruthin Craft Centra, having collaborated on exhibitions
and other projects over the last 15 years. The Company
greatly admires the important role that the centre plays in
finding, supporting and encouraging living makers in many
contemporary fields.

The Goldsmiths’ Company

Aim 3: To create and maximise opportunities for people to engage
with and benefit from the very best in the Applied Arts

We have a long-term commitment to grow a wider understanding of, appreciation of,

and engagement with the Applied Arts. This aim is achieved through our Exhibition
Enhancement, Engagement and Learning Programmes.

Page 104



~ Exhibition Enhancement Programme
For each exhibition, we develop a customised package of support interventions such
as:

* Bi-lingual support material for exhibitions including text panels, information

sheets, films etc.
Gallery talks and lectures

Publications

Ensuring high quality in terms of commissioning text, design and presentation is

paramount.

- Engagement Programme

Live and screened demonstrations
Symposia, conferences and study days

Our engagement programme consists of:

* Family Friendly activities

Interactive Resource Space
Craftspeople in residence

! belisve the workshops that are being run from Ruthin Craft
Centre are invaluable. Art is not only therapeutic, but it is also
a language which communicates and connects with people.
These workshops have inspired me for the first time in years.
Jumana Mouradi, ‘Making Connections’ participant, St Asaph

- Learning Programme

Parent/Toddler activites; through to Older Generation 60+

Community and targeted group engagement work
Show and Tell exhibitions of work created during engagement activities.

Page 105



Workshops and Masterclasses For all ages and all levels of experience ranging
from master-classes to the simplest entry-level access to a direct experience of
contemporary craft.

Criw Celf Pathway (Raising The Bar & Portfolio) — Programmes for 14 to 18 year
olds which we deliver as part of the North Wales network working in collaboration
with the six local authorities and four other galleries. The North Wales network is part
of ACW's National Scheme of delivery across Wales.

1
MTJ%JM

= -
s =
. -
—

Very much enjoyed working with artists .... as / got to discover
how they put together an art exhibition to create the finished
product.

‘Raising the Bar' participant

| think the Portfolio Programme offers an exciting range of arts
experiences for children studying art, to broaden their
experience and hopefully inspire them. It is an amazing
opportunity to work with different artists from a range of
disciplines.

Parent of a ‘Portfolio participant

Schoolis and Colleges — We:

cultivate and maintain mutually supportive relationships with primary and
secondary schools in Denbighshire and work with the special needs education
provision

deliver a fully bi-lingual service

encourage and support teachers to use the resources available at the Centre
to lead on-site workshops with their classes

maintain strong relationships with colleges (e.g. Coleg Menai, Glyndwr
University) and provide guided gallery talks and lectures for visiting college
groups

maintain and develop our relationship with specialised Art and Craft
departments within colleges and universities in Wales and the UK

produce Learning Packs targeted both at the general audience and at schools
and colieges. These can be downloaded from our web site and are
sometimes available in hard copy.

! have been bringing my 2 children to the Ruthin Craft Centre
for the past three years, every time we come and stay with
Nain and Taid. We live PdgeddrQ)@/ose to the Camden Aris



Centre and | wish they would learn from yourselves in their
approach to children and familles.
Alex Airey, ‘Making Connections’participant

Over the past five years we have co-ordinated these three strands within
developmental programmes (What is Craft?, Making Connections, Craft Counts).
These have helped us to prioritise and deliver. We now want to take this successful
principle and apply it to the whole spectrum of activity at RCC.

3 _l:r’_ry I
Creu'r "¢
Cysylltiadau

BCRAMES ThmHARIrET

Aim 4: To ensure that RCC runs along successful business and
operational lines

This involves:

» Staffing Structure
Financial Management
Retail and Trading
On-site catering operations
Partnerships
Trusts & Foundations
Digital Presence

STAFFING STRUCTURE
Our staffing complement is at present as follows:
e Director - full time
Deputy Director - full time
Education Officer — part-time (0.6)
Senior Gallery Sales Officer - full time
Administration Officer - full time
* 3x part-time {0.6) Gallery Sales Assistants
Other functions such as curation, marketing and cleaning are bought in on a contract
basis.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

As an organisation we work within the County’s comprehensive portfolio of policies
and our finance and HR management are undertaken by the relevant County Council
departments. Increased and more detailed advanced financial forecasting will
require increased input from RCC staff in the future.

Page 107



RETAIL AND TRADING
Our annual income from retait and trading is in the region of £225,000. This includes
the retail gallery, engagement and room hire income.

Retail Gallery — circa £200,000 per year

The majority of these sales are for hand-made Applied Art pieces that we
have exhibited, displayed in our retail gallery or featured in Retail Showcases.
We offer our customers the possibility of purchasing through ACW's interest
free purchase scheme, COLLECTORPLAN.

We seek new ways of increasing our trading potential and have experimented
with retail displays in courtyard studio windows. These displays have already
proved successful resulting in purchases of significant items.

Engagement and room hire income — circa £1 5-20k per year

Our Learning programme schedule takes priority for use of spaces and we
have been successful over the past five years in raising additional funding for
this enhanced provision. This does, however, need to be balanced with the
ability to offer free participation activities and opportunities.

Our Education Space facilities continue to be popular with a range of groups
who are able to hire the space when it is not in use by us. Our charges for this
space are reasonable and compare well fo other local provision.

ON-SITE CATERING OPERATIONS

Page 108



The restaurant accommodates eighty covers with additional seating for twenty-four
at tables in the courtyard. Café R, serves morning coffee, lunch, afternoon tea and a
range of drinks and snacks and sources local food. Meals are cooked to order in the
cafe kitchen. At present it is managed by Denbighshire County Council's in-house
Catering Services.

Customer experience of the café is an important part of the offer at RCC. We need a
café that is:

e popular with our visitors

¢ is open whenever the Centre is open

* provides a menu that reflects the ethos of the Centre

s provides refreshments and catering for Centre functions, events and

education courses
* is cost neutral to the Centre and ideally would contribute to service costs

PARTNERSHIPS

The key principle behind the partnerships that we forge is finding mutually beneficial
ways of delivering exhibitions, projects and activities that save money by sharing
costs, reaching more people because of shared audiences and/or providing a
deeper, more meaningful interaction between the artist and the audience.

* Exhibitions - Allowing us to share the costs by collaborating with other
galleries on exhibition development. Gaining access to funding in other
regional areas e.g. Arts Counci! England when working with UK wide partners.

» Publications - The cost of commissioning copy, photography etc. is often
paid for directly by other galleries and/or agents. The benefits we receive are
significant and include income generation from the sale of these publications
in our retail gallery and on-line.

* Business Sponsorship — to raise business sponsorship and match
sponsorship funding working with organisations such as Arts & Business
Cymru.

TRUSTS & FOUNDATIONS

We have benefitted from support from organisations such as Paul Hamlyn and
Esmee Fairbarn who have been willing to fund and work with our organisation in
many aspects including Exhibition and Engagement projects. We will continue to
prioritise sourcing funding from Trusts and Foundations.

DIGITAL PRESENCE

We have piloted the use of digital media both in terms of interpretation of our
exhibitions and of marketing and both have proved successful. There is significant
potential for further development.

We will be seeking ways to increase our offer in terms of on-line selling and we are
developing plans for a significant increase in our use of social media. These two
developments, however, have staffing implications and would be included in our
planned review of the staffing structure

We will also be developing and implementing plans for increasing our use of digital
applications throughout the Centre.

Page 109



Aim 5: To be the destination for contemporary Craft

We are identified as a significant deliverer within the Cultural Tourism agenda. Our
links within the DCC Commercial Leisure and Tourism Department support our work.
We respond to wider tourism initiatives such as Year of Discovery.

As an accommodation provider, we welcome people from
across the globe, many of whom experience the free
exhibitions and variety of work the centre undertakes. We hear
first hand from these visitors, many of whom are aware of the
work of RCC, and many of whom happen upon RCC as a result
of visiting the town, and the feedback is incradibly
enthusiastic. Thay are wowed by the building, the wealth of
crealivity on display both in the galleries and in the retail space
as well as the work displayed in and around the courtyard.

The centre similarly engages people from the town and further
afield who then take the time to experience the attractions and
shops of the town centre; an important economic factor for a
small town like Ruthin. North Wales Tourism, the largest
destination management organisation in Wales, account that
aconomically, tourism has increased in the county of
Denbighshire some 88% in the last 12 years; axceptional
places like RCC who understand the driver of a high-quality
offering are in no small part to thank for this significant
siatistic.

Christopher Frost, partner, manorhaus, Ruthin

Vice-Chair, North Wales Tourism

North Wales Ambassador - Arts & Business Cymru

The Centre is embedded within the local community and is linked to the town via the
Art Trail and other initiatives. Retaining the name of Ruthin within any re-branding is
important to maintain our positioning and identity on the UK cultural arts map.

We will maintain our support for other galleries, art centres and organisations in
Wales in terms of sharing expertise and advice and, where appropriate, collaborating
on the touring of exhibitions.

Mission Gallery is proud of our association with Ruthin Craft
centre; we have supported and collaborated with them over
two decades - it is our most loyal and longstanding
partnership.

The advocacy that Ruthin Craft centre provides for Wales on

an international stage is vital, as Is its support of artists and
smaller organisations such as ourselves.
Mission Gallery

We will maintain and develop our relationships with private and institutional
collectors promoting in particular Wales based applied artists. We will continue to
promote their work at international events such as COLLECT, Saatchi Gallery,
London.

Page 110



Ruthin Craft Centre has long been a beacon of best practice in
Wales, enabling other galleries around Wales to raise their
game significantly, encouraging the rich pool of talent in Wales
to reach its potential, and bringing these achievements to
international attention.

Andrew Renton, Keeper of Art, National Museum Wales

Craft of high quality

What an exciting and unashamedly sophisticated venue.
Congratulations all round to all those responsible for this beautiful
bullding containing shows of such aspiration and excellence. We
spent an hour and a half soaking up the works and envying the
local aficionados their luck. Why doesn't every region and district
have somewhere that aims to be this supportive, demonstrative and
influential. Three cheers!

Trip Advisor, Sept 2018 — noredtram, Ipswich, UK 3215

Page 111



Our Vision
To Celebrate Craft and the Art of Making

No matter how ‘digital’ we are becoming we still need to
Make stuff!

Audience feedback from the What is Craft? programme

Page 112



Appendlx 21 Llangollen Pavilion Progrramme of Events Dec 2017-Jan 2018
Date Event Name Short Discription Conf Hall | Site | number
2017
Jan 11 NEWDance Srnall Meeting Teas and coffees - 4hrs / 10
corporate joint meeting CJ M |Smalt meeting Teas and coffees - 1hr / 20
Jan 12 Food Festival Small Meeting - 1hr / 10
Jan 13 NEWDance 5mall Meeting Teas 2nd coffees - dhrs / 10
Jan 18 ANOB Small meeting Teas and coffees - 1hr / 30
LIME Small meeting - 1.5hrs / 20
Sports Society Small Meeting Teas and coffees - 1.5hrs / 7
Jan 19 -22 fLIangollen Pantomime Rehearsal throughout fanuary, 4 evening and 2 matinees performances + Bar / 300 %6
Jan 20 St Asaph Diccese Small Meeting Teas and coffees and Buffet- hrs / 30
Jan 23 NEWDance Maonday night dance class 2x1lhr / 30
R3 Small meetlng - 1.5hrs / 20
Jraith $mali meeting Teas and coffees + breakfast babs - 1hr / 10
Jan25  [R3 Smali meeting - dhrs / 20
Jan 26 |Blood donation Blood transfusion service / 100
Jan30  [NEWDance Monday night dance class 2xhr / 30
Feb 2 DCcc Srmall Meeting - 1hr / 10
Feb 3 GWE {Schools) Smalt Meeting Teas and coffees and Buffet- Shrs / 35
Feb 05 |Mind, body and spirit festival _ |Stalls and practictioners alternative meds/iifestyle + Café / / 250
Feb 6 NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
Feb 7 GWE [Schools) Small Meeting Teas and coffees and Buffet- 6hrs / 35
Feb 8 Food Festival Smail meeting - 1.5hrs / 10
Feb 8 -19 |Quiltfest and a trade day Exhibition of quilts , workshops and a traders day + Café on 12 Feb (5talls) / 12th 1000
Feb 13 NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
Feb 14 laith Small meeting Teas and coffees (evening) - 1.5hr / 10
Feb 15  |ANGB Small meeting Teas and coffees - 1hr / 30
Feb16  [R3 Small meeting - 4hrs / 20
Feb 26 Wedding fayre wedding related Stall holders + Café / 250
Feb 27 NEWDance Monday night dance class Zx1hr / 30
R3 rope ¢lmbing in arena - Zhrs / 20
Mar & NEWDance Monday night dance class 2xlhr / 30
R3 Small meeting - 1hrs / 20
Mar 7 R3 Small meeting - 1hrs / 20
Mar 10 JANOB Small meeting Teas and coffees - dhrs / 30
[Mar 12 |Vintage and antique Fair stall holders + café / / 250
[Mar 13 |NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
|(E] Small meeting - 4hrs / 20
|occ mas Small Meeting - 1hr / 10
Mar 14 |5t Asaph Diocese conference + breakout rooms with buffet & Tea and coffees/ rd tables » linen / 90
R3 Small meeting - dhrs / 20
Food Festival Small meeting - 1.5hrs / 10
Mar 16 {CADMHAS Smalt Meeting Teas and coffees and Buffet- 6hrs / 30
R3 Small meeting - 4hrs / 20
|Mar 20 |OCC Countryside Service Dark Skies / conference with buffet & Tea and coffees/ rd tables + linen / 50
I NEWDance Manday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
[Mar 21 |calder ciTB meeting with tea and coffee 6hrs 1 60
| R3 Small meeting - 4hrs / 20
iMar22  [R3 Smail meeting - 4hrs ! 20
School Cluster meeting with tea and coffee 6hrs / 35
Mar23 |R3 Small meeting - dbrs / 20
Mar 24  |R3 Small meeting - ahrs / 20
Canalboat Trust Use of studio for refreshments prior to boat trip 60
[Mar 25  |Andy Marshall mini hot air ballcons using clear Arena space - All Day 50
|mar 27 [NEwDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
R3 Small meeting - 4hrs ! 20
Mar 28  [R3 Small meeting - 4hrs / 20
Mar29 |R3 Small meeting - 4hrs / 20
LIME AGM Meeting - 3hrs / 120
Mar 30 |R3 Small meeting - dhrs / 20
NEWDance Small Board Meeting Teas and coffees - dhrs f 10
Mar3l R3 Small meeting - 4hrs ' 20
Apr 3 R3 Small meeting - 4hrs / 20
Cadwyn Small Meeting and workshaps Teas and coffees and Buffet- 6hrs / 30
NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
Apr 5 R3 Europe Smali Meeting - lhr / 10
Apr 8 Tate Craft and Gift fair Stalis holders in Hall + Café / 250
r9 Tate Craft and Gift fair Stalls and practictioners alternative meds/lifestyle + Café / 300
Apr 12 Food Festival Small meeting - 1.5hrs i/ 10
Apr 13 4 counties youth Orchestra Rehearsal and performance 350 - use of studio as changing area - 50 / 400

Page 113




Appendix 21 Liangollen Pavilion Progrramme of Events Dec 2017-Jan 2018
Date Event Name Short Discription Conf |Studlo| Hall | Site | number
Apri5  LIME Training in conference room / 12
[Apr 21 |CORP Health and Safety Small meeting - 1.5hrs / 6
wedding Set up set up wedding, chairs, round tables, linen, lights, sound and decorations / / 10
Apr 22 Trish Mossan Wedding wedding reception , outside caterers -food and evening party, disco, Bar / / 250
Apr24  |DCC/LIME Small meeting - 1.5hrs / 10
R3 small meeting - ahrs + Buffet / 20
Apr25  |R3 Europe conference + breakout rooms with buffet & Tea and coffees / / / 150
Apr26  |R3 Europe conference + breakout rooms with buffet & Tea and coffees / / ! 150
Apr 27 R3 Europe conference + breakout rooms with buffet & Tea and coffees / / / 150
Apr 28 Llan outdoors Small meeting - 4hrs / 20
R3 Srall meeting - 4hrs / 20
Apr 30 DCC Countryside Service Nordic Walking - start meeting ing foyer 15
LIME Auditions music audition - 3hrs / 10
May & Baby Pop up Fair Stalls holders in Hall + Café / ! 250
May 7 Nightingale Bike Start site for nightingale bike event / 300
May 8 Fashion and Clothes Sales Fashion show in Hall / 250
NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
YDB Exam Ysgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall , 80 exam desk in studio / ! 30-350
|May 9 Vangollen small meeting re event / 10
YDB Exam Y¥sgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hali, 80 exam desk in studio / / 30-350
|May 10 St Asaph Diocese Meeting with buffet & Tea and coffees 6hrs / 40
May 11 |YDB Exam Ysgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks In hall, 80 exam desk in studio / / 30-350
May 12 [YDB Exam Ysgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 80 exam desk in studio ! / 30-350
May 13 |Ruthin Cannine Society Dog Show using outside farena (Day} / 250
Llangollen Rotary Fashlon show runway In Hall {Evening) / / 300
May 13 [Fashion and Clothes Sales Fashion show in Hall / 250
May 14 |Mind, Bady and Spirlt Festival _|Stalls and practictioners alternative meds/lifestyle + Café / / / 250
May 15 |YDB Exam vsgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, B0 exam desk in studic / / 30-350
| NEWDance Monday night dance class 2xthr / 30
|Mav 16 |YDB Exam Ysgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 80 exam desk in studio /] ! 30-350
|May 17  |vOB Exam Ysgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 80 exam desk In studio / / 30-350
| Food Festival Small meeting - 1.5hs / 10
May 18  |YDB Exam ¥sgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks In hall, 80 exam desk in studio / / 30-350
Vangollen set up / 20
May 19  {Vangollen stalls holders, caterers - fun fair, marquees, vehicies ,outside music +Café¢, Bar / / / 600
May 20  |vangollen Stalls holders, caterers - fun fair, marquees, vehicles ,outside music +Café¢, Bar / / / 1000
May 21  |Vangollen Stalls holders, caterers - fun fair, marquees, vehicles ,outside music +Café, Bar / / / 1000
|May 22 |YOB Exam Ysgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 80 exam desk in studio / / 30-350
NEWDance Monday night dance class 2xlhr / 30
May 23 JYDB Exam Y¥sgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 80 exam desk in studic / / 30-350
{May 24  EYDB £xam ¥sgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall , B0 exam desk in studio / / 30-350
| CRT small meeting - 4hrs with Buffet / / 23
[May 25 |YOB Exam Ysgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 80 exam desk in studio / / 30-350
[may 26 |Red Dragon Music Festival Set up site / / / 10
May 27  |Red Dragon Music Festival Stalls holders, caterers , camping , Arena music + Café, Bar / / / 600
May 28 |Red Dragon Music festival stalls holders, caterers , camping , Arena music + Café, Bar / / / 600
May 29 [Red Dragon Music Festival stalls holders, caterers , camping , Arena music + Café, Bar / / / 600
May 31 !Blood Donation Blood transfusion service / 100
Jun 5 YDB Exam Ysgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 20 exam desk in studio / / 30-350
NEWDance Maonday night dance class 2xlhr / 30
Jun & YDB Exam sgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 80 exam desk in studio / / 30-350
Jun 7 YDB Exam ¥sgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 80 exam desk in studio / / 30-350
Jun 9 R3 using arena hoists / 15
tlangollen Railway AGM evening meeting 3hrs / 70
wedding set up / / 10
Jun 10 Wedding Reception wedding reception , outslde caterers -food and evening party, disco, Bar / ! 250
jun 11 |wedding clear up / / 10
Jun 12 YDB Examn Ysgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 80 exam desk in studio / / 30-350
NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr ! 30
Jun 13 YDB Exam Ysgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 80 exam desk in studio / / 30-350
Jun 14 YDB Exam ysgol Dinas Bran Exams 300 exam desks in hall, 80 exam desk in studic / / 30-350
Food Festival Smalt meeting - 1.5hss / 10
Jun 15 Inner wheel annual Conference and buffet - round tables linen, stalls refreshments / / 200
Jun 18 Antique and vintage fair Stalls hokders in Hall + Café / / 250
Jun 19 Handover to LIME - DCC exclusion period June 19th to July 16th
Liangollen International Musical Eisteddfod - Festival starts from July 2nd to 9th July
July 17 Handback to DDC
July 19 Food Festival Small meeting - 1.5hrs / 10
July 21 Karen NEWDance dance class party night - 4hrs - lights and tables / 30

Page 114




Appendix 21 Liangollen Pavilion Progrramme of Events Dec 2017-Jan 2018
Date Event Name Short Discription Conf |Studio| Hall | Site | number
July 23 ]Uangollen Comic con stalls, meet and greet, cos play and competitions, music and café / / 300
July 25 DCC 1ist Aiders refreshers course / 8
July 26 DCC 1st Aiders refreshers course / 8
Huly 28 DCC small meeting Corporate health and safety / 3
July 29 wedding evening reception -disco , buffet , tabies and linen / / 300
Aug 4 Llangollen Bike Festival set up / / / / 20
Aug 5 Llangollen Bike Festival Stalls , Motorbikes, caterering vans,café ,bar ,outside Music , camping stall holders / / ! / 1500
Aug & Llangollen Bike festival Stalls , Motorbikes, caterering vans,café bar ,outside Music , camping stall holders |/ / / / 1500
Aug 10 |Food Festival Small meeting - 1.Shrs / 10
Aug 11 [Llzngollen Faery Festival set up / / / / 10
Aug 12 Llangollen Faery Festival Stalfs , funfalr, caterering vans,café bar ,Music, camplng stall holders / / ! / 1000
Aug 13 |Llangollen Faery Festival Stalls , funfair, caterering vans,café .bar ,Music, camping stall holders / / / / 1000
Aug 17 |Betsi Cadwalladr Small meeting - 6hrs + Buffet / 35
Aug 19 |Chris Dyer toy Fair stalls and café f / 300
Aug 24 |Food Festival Small meeting - 1.5hrs / 10
Aug 26 4 counties youth Orchestra Rehearsals and evening performance / / 350
Aug 30 JAutotrall Rally 30 - 40 campervans staying on site with some events in Pavilion + Café / / 100
Aug 31  |Autotrail Rally 30 - 40 campervans staying on site with some events in Pavilion + Café / / 100
Sept 1 Autotrall Rally 30 - 40 campervans staying on site with some events in Pavilion + Café / / 100
Sept 2 Autotrail Rally 30 - 40 campervans staying on site with some events in Pavilion + Café / / 100
Baby Pop up Fair Stalis holders in Hall + Café / / 250
Sept 3 Autotrail Rally 30 - 40 campervans staying on site with some avents in Pavilion + Café / / 100
Sept 4 Autotrail Rally 30 - 40 campervans staying on site with some events in Pavilion + Café / / 100
NEWDance Monday night dance ¢lass 2x1hr / 30
NEWDance Small Board Meeting Teas and coffees - 4hrs / 10
Sept 5 Autotrail Rally 30 - 40 campervans staying on site with some events in Pavilion + Café / / 100
School Cluster meeting with tea and coffee 6hrs / 35
Sept 6 Autotrail Rally 30 - 40 campervans staying on site with some events Jn Pavilion + Café / / 100
Sept 7 |Harley owners club campervans and camping , harley motorbikes, music, rideouts + Bar ,Café / / / 150
Sept 8 Harley owners club campervans and camping , hartey motorbikes, music, rideouts + Bar ,Café / / / 150
Sept 9 Harley owners club campervans and camping , harley motorhikes, music, rideouts + Bar ,Café / / / 150
Sept 10 [Harley owners club campervans and camping , harley motorbikes, music, rideouts + Bar ,Café / / ! 150
Sept 11  [NEWDance Meonday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
Sept 13 |Food Festival Small meeting - 1.5hrs / 10
Sept 20 [Natural Resource Wales small conference 30 + public attendees 40 teas coffees and buffet / 70
Sept 21  |Natural Resource Wales small conference 30 + public attendees 40 teas coffees and buffet / 70
NEWDance Smali Board Meeting , AGM Teas and coffees - 4hrs / 10
Sept 22 INWM & NW Rally 30 - 40 campervans staying on site with some events in Pavilion + Café / / 100
Sept 23 |[NWM & NW Rally 30 - 40 campervans staying on site with some events in Pavilion + Café / / 100
Sept 24 |NWM & NW Rally 30 - 40 campervans staying on site with some events in Pavilion + Café / / 100
5ept 27 [Biood Donation Blood transfusion service / 100
Sept 29 |Cogswart - Steam Punk stalls, workshops,evening concert, catering vans, camping and café bar / / / / 300
Sept 30 |Cogswart - Steam Punk stalls, workshops, cos play, outside music, catering vans, camping and café bar / / / / 1000
Oct 1 Cogswart - Steam Punk stalls, workshops, cos play, outside music, catering vans, camping and café bar / / / / 1000
Oct 2 Food Festival Small meeting - 1.5hrs / 10
Oct 4 Wales Co-operative Centre Conference and breakout rooms buffet and refreshments, Rd Tabies linen / / / 150
Oct 5 Wales Co-operative Centre Conference and breakout rooms buffet and refreshments, Rd Tables linen / / / 150
Oct 6 ANOB Small meeting Teas and coffees - dhrs / 30
Oct 7 Wedding evening reception -disco , buffet , Bar, tables and linen / / 300
Oct & Schagls Jamboree welsh language junior school children , music and small side stage ! 150
NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
Oct 12 GWE (Schools) Small Meeting Teas and coffees and Buffet- Bhrs / 35
Oct 14 Llangollen Food Festival Food retailers and related kitchen equipment, caterers, Music, Food Demos / / / 1000
Qct 15 Llangolten Food Festival Food retailers and related kitchen equipment, caterers, Music, Food Demos / / / 1000
Oct 16 NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
Oct 19 GWE (Schoals) Small Meeting Teas and coffees and Buffet- 6hrs / 35
LIME/DCC Small meeting - 1.5hrs / 10
Oct 21 Baby Pop up Fair Stalls holders in Hall + Café / / 250
Oct 24 LIME Small meeting - 2hrs / 15
food Festival Small meeting - 1.5hrs / 10
Oct 25 wi conference and stalls in Hall with round tables and linen refeshments in Studio / / 200
Oct 29 Mind, body and spirit festival _ fStalls and practictioners alternative meds/lifestyle + Café / / / 250
Nov 6 NEWDance Monday night dance ctass 2x1hr / 30
Social care wales small conference teas coffees and coissiants I 15
Nov 7 Social care wales smalf conference teas coffees and colsslants / 15
Nov § Uangollen motorbike Festival _ |small meeting i 10
Nov 9 DCC Sports awards BCC award ceremony, table, linen, specialist {ighting, bar / 250
Nov 10 [DCC councillors small meeting / 4
DCC Excellence awards DCC award ceremony, table, linen, specialist lighting, Tea,coffee Cake / 100

Page 115




|Appendix 21 Liangollen Pavilion Progrramme of Events Dec 2017-lan 2018

Date Event Name Short Discription Conf |Studio| Hall | Site | number
Nov 13 |NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1br / 30
Iﬁl 15  |School Career Fair [Stands , Buffet for employers 35 - Pupils from Ysgol Dinas Bran 250 approx / / 250
Nov 20  |DCC Meeting own refreshments 30

NEWDance Monday hight dance class 2x1hr / 30
Nov22 |R3 rope climbing in arena - 2hrs 10
Food Festival Small meeting - 1.5hrs 10
Nov 23 |ANOB small meeting Teas and coffees - 4hrs 30
Nov26 |Antique and vintage fair stalls holders in Hall + Café / / 250
Nov 27 |[NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
Nov 30 ]¥sgol Dinas Bran Drama Exam-using dance floor and stage lighting / 15
Dec 4 NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
Dec 6 School Cluster meeting with tea and coffee 6hrs 26
Dec 7 NEWDance Schools dance performance ! / 400
Dec 11 NEWDance Monday night dance class 2x1hr / 30
NEWDance $mall Board Meeting , AGM Teas and coffees - dhrs 10
Dec 13 |DCC Meeting HR small meeting 2hrs 4
¥sgol Yr Gwernant Rehearsal - school christmas show / 50
Dec 16 Pavilion Xmas Party Christmas Decorations, Tables, Linen, Caterer,stage, Lighting, Disco / / 200
Dec 18 ¥sgol Yr Gwernant Rehearsal - schoel christmas show ! 50
Dec 19 vsgol Yr Gwernant school christmas show / / 400

Closed over Christmas Period 23/12/17 untll 02/01/18

Page 116




BUO PAARIB!
3ARY PUE SYILOW £T 158) 3Y) uiyim [esieidde durwiopad e anp azam ey: J1e1s 316313 j0 % »

ouidwo) WAUNNIIY Jojes
EfE N

2DUISHE SSAURIS O3 BNP |50] SALP 10 1aQUINY

sajeasaiun; aiesod 0
UIyIte 03 PRRUCds3) Siueytwed ;o 9%

{seare |te ssO1e sueds)

anmag padeuew-jjam e Suiraaifag

SI300Y3YEls f SIIWOISAI WOy PINIBIIL Stuawldwod J0 saquuny plaYdn sineidusod Jo ragquing _

el L T T ————————— -

T D D 08 e e m ay

¥
“ _
1 ]
(swiwesBosd 1
3y} paadwod 9 ‘awwesdord
H ay3 uo dn aye} % UOPEYASUDD 151
“ POPUSHIE % [PAAIRDDS S|ELISIRY) SHIN = “
! PaY00q $3|ed Aepyliig - ARl YOS = I
sBupjooq / SJ0HSIA ARl Yos e
{suooeanie JoysA ainsia]
[BI2IBLILIOY J|e SSOJIE) SUSIA JO JAQUNN  + N
H sjuredwo) / spuawidwo) Jawosny  » 1_“
i (shanns !
13W0INT) UCIIBISNES IAWOISNT = 1
Qs 1ad Aes jo yiBual aBessay = 15 ]
H sAOYSYIOM, JO J2quINN = Buwues) jo Aylenp  » SSSED Yum JuswaFeBulx sy} afeuew o1 pasn Eous..za.
“ SIUBAZ pUB SBHUAIDY 'SOOYSYIOM palamjag Supesl - PIRIA ¥q3Q Paug 98esaAy = o
U siaquiny uonednived = pauvied uoneupanyy = (ssoqwsw-uou woay) 3wodu] ysey  »
SISIA JO JAQUINN = $IIUCPUINIR BLWRIB0I JAY = {punwueiBoag ssouny ssep) f wims) 3Fesny “
SAUAIY O|PNIS JO JFQUINN  » Buussjunion = Bupyoog suug /sefesn |euog waseqd  « 1
“ sfupjooq jo Jaquiny  » S3JUEpUIe {swwesdosd vossa
lepooy = Aaam duewnopsd pue spued\ped wims) s1sn Suiea / a1ey Auedep  »
{wing-ng ‘aunypuadxy PIsAJRUE $1 DUE (BIRLID $SBUISN ST 218D (1Y "SUOISSIT dOYS JOM LB JOON = {unmg “ssauny Jojunr / Ynpy) H
‘JWOIUJ) UCjIRULIGHU [RPURUI] = uods vy ey vonuny f SAISIBQWIS PIIIVED = “
MY X0g PIOS SIVNL % * WodU| §0 % se Junppuadxy = Yum sqnp pods Ayumutuos paiipaJoy {wims ‘ssauy i
. JUUO PIOS SIANILY = WODU| JO % SESISO) YRIsS = PaJaAiap Suotssas Aljigesiq = Jounr / Ynpy) pjos sdiys1aquisiy maN =
h S3|ES YO X0 JO QNN = (uuQg / poo4) 1oId $5010 & uonedyjued uossad (wims ‘ss3ully
$3|S AUIUC JO IBQWINN = UONESIIIN IBIS % = pagesip pue sjeniayas pods Aigesio - Jowng f)npy) saunted 1qaQ 1090+ "
PIOS S19%31) JO JAqNy [¥uuq / poos) peay sad puads  » suonendde {wnms ‘ssaunz !
SMOYS JSqUNY = SIAADD JO JIQWNN = 153U ARUNUALIO) [RYSSEIONS JO ON & Jowng f ynpy) awodu 31gag 13a0g =
"lltlllllllllllllllll - - - - - - - - - @ - - - - - - - [y |
et [e11242y IsidIax] olfopIog

s101e21pu] AV 24Nnsia]

[ enoN / sanuaj ansag

re



APPENDIX 3 A

e —— T — . = ¥

NY §

LOCAL AUTHORITY TRADING COMPA

(sub) OPTION 1

Description/Definition

R —— -
el L ety

A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

Key Characteristics

Separate entity from the Council and ‘in scope’ staff would transfer to it
Directors can have personal liabilities to the company and to trade lawfully
Must be set up as a not for profit and non profit distributing controlled
company if it is to meet the Council’s requirements of control and tax savings.
Council would be the single ‘member’ (sole owner) of the company - not a
‘shareholder’ contributing share capital, as in a company limited by shares.
Will still have the freedom to trade

Will still be liable to Corporation Tax on any profits

NNDR - if non profit making and philanthropic or recreation objectives up to
100% relief available

VAT on majority of income will be wholly exempt '

VAT on expenditure will need careful crafting of the agreements for service
delivery and the property leases to ensure VAT recovery ratios

Can be a registered charity, but does not have to be. ]
| =——= mﬂm__wm:- = —— £, Juut

Page 118



Sub- Option 1 Appraisal

Advantages

Limited liability for the
Council in the event of
insolvency on the part of
the company

Flexible model in that an
all Councillor or all Officer
or a mix of both can be
appointed to the
Company Board of
Directors.

Not as strongly
associated with pure profit
making as a Company
Limited by Shares

Provides flexibility in the
management of the
service with freedom from
local authority
hureaucracy

The Council will decide
the form of the
Company's ‘constitution’,
which will detail the rules
for running the company.

The service contract will
ensure the Council has
control over the services
the Company is providing.

Council is the sole owner
and will have control via
this ownership.

The Council can put in
place a robust contract

Disadvantages

This council owned
corpaorate option is an
unfamiliar model to
DCC

Room for political and
logistical issues such
as representation and
conflicts if Directors
are aiso
Officers/iMembers as
a Directors’ first duty
is to the company, not
the Council

Administration
governed by the
Companies Act 2006

No power to delegate
to a company, there
needs to be a contract
in place.

If set up as none profit
distributing, profits
would be reinvested
into the company, not
spent elsewhere in the
Council.

Operational
management will be in
the hands of
Directors, not the
Council directly, But
they must act in
accordance with
Company Law.

These contracts will
need to be monitored
which will take up
some resources.

Comments

The Council as
landlord will remain
liable for the buildings
as in order to
maximise VAT a full
repairing lease will
not be granted.

A local authority as
must still deal with
reputation damage in
the event of
Insolvency.

The corporate model
is a major step and
requires more to be
done than simply
arranging or
contracting for a
service.

The company model
for authorities is not
really ‘arms length’ as
authorities are not
easily able to walk
away from a company
they own if it gets into
trouble.

The decision making
power of the
organisation rests
primarily with its'
board of directors, but
some matters will be
reserved to the owner
of the company (the
Council}.

with the company adding The Councils’
another layer of control. Company staff and involvement in the
council officers will company

Page 119




The Council would need
to be controlling member
to take advantage of the
‘Teckal' exemption and
avoid procurement
implications as this would
be an ‘in — house'
company. The Council
can contract directly with
the company without
running a regulated
procurement. Similarly,
the company would not
need to run a regulated
procurement to contract
with the Council for
certain services eg HR,
Legal, Payroll etc

The Company could
however decide to run an
open market competition
and potentially get better
value for services it
purchases from the
Council.

Development or buying in
of commercial acumen
can benefit and improve
service delivery

An opportunity to use the
Service Level Agreement
between the Council and
the Company for the
management and running
of the leisure services to
by adding VAT to the
invoices and improving

need to respect and
understand the new
relationship and
dimensions — always
need to think do we
have a contract for
this? New way of
working both ways.

The Company must
pay for the services
on the basis of ‘full
cost recovery’
principles.

In house Council
services providing
support may suffer if
the company goes out
to the market.

The disadvantages to
the Company are that
it must still follow
procurement rules if it
is set up as a ‘Teckal'
company for any
contracts that are not
supplied from the
Council.

Staying within the
confines of Teckal to
ensure sufficient
control may be difficult
and the limitations of
external business
activity need to be
closely monitored.

Could distort DCC’s
‘Partial Exemption
Calculation’ and the
SLAs will be a matter
for negotiation
between the parties.

The Council is

arrangements could
be operated at a
number of levels:

a) Having the
right to
appoint and
dismiss the
Board of
Directors

b) Ensuring that
certain
decisions ae
reserved
specifically to
members (the
Councill)

¢} Approving the
Company’s
Annual
Business Plan

d) Change the
Company’s
‘Constitution’ if
necessary.

Page 120




the ratio of VAT the
Company can recover.
(VAT charge to DCC will
be of no significance as it
will be seen as non
business activity of
promoting leisure services
provision and not
providing it)

The Company reduce the
value of its taxable
expenditure by
negotiating with the
Council for the grant of a
peppercorn lease to the
company.

The Company could
choose to register with the
Charity Commission — see
sub option 3 below.

effectively finding a
way to subsidise the
Company in order to
secure the best VAT
ratios which suit both
Parties.

Need to ensure ths
peppercorn lease is
not a ‘sham’ by the
adding of additional
charges outside of the
lease, which HMRC
could interpret as rent
in disguise.

If it chose to be a
registered charity, this
will be greater than
the regulation by the
Community Interest
Company Regulator
who Is more hands off
— see sub option 2
below.

A peppercorn rent
would be charged on
all leases to maximise
VAT ratios, rather
than a commercially
based rental.

Does not have to a
registered charity, but
its 'objects’ should be
confirmed with HMRC
ie its philanthropic
objectives are
sufficient to benefit
from exemptions. In
other words HMRC
may grant ‘charitable’
status in their eyes,
and may not insist on
formal registration as
a Charity with the
Charity Commission.

Page 121




e

LOCAL AUTHORITY TRADING COMPANY

TR L ===t}

(sub) OPTION 2

Description/Definition

|
%
|
|
!

Community Interest Company (CIC)

Key Characteristics
Separate entity from both authorities and staff would transfer to it

A strong brand in its own right

A business with primarily social objectives whose surpluses are principally
reinvested for that purpose in the business or the community

A CIC is not a separate form of company but merely a company with certain i ]
characteristics — the Company Limited by Guarantee can be used as the legal
structure of the CIC, but goes further with it's community objects.

Must pass the so called ‘community interest test’

Not to be confused with a charity. ;
Members control — prescribed provisions.

NNDR - as non profit distributing and philanthropic objectives up to 100%

relief available

VAT on majority of income will be exempt

VAT on expenditure will need careful crafting of the agreements for service |
delivery and the property leases to ensure VAT recovery ratios l

[ —_—n = mw' —— e .'.

Page 122



Sub Option 2 Appraisal

The appraisal of Option 1 above, will also be applicable in addition to the
below, if indeed the legal structure for the CIC is to be a ‘company limited by

guarantee’,

Advantages

Disadvantages

Comments

Will not need (it is unable) to
be a registered charity so
the regulatory requirements
of the Charity Commissioner
is not applicable to this
model.

Limited liability assuming
set up as a company

DCC can still have control at
Board level

Stronger brand than a
normai social enterprise as
there is a positive value
attached to the CIC brand,
as it clearly marks the
company as a bona fide
social enterprise.

An unfamiliar model to DCC

No power to delegale to a
company, there needs to be
contract in place.

Asset lock — which generally
does not allow It to distribute
assets to its members
(unless it falls within
authorised payments) or to
transfer assets.

Annual Community Interest
Report to the CIC regulator —
so additional regulation and
red tape.

Director’'s duties are firstly to
the company, very real
prospect of conflict for a
Member or Officer if they
consider their duty to the
Council or area as a whole.
Declarations of interest could
affect decision making in a
way neither authority
expected.

OncesetupasaClCa
company may not convert
back to a plain company
limited by guarantee it may
only be converted into a
charity or registered society;
or be dissolved.

A CIC could be
converted to a Charity
at a later stage to a
Charitable
Incorporated
Organisation.

If wound up the assets
it owns must be sold or
transferred at full
market value — unless
the assets are
transferred to another
asset locked body of
for the benefit of the
community. Itis
possible that the
regulator would
approve a transfer
back to the Council as
a municipal body.

Must pass the
community interest test
annually.

Page 123




P —————— T ————TT———————— e o 1

LOCAL AUTHORITY TRADING COMPANY
(sub) OPTION 3

Description/Definition

A CHARITABLE COMPANY

Key Characteristics

e A charitable company is a private limited company that fulfils the essential
criteria for formal charitable status. |

o Suitable for medium and large charities engaged in activities involving a level

of risk and complexity, using land, employing staff and entering into significant

contractual liabilities and funding arrangements.

A ‘company limited by guarantee’ would still be the structure

Separate entity from the Council and ‘in scope’ staff would transfer to it as it is

a corporate body with its own legal identity.

The Council as member can opt to govem and scrutinise

Larger Charities often have a 'trading arm’

NNDR — charitable objectives should attract maximum relief

Charities attract the most favourable VAT benefits

Would be subject to dual regulation (Companies House and Charity

Commission)

Page 124



Sub Option 3 Appraisal

Advantages

Limited liability for the
Council in the event of
Insolvency

Generous tax incentives

Flexible model in that an
all Councillor or all Officer
or a mix of both can be
appointed to the Board of
Directors, but with a
choice of 2 possible
membership structures.

All charitable companies
have members who have
rights to vote to influence
the charitable company’s
governance. This could
include persons cther
than its directors — a type
of structure that is
intended to be
democratic.

Provides flexibility in the
management of the
service with freedom from
local authority
bureaucracy

The service contract will
ensure the Council has
control over the services
the Charitable Company
Is providing.

The Council can put in
place a robust contract

Disadvantages

Charitable trusts may
be familiar to the
Council, but a council
owned charitable
company option is an
unfamiliar model to
DCC.

Adding in other future
services may not be
straightforward if they
do not fit the
charitable objects. It
cannot have
unrestricted objects.

Room for political and
logistical issues such
as representation and
conflicts if Directors
are also
Officers/Members as
a Directors’ first duty
is to the charitable
company, not the
Council

Dual Administration
responsibilities and
also being regulated
by company and
charity law at the
same time, so not
necessarily as flexible
as a plain company
limited by guarantee.

The Charities
Commission will need
to be satisfied that the
constitution is
acceptable for
charitable status. A
model constitution
provided by the
regulator may be
used.

These contracts will

Comments

A local authority as
must still deal with
reputation damage in
the event of
insolvency. Surplus
assets on winding up
must be applied for
charitable purposes.

The corporate
charitable model is a
major step and
requires more to be
done than simply
arranging or
contracting for a
sarvice.

Members of a
charitable company
owe a fiduciary duty
to the company and
must act in the
company's interest to
the exclusion of their
{Council) or a third
parties’ interest.

Page 125




with the company setting
a layer of control.

need to be monitored
which will take up
some resources.

Council is the sole
owner but it will be
regulated and
controlled to a degree
by its formal charitable
status.

May need to set up a
trading arm to trade
commetcially.

No power to delegate
there needs to be a
contract in place.

Operational
management will be in
the hands of
Directors, not the
Council directly. But
they must act in
accordance with
Company Law plus its
Charitable objects.

Charitable Company
staff and council
officers will need to
respect and
understand the new
relationship and
dimensions - always
need to think do we
have a contract for
this? New way of
working both ways.

It will be subject to
greater charity
regulation than the
regulation by the
Community Interest
Company Regulator
who is more hands
off.

Page 126




APPENDIX 3 B

Chairs a Committee

Homes 5,600 4,100 12,000 4,400
Turnover {2017/18) £31.5m £25.5m £60m £33.2m
Staff 300 260 450+ 490
Chair of Board £10,000 £7,000 £12,000 £10,000
Chair of Committee £1,000 £2,000 £3,000 £1,000
Non-Exec Director £5,000 £3,000 £6,000 £5,000
Non-Exec Director who | £6,000 £5,000 £9,000 £6,000

Page 127

Benchmarking for
Registered Social
Landlords in Wales
which have
decided to pay
Non-Executive
Directors on their
boards



APPENDIX 3C

HEADS OF TERMS LEASE FOR ADM

Annual Peppercorn Rent: rent at the rate of £1 per annum.

Building: [DESCRIPTION OF THE BUILDING] shown edged blue on the plan attached to this deed
{marked Plan 2].

LTA 1954: Landlord and Tenant Act 1954.

Permitted Use: use as a [SPECIFY].

Property: [that part of] the [ground floor] of the Building, the floor plan of which is shown edged red
on the plan attached to this lease [marked Plan 1], {including all the windows and window frames in
that part} {and the [ fascia] {FURTHER DESCRIPTION/BOUNDARIES OF THE LET PROPERTY] [but
excluding all Service Media which are within that area but which do not serve it exclusively] [and
excluding any load-bearing or structural part].

Service Media: all media for the supply or removal of heat, electricity, gas, water, sewage, [air-
conditioning,] energy, telecommunications, data and all other services and utilities and all
structures, machinery and equipment ancillary to those media.

Term: a term of years beginning on, and including the date of this lease and ending on, and
including [DATE].

VAT: value added tax chargeable under the Value Added Tax Act 1994 and any similar replacement
tax and any similar additional tax.

The Landlord grants the Tenant the following rights (the Rights) to use in common with the Landlord
and any other person authorised by the Landlord:

The following rights are excepted and reserved from this lease to the Landlord (the Reservations):
the right to enter the Property for any purpose mentioned in this lease or connected with it or with
the Landlord’s interest in the Building or any other property or to carry out any works to any other
part of the Building, at any reasonable time and, except in the case of an emergency, after having
given reasonable notice (which need not be in writing) to the Tenant;

At any time during the Term, the full and free right [to build into any boundary of the Property, and]
to develop land other than the Building, whether or not such land is owned by the Landlord, as the
Landlord may think fit [; and]

The Tenant shall pay the Annual Rent and any VAT in respect of it by [four equal instalments in
advance on [SPECIFY QUARTER DAYS]]

The Tenant shall pay all costs in connection with the supply and removal of electricity, [gas,] water,
sewage, telecommunications {and] data [and other services and utilities] to or from the Property
The Tenant shall pay all rates, taxes and other impositions and outgoings payable in respect of the
Property

6. INSURANCE

6.1The Landlord shall keep the Building insured against loss or damage by fire and such other risks as
the Landlord considers it prudent to insure against.

6.2The Tenant shall pay on demand a fair proportion of the cost to the Landlord of the insurance of
the Building

7. PROHIBITION OF DEALINGS

The Tenant shall not: assign, underlet, charge, part with or share possession or share occupation of
this lease or the whole or part of the Property;

8. REPAIRS AND DECORATION

The Tenant shall keep the Property clean and tidy, including cleaning the inside and outside of the
windows.

9. ALTERATIONS AND SIGNS

9.1The Tenant shall not make any alteration to the property

10. BREACH OF REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS

The Landlord may enter the Property to inspect its condition and may give the Tenant a notice of any
breach of any of the tenant covenants in this lease relating to the condition of the Froperty.

Page 128



11. USE

11.1The Tenant shall not use the Property for any purpose except the Permitted Use.

12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The Tenant shall comply with all laws relating to the Property and the occupation and use of the
Property by the Tenant, to the use of all Service Media and machinery and equipment at or serving
the Property, and to all materials kept at or disposed from the Property.

13. RETURNING THE PROPERTY TO THE LANDLORD

At the end of the Term, the Tenant shall return the Property to the Landlord in the condition
required by this lease and shall remove from the Property all stock and chattels belonging to or it.
14. INDEMNITY

The Tenant shall keep the Landlord indemnified against all liabilities, expenses, costs

15, LANDLORD’S COVENANT FOR QUIET ENJOYMENT

The Landlord covenants with the Tenant, that, so long as the Tenant pays the rents reserved by and
complies with its obligations in this lease, the Tenant shall have quiet enjoyment of the Property
without any interruption by the Landiord or any person claiming under the Landlord except as
otherwise permitted by this lease.

16. RE-ENTRY AND FORFEITURE

16.1The Landlord may re-enter the Property (or any part of the Property in the name of the whole)
at any time

20, GOVERNING LAW

This lease and any dispute or claim arising out of it or in connection with it or its subject matter or
formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the law of England and Wales.

21. JURISDICTION

Note: Jurisdiction

Each party irrevocably agrees that the courts of England and Wales shall have [exclusive OR non-
exclusive] jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with this lease or
its subject matter or formation {including non-contractual disputes or claims).

22. MISCELLANEQUS

22.1The parties confirm that;

(ajthe Landlord served a notice on the Tenant, as required by section 38A(3)(a) of the LTA 1954,
applying to the tenancy created by this lease

(b)The Tenant made a [statutory] declaration dated [DATE] in accordance with the requirements of
section 38A(3)(b) of the LTA 1954 [a certified copy of which [statutory] declaration is annexed to this
lease]; and

{c)There is no agreement for lease to which this lease gives effect.)

22.2The parties agree that the provisions of sections 24 to 28 of the LTA 1954 are excluded in
relation to the tenancy created by this lease.

22.3 A person whao is not a party to this lease shall not have any rights under the Contracts (Rights of
Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of this lease. [This does not affect any right or remedy of
a third party which exists, or is available, apart from that Act.]

This document has been executed as a deed and is delivered and takes effect on the date stated at
the beginning of it.

Page 129



0¢T abed

Appendix 3D
Summary of Options Appraisal (RAG status)

The headline models of delivery, were considered through an initial high level Options Appraisal, which was the starting point for the
discussion on which model could best fit the Council’s requirements and which models were discounted and why. The resulting ‘high level’
delivery models were as follows:

- Status Quo, in house commercial leisure service

- Outsource to the Private Sector

- A Leisure Trust, the same operating model as a previous ADM, Clwyd Leisure

- A Local Authority Trading Company, which would be wholly owned by the Council.

A copy of the initial detailed Options appraisal which sets out the negatives and positives, is available to elected members on request.
The essential and critical criteria, which was applied to the high level options were as follows:

- Local authority control

- Ability to benefit from tax exemptions

- Ability to trade and grow

- Continuation and resilience of the Council leisure offer

- Effective contribution to supporting delivery of the Council’s Corporate Priorities for its’ citizens and its’ duties under the Social Services
and Well Being Act 2014 and the Well Being of Future Generations Act 2015

The resulting RAG status results based on the above criteria:

Option Description Ability to meet critical criteria | RAG Status
In house commercial leisure Continuation of current model Yellow
service No powers to trade

Future Resilience not assured
Tax exemptions not maximised
Savings not achieved




TET abed

Outsource to private sector

Council would put the service
out to tender; process of

procurement well understood.

Indirect control by the Council
through the contract only.

No influence at Board level so
no direct control.
Contribution to wellbeing and
future generations could be
affected.

Continuation of service
dependant on contractor and
tender price.

Leisure Trust

Well understood model -
common in leisure, museums
and arts centres.

No council control/majority
control.

Council appetite for another
leisure trust unlikely, based on
previous experience.
Resilience of service dependant
on grant funding.

LATC

A separate but wholly Local
Authority owned entity.

Local authority control
Ability to benefit from tax
exemptions

Ability to trade and grow
Continuation and resilience of
the Council leisure offer
Effective contribution to
supporting delivery of the
Council’s Corporate Priorities
for its’ citizens and its’ duties
under the Social Services and
Well Being Act 2014 and the
Well Being of Future
Generations Act 2015




POTENTIAL INITIAL VAT SAVINGS

APPENDIX 4C

Value of VAT lost due to partial exemption

Net VAT savings

£442,222
£151,349

= 00

o Extra VAT| JExtra VAT Standéird Exempt
orecast costs Income fated income
Qutturn_| income

Initial estimated savings

Totals £593,571 -£435,357 -£4,360,264 -£2,176,787

New contract for services provided (say) £2,000,000

Add all Standard rated income at all sites £4,360,264

Total Standard rated income £6,360,264

Add all the Exempt income (total of the C's) £2,176,787

Total Gross income {excluding grant income} -£8,537,051

9% of income that is taxable 74.5019%

Page 132




PAY INFLATION 2019-20

APPENDIX 4D

2018/20
BUDGETS
PAY INFLATION
ELECOM LEISURE COMMERCIAL | £142,920]
| ELECLW__ [ec2 | £4,645]
ELECOA COAST sz.ss'FI
P52CST |NORTH WALES BOWLS CENTRE £2,567]
| ELELCR |LEISURE CENTRES £91,533
P51CST  |CORWEN LEISURE CENTRE £11,200
P54CST ~ |NOVA £20,584
P5SCST __|RHYL LEISURE CENTRE £24,025
P58CST  |PRESTATYN LEISURE CENTRE £2,620
P57CST _ [ST. ASAPH LEISURE CENTRE £4,883
P58CST___ |DENBIGH LEISURE CENTRE _ £12,109
P53CST  JRUTHIN LEISURE CENTRE £11,400
P6OCST _ |LLANGOLLEN LEISURE CENTRE £4,712
il L— T DT Ty Lurers T e o . T WO, B - D" s e
ELENER |NATIONAL EXERCISE REFERRAL SCHEME ‘ £0
LOBCST NATIONAL EXERCISE REFERRAL SCHEME £0
P6BCST __ |GP EXERCISE REFERRAL CO-ORDINATOR £0
_Q._E_P_AV 1P A'v__'mus £34,727
P47CST __|RUTHIN CRAFT CENTRE £6,141
P61CST _ |RHYL PAVILION THEATRE £27.730'
P63CST IEVENTS £856
ELESUP MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT £9,448
P42CST COMMERCIAL LEISURE MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT £9,448
P43CST  JLEISURE CARD £0
| ELEDEV |STRATEGIC LEISURE | £4,750
E53CST TS £1,872
E53001 ARTS - GENERAL £1,872
E53002 LOCAL AUTHORITY GOOD NIGHT OUT FUND £0
| L39CST |DRAGON SPORT |
| L40CST 15X 60 |
e A S M e
P44CST |SPORTS DEVELOPMENT
P44001

P44003

|POSITIVE ACTIVITIES il
COACH & VOLUNTEER DEVELOPMENT

P44007 DISABILITY SPORTS DEVELOPMENT
P44008 SPORTS & PHYSICAL ACTIVITY PROG MGR
P44009 BIKEABILITY

| FACXXX |[FACILITIES

| P48CST. ROYAL INTERNATIONAL PAVILION ] £2,986]
| P62001 [RHYL TOWN HALL [ £2,546]
ESMXXX MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT £6,477]
P41001 ADMIN SUPPORT £513
P41002 |HOS & OFFICER SUPPORT £6,315
P41003 LEISURE GENERAL £0
P41004 LEISURE DEVELOPMENT PARTNER FRAMEWORK £0
P41006 CMLE FACILITIES Mmgg%grl 33 £1,649




1 1
800'v8Z3 SLL'TT9F 89/°620°EF 646°025'L3- £bL'0SS'01F 682'986'63F PSU'PIs3 VL0L
03 650°ZET3 BES'S9ETF- £65'L6V3F £65'L6V3 03 ainsia 218a3e.1§
GZETEF vL0'6STF 66£'061F 66£'06T3 03 (SYIN) 2WIYDS (211952} I51049X3 [eUOEN
668'63 POEETS (Y3 AYA£N £8.4'8ETF £84'8€C3 03 Y 3jed) - Suuale) (eIBWWOD
0F 03 03 03 03 03 705 - ualen) [ensIwwo)
03 LIOETS 1£0'8953- #56'vSST #S6'vSS3 03 168T - Bun3je] [ePRJALWO)
07 805'T893 S62'163 €08'7LLT £08'2LL3 03 poddng ssauisng 1§ suonesadQ Juswadeuepy
Z6+'083 TER'€9T3 0509213~ T88'6873 188'6873 03 UOI|IARY [RUOIIRUIAIU) [eAOY uB||0Bue]
vET'8T3 815643 8856593 901'5€LF 501'SEL3 03 313Ua) YeI) uiyIng
TIT'se3 £51°'263 SL9°€93- 7€8'9513 7€8'9513 03 lleH umol |Ayy
L6¥'ST3 L8L'Y9F 059'e223- LEV'88T3 T62'SLTS 9P1'ETI 341U S|MOG SIBM YHON
03 99¢£'60T3 06V'v93 9G8'ELTT 958'€LT3 03 LOIUNY S1UBAJ 13 "eualy 51UBA] [AYY
S69'vEF 7852593 689'901'T3- 1/2°65L'13 781'SSL 13 630'v3 3189 UOHIAG [AYY
0009123 8ET'SETT 0F 8ET'SET3 BET'SETT 03 M..Um
8ET'093 695'68EF 00E'0L8 698'65Z'T3 6279863 Ov9'ELTI BAON :Zmﬁ..mmn_
TLT9T3 £LL'753 10913 1062123 895’8813 £EE'PZI 311U3) 3NS5 CBSmMm
06.'6£3 8£7°093 984107 tS1'890'T3 ETT'3663 THO'ELY aljua) aunsia Ay
POT'ETT LIBT3 ory'eseI- €T9'LETT 160'52Z3 978’213 a.ua) aunsia] ydesy is
ra 1WA ] T8Z'v¥3 058’9593 TET'T0LF 950'8193 SLO'E8I 2J1ua) aunsiay yBiquag
vZs'sT3 £88'6L1F a1'e6r3- TS0'EL93 SYL'8653 LOE'DPLT 313U5) 2UNs[3 UIYyINy
TSP 208'LETT 18€'LETF £8T'SLET 988'89€3 L6293 3J3ud)) NS UBMIO)
¥81'0T3 A A LT ZEE'6LTIT ££L'0ETF £LL°0ETT 03 343U Bunsia ud|joduep)
._.<”u_”._h”~om xﬁohhv_“”..__ﬂun“n_ (128png} Apisqns 198pnyg E“uo_mv_ﬂ_-..wﬂxm ainppusdxl Buimollog sapiaoe g suopouny ‘sapi|iaed 3dods uj
12unod 61/81 awodu| 6T/8T ss019 |E30 Byo |enuapnid
] 1 1 0 uwu_ﬂé anypuadxy mﬂ_\wﬂ o a
B - T suoRouUNy/S3NIARDE PAIE[3] 2ANS|I| SNOLIEA 1O} .ﬂ.n.& |[opow Aianiap aApewIa}e ue jo uopejuawAdw] - B ] N
"3y XION3dAY | #v3A TVIONVNIA 6T-8T0Z 5139008 ANNIATY - ’ T




H 5 o

.

o N .

Buipes) sa3uaWwwod 11y

L9103 34N jeis adods ui Jo Japurewiay
| 32073 JLV1 Aq paus)s pERUO)
a2e(d vy Jupuad/sasueinsu 31 v

2oe|d Uy sa1npa30:d pue sapijod 31

22e|d U) SWAISAS [EPURLY Ty

Jauige] Aq paacadde 31y ay) Joy cm_r _m_ur,.a

213[dwod sjuawaduesse EmEoum.cns_ eiuo)

J1Y7 Aq M31Aa1 Joj pajadwod 1enuoy

el

pays|dwos sjuswaaiBy _..“50._ EAITNEN

333dW03 $3|NPaYDs AioyuaAL|
2121dwo> sasea] Apado
pJojpue] Awuno?y pue dndoio Juswadeue
193557 Aq pascidde 31y ay) 0} s1asse 4o ase,

ot

232dwod pasnnbas sanaias Jo uonedyad

219|dWo3 1Peus yel
| paraydwon 53as5e Jo sraeys [e39) U0 PdUBHIP 3

diysiaquiaw
pleog DLV ? WNPURIOWAW 0 |eacuddy [12uno)

2JU3I3)31 JO SULID) PUE dIysIAqUIBLLY

pleog a3ueusaaon yFajens jo |eaosdde Jauige)
diysiaquiaw

pieag D1y 3 WNpueIcwaul jo [eacsddy J2uiqen

HY4
| WI0Jy S3IPUIS [BNPISAI 10} PBUOHIE SININNSAL |75

"- i ug|d {eI3UBLL] pue
‘saiijod "swalshs a1eiul 03 31¥1 01 IdNL Hels Aay

2131dw03 23va1a502 JO SWIBL pue
(esodoud diyssaquuaw pieog asuewaaos j3ajens

13 dwos nndoauca diysiaquiaw pieoq J1vi

219]dWwod HoNNNISUOD JLYT Beaa]

asnay saeduro) yum paialsigal 5, ha_u_._

1503 vopejuawajdwi 13l0ad

® sdulaes anuaass patepdn jo |eacsddy Jauigey
= T sweu Auedwoy g 1opang
3u0 Jo Juaunuicdde 3]y 343 Jo JuaWYSIqe)sI
*aseD) ssauysng ayl Jo jeaosddy (unod)

sauosali A9 Vs xipuaddy




st

g ysel
2Ins1a

peoa1 weaj
13load
3Insial

dnoig

ysiuld 8
ySel Swwod

pea| weaj
1daload
Swwo)

dnoug ysiui4
'3 ASEL 1D

pea] weay
39(031d 1D}

dnoJg ysiuy dnoig ysiuig
B Asel [ed g %seL UH

peal weay
1aloid pEd] Wea|
jega 18{04d HH

dnoin

ysiuid g
Wse| asueuty

peal
wea} 123(01g
3ueUld

138euey 19l0ag

T pieog 1alolg

pleog 188png

sjuswasuee
Suyyeys |enpisal UORESI{IGOoLA)

" uoneay1nads 13 SIUIWNIOP 1IBIIUO)

$a2.1n0sal pue tmum u—D uonesiqon
31V 343 JO JUBWYSHQRIST

SWIRAJYS HIOM, Z 25BUY

WED43S RIOM T 25BYd |
L i’

21NN IIueusao Paloid gs xipuaddy



uonesIUNWIWOD)

pawwojul daay épebeuew aq 1saiaiul ay) [ MoK

FONINTANL
ybiy  wnpsyy Mo s
3
o
3
n
_u N~
™
—i
eousnyu| B }saisju| %J
BuisnoH @ sjessy ‘saniioe {lewajur yt) Juswypedag m-a
00d uoliesiuebip
Wav ayi jo adoos uiyum yeys Jepjoysyelg
ses Jsployayers
siaployayels

0§ xipuaddy



BuisnoH B siessy ‘saniioed

204

QY 94! Jo 5d00S J0 N0 aJe OUM Hy 4 UILRIM JBIS
HElS

suaqoy uuen

-1 lewicd

L~} lewsoju)

§59204d UOIJEYNSUOD [BLO 4

sdnoub 0] sojepdn aoe) 0} 808} [EQIBA
Buyaliq yeis UsHUM

Aessansu sy

sjuepisal uo joedw aoiues Aue aq juom aleyl
yoeoidde |ejo1swiLod € pjing 0} Aunyoddo ue sisiy] =
"palIsAlep
pue paubisap s| abueys ay) se 8618w 1M YIIYM sanmunuoddo aie alay)

(jeussiun ) Juawpedaq
uonesiebiQ
Japloys¥ers
Jaployaxels
SI9p|0YXELS

SJ8UMQO

uoIEdIUNWWIOY JO ULIOY

Aousnbalg uonesiunwwo)

sjlejopebessaul UOKEDIUNWILIOD

96 Xipuaddy

Page 138



SUIqGMIS EJODIN

UONEYNSUOD USHUM [BLULO 4
sdnoabysienpiaiput Joj sbuliesw jewou
leqaA pue uspum -Buysuq yeig

sisumQ

UOIEDIUNWIWOCY) JO ULI0S

Auessanau sy Aouanbsi4 uonesiunwwor)

slijsuaq pajedionue
34} sAsiyoe 0} 8|qeun st ) Ji ssaooid ey dois o) uondo ue s1 sy .
ssao0.d
juswsbeuew josfoid ay) ybnoiy) paysa) Bujeq S| Bupjuiyy leqquy oy e
WQV ue jo uondo ayj
Je Bunjoo| alepijeA 0} sioALPp |euojjelsdo pue [eldueuy juepodwi aie Qioy| = siiejop/ebessaw uopeolunwwos
uoneouNWWo?)

pauuoyul dasy| ipebeuew aq jsals)u) 1By} Jm MOH

FONINTINI

YoiH  wnipspy  mo7

wnipsiy

. -
i . aousnyu| g }saie)u]

06 xijpuaddy

g
—
—Zhk WEW®-

Page 139



uonedunwwol

pauuoju; desy s pobeuew eq 1$3Ja)ul JI8Y) (M MOH
ZONINTANI
UBH  wnips MO s
- - 3
-]
g 3
1
wripapy N
1
ybiH
_ aousnpu| g }sa18y|
(lewsajul y1) Juswpedaq
20d uonesiuebip
siaquiswl 118 Jaployaxelg
juawsbeuepy Joussg Jaployayels

siaployaels

06 xipuaddy

Page 140



00d
s1aquiapy Jeuigen

slaquiapy JauIqe)

SUIGAMS B(oDIN

UOHEJILNWIWOS USIUM [BULICH =
sBunsaw jewoju e
syodal j5 o

Aessaoau sy

"an200 ||m sabueyo ou usy) peaye of Jou ssop WAV @Yl Y|
saniiqisuodsal
8U1 IN0 |9A3] pue Seale 82IAJSS JISiAa) 0) Ajiunpoddo ue saplAold e
sealy 90IAI9S JBUJ0 UIym paquosqe aq [im WY ue jo adoos Jo 1no
PawWaap se0IAI9g 2INSIaT aY) pue SHYJ UM Sao1aas Buiuiewsss ay| e
‘1oafoid d|qeiA e sI )l
J NQY Ue 0] i3jsuel pinom SHY 4 JO peaH ay) se sabueyo yels aie ajay)
"S80IAIES 8INSI9T JO) WY Ue Jo uondo ay)
Je Buiyoo| aepijea 0} sieAup |euoljesado pue [eloueuy Juepodun aie aiay)| e

(leusayun 1) swpedsq
uonesiueti
Jsproysyelrg
dspjoyayelg

Slapjoyaxelg

SIBUMQD

UOHEJUNWIWOY JO U0

Aouanbaig uoheounwwon

sjiejap/ebessaw uogesILNLWIWOY

0§ xjpuaddy

Page 141



eseog Weyelo SlaumQ

Slaquap peaT 0} sajepdn [eqieA
‘Iounog pue Jauiqe) o) spoday UOI}EJIUNWIWOY) JO WIO4

Aessadau sy Kousnbai4 uonesunwwoD

‘|louno?) B4} Yim UIBWS] JEY} BSOU) SE Slues ay) ale
NGV @Y} O} i9jSUBI} B} JJe]S 10} SUOIIPUOD PUE SULIB) || DINSUS |IIM 94
syuapISal 0} AISAIlp 821AIaS U0 Joedwl Jou M SiyL

ss9004d 8y} dojs 0} uondo ue s| aiayl

ased ssauisng ay) ybnosy) paisa) Buiaq s| Bunjuiyy [emu sy L

WQy ue jo uondo aiy

| Buijooy ajepijea 0} ssoaup Jeuoiesado pue [eloueuy Juepodw se aiByy o s|1e13p/ebESSAIL UONEOUNLILIOD

UoNEDIUNWIWOD)

paysijjes deoy i pabeuew aq 1S2.8jul JIBU) (1M MOH
FONIN NI

ybiH wnipsy Mo

wnipay

m -
_ . aouanyu| g 1sa1djuj

96 xipuaddy

E
—ZPFWXwmnk

Page 142



uoleoIuNWWoD
paysnes daoyy ¢ pabeuew aq 1ssiajul Iy} [|m MOH
FONINTNI
ubiH  wnipey Mo

MO

I =
EREN -
gouanjju) g }saIsu|

—-—ZwWewo-

jauiqed (rewiajul y1) Juswpedag
224 uojjesiuebip
Aoueoyg
'® 80ueuld 1o} Jaquisiy peaT g douspuadapu] g Buiaqiop 10} 19quapy peaT Jopjoyayelg
SIaquIs Jauiqed J3pjoyaxers
sIspjoyayels

26 xjpuaddy

Page 143



19qIWa PeIos|3
200
$J0[15UN0D 900
S1aquiIBiy

aseog weyei
sajepdn jequap

Aessaodu sy

|IOUNOD) BY) YlIM UIBWS] JeY)} 9SOY) SB SWES BY) BJe
AV 84} O} JaJSURI) Jey) Jeis 10} SUOHIPUOD PUE SULIS) |8 BINSUS [IIM SM
S)uapisal 0} AJaA||8p 92IAISS U0 joedwi JoU [ SIy |

ssaooid ay) dojs o) uondo ue si 81ay |

asen ssauisng ay) ybnouyy passe) Buteq s Bunjuiy) equl 3y

WQv ue jo uondo ayy

1e Bunjoo| ajeplieA 0} SI8ALP jeuoijesado pue [eloueUYy jueyodun sie 21y e

- & & &

(feusjui ) uswpedsq
uoesiuebiQ
Jsploysyelrs
Japloysielg
siaploysielrs

SIBUMO
UOIE2IUNWIWIOY.) JO W0

£ouanbsal4 UOHESJIUNWWOD

s|iejepabessaw uolesUNWWE)

26 xipuaddy

Page 144



aseog weyein SJoUMO

sjodoy e
sBugoaw oyl -
sdoysyuom Jaquisyy UOIBIIUNWIWOY) JO ULOS

Alessaogau sy Aouanbai4 uoljesiunwwon

"IdUN0Y 3y} YyIm ulewal Jey) asoy) se alues ay) e

WAy syl 0} Jojsues} Jey] Jejs 10§ SUOHIPUOD PUE SULIB) [[B BINSUD || SN
SjuapIsal 0} AIsAlIdp @diAIes uo joedu) Jou (M Sy |

ssa20.d ay) dojs 0} uondo ue s| asay |

ased ssaulsnq sy} ybnouy) pajsa) Bujeq st Bupuiyl jemus ay .

WQy ue jo uondo ay

1e Bupjoo] 1epijeA o} s1aaup jeuofielado pue [eioueul Juepodw) sie aloy] o

s|lejep/ebessaw uonesuNWwwWon

Uol2oIUNWWIOY)
paysnes daay ipebeuew aq Jsalsiu) Jiay) |Im Mo
FONINTINI

ybiH  wnipey Mol

B -
. -
20uBNjju} B }58J0)U|

J6 Xipuaddy

—ZFuwwneE

Page 145



pauuojul daay

FONINTINI

ybiH  wnipey Mo m
3
MO o
il - .r— m
E - 3
[ —_—
| |— 1

-

L |
uosiun ‘gno

sanjejuassidal uolun apeil

suolu apell

uofESIUNWIWOYD

ipabeusw aq 1saI0)Ul IBY) | MOH

gouaN|u| %5 1salalu|
(jewssjul y1) Juewpedaq
uonesiuebig
Jspjoyaxelrs
J3p|oysxelS
si1eployaxels

06 xipuaddy

Page 146



o0d
slaquia pieog jo9loid

Juswobeuepy Jousg

SHaqoy umen
sbunespy

Alessaoau sy

Hoddns pue adIApE JISY) BNEA DAL »

JuswAoldapal ybBnosy) sassol Gof PIOAR 0) 393S M A, »

abueyo pue JuawAhojdapsal punose Aolod MOJIO) M SN e
Ajua mau Aue 0} Jajsuel)

1ey} Jeis Joj paulejuiewl Sie SUOHIPUCD PUB SWID) e BINSUS [IM oM e
S92IAISG BINSIST

PUE [I5Un0d ay3 Jo Yieay uus) buo| ay) Joj Aiessaosu ale sabueyo asay)| e

(reusayu p) uswyedag
uonesiuebio
Jsploysyels
Jspjoyaxe)s
siapjoysyelg

SI3UMQO
UOIBOIUNWIWOY) JO WO

Aousnbai 4 uolesiunwiwos

s|iejopjebessaw uonesjunwwon

06 xipuaddy

Page 147



anio SiMog SS{eAR YHON
By

8dld Uelg

OLH3A

sBunsaw wea ] 1sloid
sBunoaw pleog 10afoid
jlew3

Aessaosu sy

gsa160.d 108l0id 8y jo sjielaq

paysijes deay|
SONINTNI

ybiH  wnipsy MO m
3
Mo H
3
1
wnipawy N
1

yBiy

J19pjoyaxels
Japoyexels
sJopjoyanels

SJOUMQD)

UOI}EIUNWWOY) JO ULIOH
fouanbal4 uonesunwwo)
s|iejop/obiessaw UoRENUNWIWOD
uonedIuNWWoD

i pabeuew eq 1saIa)U] JISUY) (I MOH

aouenpu| g §sasejy|

26 xipuaddy

Page 148



SBA0JS) BlWep

'sabueyo Aue Buiiejap Jepa
ajepdn |equap,

Aressaoau sy

"A19Aljap 891M9g uo

Joedwi jou |iw sy :Buibueyd Aew Do Ul passalep s 2INs19) Yoym ui Aem ay |

palsies deay
ONINNNI
yBH  wnipewy Mo s
3
MO )
a H m
- T
£ wrpsy N
| = _

—

QNI $pMog SS[eM YHON

sispjoyeyels

SIBUMQ

UONEDIINWIWOY) JO ULO4

Aouanbai 4 uonesunwwioy

sjiejap/abessal uonedunwwion
uofjesiunwwo))

épafieuew aq jsaiaju) Jidy) fiim moH

aouanyu)| Q 1salau|
(lewsayur p) Juswyedag

uonesjuebip

05 xipuaddy

Page 149



aseog Weyei)
Bunssin
Aguow
sajepdn 108loud

pauuojut deay

3ONINENI

UBH wnpey Mol w
3
M -
: T3
Er = 1
_ . wnipay _q

-
fouejunoooy
02d

pieog swwe.boid ouno) ay) buideysay

sisquap 1PuIqe)

slaumQ
UOEDIUNILIWOY) JO L0
Asuanbal4 uoledunwuio)
s|ie1ep/ebiessaw uoneNUNWWoD
uonEINUNWWOD)

ipafieuew aq 1SaIa)ul JIBY) |1W MOH

aouanyu| g 1salelu|
(jewsayu y1) Juswpedaq
uonesiuebiQ
Jspjoyaerg
Japjoys)ers

96 xipuaddy

Page 150



Jsna
ajepdn |equap

Aiessaoau sy

"aWes ay) uiewal M SaA19sIN0A Ag adeds so10 Jo
asn ay} 1nq ‘BuiBueys aq Aew j1ounoy ayj ul psjesado St 8Ins|aT yoiym ui Aem ay |

paysnes doay
FININAML
ybH  wnpew Mol m
3
MO d
Z 3
1
wnipay N
|

[

S90S djjesoows( pue jeba

velg Buki4 2 000

saioey ,2doos ul, uiyim aoeds Bums)-qns S0y} Jo SjUBUS |

JoYyo

UOHEJIUNLILLIOT) JO U0

Aousnbai4 uonesiunwwor)

s|iejepyabessaw uoyesunuwo
uonesjuNWwWo)

ipebeurw aq 1sasa)ul J1ay) | Mo

aouan)yu| g }saJa)u|
(rewsoqu y1} Juswypedaq
uonesiuebi
Jspjoysxels
Japjoyayels
siepjoysyelrs

96 xipuaddy

Page 151



Aessadau sy

awes oy} utewal [jim AsAllep adlaes syl Ing
‘Buibueya aq Aeul S90IAI8S 2.ns1aT BulBAlap S! IDUNOD Yl YoM Ul Aem ay ]

palsies dady|
SONINIENT
ybiH  wnpew Mol s
3
“ MO d
| wnipay N
| | 1

— .-

SNOUEBA
saoe} eny Apenbal jey) sienpiapuy/sdnolb pasiuebiossqni) suods

§J9S[] 90IMOG

$3A0IS) DlWep

Aouanbal UoESIUNWILWOYD

s|iejep/abessaw uonesluNWWo)
UoesIunwwor)

ipebeurw aq jsaojul JIBU} ||W MOH

aouanju| g }sas)u|
(jewssyui y1) JuswpedsQg
uoljesiueBbiQ
Japjoysxels
J3p|oyaXElS
siapjoyaxelrs

SI9UMQ

25 xipuaddy

Page 152



peusnes doaay
FONINTANI

WBlH  wnipsyy Mo s
. . 3
MO’ -4
x il 3
1
wnipspy N
I

ybiH
spuapisal DDA

"(SHIN) swsyog |euasey asiaisxg [euoieN ay; ybnoy) papuny siesn |8oIAIeg

SJ9SM 80IAIRG

SBA0IC) alwep

Hes Aq eyepdn equep
abueyd 4o Jurod e saoe) Ul 2910N

UoREIUNWWION

ipabeuew aq jsasajul Jray) (i moH

20uUsNyu| g 1S3IBJY|
{lewsaju; y1) Juswipedsg
uonesiuebiQ
d9pjoyaxelg
i3pjoyaxers
sispjoyayels

SIBUMQO

UOIEDIUNWWOYD JO WO

06 xipueddy

Page 153



BONINTANI

ubly  wnipely Mol s
3
. Y
Mo 3
1
wnpeyy N
ybiH
a20usnyu| g 15813)u|
(leusop p) uawpedaq
awayos diysiaquiaw ainsia ayysybiquag ay} 0} aquIsqNs oym sjU3pISaY DOd uoiesiuebiQ
siaploy diysiaquispy aInsia Japloysyers
s19s() 8JIAI9G 13p|oyayels
siaploydXels
S8ACIC) alwer siaumQ
sajepdn |[BQUBA
abueyo Aue jo yulod je SB2IoN UO[1EDIUNWILIOD) JO W04
Aiessaoau sy Aouanbal4 UoHEdILUNIWLOD
-BlLUES 3} U[BWa) (Iw Assmep
20198 BY) Inq ‘Buibueyd aq Aew paleallep Buiaq s S801A9g aINsIa) jey) Aem ay | s|iejopyabessaw uoesuNWWod

06 xipuaddy

Page 154



(teuwsau) j1) yuswpedaq
sjuepisai DOQJ uonesiuebiQ

(20Q 0} SI0NSIA PUE Jo Sluapisal) Jliqnd 8y} JO sIaquialy

ispjoyayels

sJas() 0BG lapjoyayers
siepjoysyels

SOA0JC) BlWEep slauMQ

sajepdn |eqiaa

abueyo Aue Jo yuiod Je seonoN UoIEDIUNWIWOY) JO W0

Asessaoau sy Aouanbai4 uonesunuwiwon

"auies ay) urewsas [ Aiaalap aomas Buysixe sy ing

‘ButBueyo aq Aew j1ounog ey} Aq palealap ale 53IAIBG AINSIST Y2IUM Ul Aem ay | s|iejop/ebessal uofesunWwWos

UoHEIUNWILIOY)

paysies daa) ipabeuew aq 1saJa)ul 418y} A MOH

06 xipuaddy

Page 155



S,/1S INOYLM S9SN |00YIS

S4BS() BOIMOG

S9A0IC) SIWEf

sojepdn |equap
abueyd Aue j0 Juiod ay) je S92ON

Aessadal sy

awes ay) uiewsal |m A1sAlep

so1n9s Ing 2Bueyd Aew pasaljep Buiaq s) S82IAIBG 8NSIAT YIIym U] Rem ay

paysnes doay|

SONINTANI
ybH wnipay Mo w
3
MO H
| ) T3
_ . 3
wnipe N
L -3 ]

19p|OYINELS
Jsploysyels
819p|oyaxeIs

SIOUMQ

UOIJEDIUNWWIOY) JO WO

Aousnbai4 uonesunNwuwoD)

s|ie]ep/ebessowl UolEIIUNLUILWIOY
uoljesiunwwo)

i pabeuew aq 1seIs)ul oY) [l MOH

aousn|ju| g }s8J8ju}

26 xipuaddy

Page 156



S9A0IC) DIer

swnJoj} jooyds [e12ads pue Auepuodas ‘Aiewnd e ajepdn

ubiH

sajepdn jeqioa

abueyd Aue Jo Jujod e saonoN

FONINTANI

tunpapy

Klessaosu sy

§30JAI8S uo Joedw)
Jou jjm sy} Ing 'Bujbueyd eq Aew paianlap S| SB0IAISS BINSIST YoIym ut Aem sy |

Mo

paysnes daay

Mo

—ZhWEwn -

Lunjpay

ybiH

uoneonp3

04

sispjoysyerg

Si8UMQ

UCIEDIUNWIIOY JO L0 4

Aousnbaiy uonesunwwosy

sjiejapyabessaw uogeouNWWo)
uonesuNWWOY)

ipebeuew sq jsaia)ul Jisy) [ moH

Page 157

aousn(ju| g }saI8iuy]
(lewssjur 1) uswuedeq

uonesiuefip

0§ xipuaddy



$SOA0IE) BlWep

ajepdn [eqiaA
J9ye

fiessanau sy

-pabueyoun s1 j0EU0D BullsIXa JNOA jo suLIa)
ay; ‘Buibueyd aq Aew 9D Ul PLISA|SP S| SBOIAIBG 8JnsiaT Yolym ul Aem ay]
pauuojul doay)

FIN3NTANL

ybiH  woipa Mo

»

=

3
—ZFwRwn k-

s — |n—_.| 1
ybiH

VAON 2U} 1B uoissaouoo Bupsajeo aseaj oym uoljesiuebio jewsixy

01Sno
1BY10

SJaUMQ

UOEDIUNLIWO? JO U0

Aousnbsi4 uoneNUNWIWOD

g|iejop/abessawl uolIeduUNWWOoYD
UONEIUNWIWOD

¢ pebeueLy 9q 1s848)Ul JIay) [ MOH

aouanyu) 3 1sa1alu|
(feusayui ) JuswpedsQ
uonesjuebio
Jaployaxels
Jepjousels

25 xipuaddy

Page 158



aseog weyels)

Jape
Aessaoou sy

"BUIes By} UIBLID! [|IM SaIII0.) |EDO] JINOA 1B DaidAleop
saojues ay) nq ‘Buibueyd aq Aew passAlap S| S20IAIBS BINSIST Yoiym Ul Aem oy |

paulojul deay

FONININI
UbiH  wope Mo

x MO

-
B

JUSWILIBAOL) [BOOT

—ZFWUXWwwnk

Pajed0| 811|108} SIaUM SBale Ul S|Iouno) Aunwiwo?) § umo] AlD

sjuswpeda(] JUBLILIBAOL)

slsumQ
UOHEDIUNWIIOY) JO LU0

Aouanbali4 uogesunwwor)

s|iejap/abessalw uonesunwwos
Lo EOIUNWIWIO.)

épabeuew aq 1sa1)Ul JIBY) |V MOH

8ouanyu| g 1sas8)u|
{(lewaju y) juswpedsaqg
uonesiuebi
Japjoyaxels
ispjoyaxels
siapioysyels

06 Xipuaddy

Page 159



aseajal ssald

AIBSS909U SY

awes a8y} ulewal [im AaAap a01a9s ay)
1nq ‘Buibueyd aq Aew sa01AIRg 2ins19T BuuisAlap S| IDUNCD aLy) Yaiym Ul Aem sy |

Ajasolo abeuepy

FONINTINI
yby wnipsy Mo
i |

wnpsiy

.
e -

[eusnop |AUY ‘ssald 3814 '1sod Ajeq

—ZFwprEwan-

SJOBJU0D BIpaW Aa)|

FET )

UONEJIUNWLIOY JO W04

Aosuanbai4 uoljesiunwiio)

sjiejop/abessaw uoneUNWWOD
uonesIuNWwWo)

ipabeuew aq Jsasslul IOy} [lM MOH

8o%UN|ju} g 1S8I8JY|
(leusajul ) JuswpedsQ
uonesiuefuQ
lapjouayels
Jepjoyaxiels
sisployselg

96 xipuaddy

Page 160



Ayyuop Aouanbai4 uonesunwwon

juswdojanap 109foid ayj jo ped se pamoj|of sassaoosd sy) uo sajepdn s|iejop/ebessaw uogeounwiwoy

uonesunwIwo)

pauuojul deay ipabeuew aq jsasejui 1oy (| MOH

FONINIINI
ybiH  wnipey Mo s
3
MO |
| E 3
T - 1
= . i
EE -

aouUBNYU| B }SAIB)UY|

{lewsaqu ) Juswipedsg
JUBWILIBAOYD) USIOMA

uonesiuebip

90O 1PNy s8jepp Jepjoyaxelg
sjustedaq JUBWIUIBAOL) Japioyaxelg
siapjoyaxels

uamQ uelg slaumQ

26 Xipuaddy

Page 161



-swies ay} Bujuiews) ale AIsAi9p 901AISS pue SSIIIOE) 8yl INg
‘Buibueyd aq Aew HOQ Ul paJseAlep Buieq SI S30IAI9S 2INSIaT UdiyMm ul Aem sy

FONINTAN

yBiH WP Mo w
E}
Mo d
E]
1
wnpspy N
l

ybIH

JUSWIUIBA0S) [BUOHEN B JUSLILIBAOSD) USIaM
sio0jgnbal spiepuels/Ansnpuj

sjuswipeda(] JUBWILIBACY)

aseoqg weyeis)

-1aBeuepy palol4 ay) ‘pieog 10alold ay) Jo SISqUISW YIm sBunaawl L-|

sjlejopebessalu uopeIUNWWOC)
UOKESIUNLIWOY)

;pobeuew aq 18a1a)ul J12Y) || MOH

gauanyu| g 15a19)U|
{lewssiul p) wawpedag
uonesiuefiQ
Jopjoyaiels
Jeploysielg
Siap|oySNE)S

sIaumQ

UONEDIUNLILLIOY) JO W0

06 xipuaddy

Page 162



SONINT-HNI
UbH wnipay Moy

#07

[
|

fuedwoy sinsio ajesud

—ZFuEWn-

a.nsia aouel)y

1PY10

S8A0.C) Blwep
"abueyo Aue jo asiape o} JopeT

Aiessaoau sy

uonedIUNWIWO:)

ipebeurw eq 1saisiul Jiay) (I MOH

gouanyu| ¥ 1saisu|
(lewsau 3) Juswipedsq
uonesiuebi()
ispjoyaxels
Jsployaxyels
slapjoyayelg

SIBUMQ
UOI)EDIUNWIWIOY) JO WO

Kousnbaig uonesunwiwon

0§ xipuaddy

Page 163



pauwlojul dasy|

FONAN TN

ybiy wnipspy Mol

3
-
—Zwxuwwk-

00d

sI9quiaw yeys Hy'4 UON

Hels

ipebeuew aq JsaIo|l JIBU} (M MOH

aousnjjuj B 1sassu|
{leuseiu 1) uswpedsq
uonesiuebiQ
JOPIOUSNEIT
Jspioysners
SI9p|OUSHEIS

SIDUMQ)
UONEDIINWIWOCY JO W04
Aousnbal uolEIUNWILLOYD

sjiejop/ebessaw uojesiunuiwo)

96 xipuaddy

Page 164



(lewiajul ji) wowpedaq

$9ssauIsSng [e007/SJape))] 9|0g uonesiuebi

2AU83 YeID BY} 1. §SIN0 UNJ PUE SIOM JIQIUXD OYM SISty lspjoyayels
8410 Jopjoyayels

siapjoyaxeig

aseog weyeigy S19UMO)

1oueu) LOJEDIUNWIWOY) JO LU0

Aiessaoau sy Aousnbai4 uonesiunwwon

's}ijouaq pajedionue

34} aAs1yoe 0} Biqeun s1 ) Ji sssooud ay) dojs o) uojdo ue sy aiay] e
ssa201d

Juswabeuew joafoid ayi ybnosyy pajssy Buieq s) Bunjuiyl e 8y e

QY ue Jo uondo ay;

1e Bunjoo; sjepijea o} siaaup Jeuoneiedo pue [eroueuy Jueboduwl aie a1ay) sjiejop/ebessaw uopesunwwon

uoleIUNWWOD

06 xipuaddy

Page 165



S9A0IC) BiLEef

uolesIuNWIWOD jlews
sajepdn |eqUap

Aessaoau sy

-awies ay) Buiuiewal si anuad Yelrd ey} asn NOA Y2Iym Ul
Kem ay) Ing 'BuiBueyd aq Aew anuad Yyeld sy sajesado DA yoym Uy Aem ay |

IIN3NTNY

ybiH  wmMpay

M0

pausnes deay
1
s
3
MO d
L 3
L
wnpepy N
1
ubiH

SIAUMO

UCH}EDIUNLIWOD) JO WIS

Aouanbaig uonedunwuo)d

s|iejep/ebessaw uoeouNWWoY)
UOIEDIUNWIWIOY)

. pabeuew aq jsaidlui Jivy) [IM MOH

gousNju| B JSaISiU|

26 xipuaddy

Page 166



{suonoadun

4d@9 ¥23y2 0} paan}
Sunedisiued sienpiapu

‘saniunoddo
wouy panyauaq aAey oym sjuawadeld

SaWBYIS

jopapwoidsprelag | goMaN A A Ylom/saauley/saonuaadde jo Jaquiny aauen/diysasnuaiddy 900
Awouoy3 jexon

‘Yuow snoiaaad 3yl Joy SJUBpPISAL I O] SAAIAIIS JO

papiAcid 3aNUDA R PaI3Yo Alaniap ay3 Joy pasn sanuaA/sanoey
5JUBA3 JO awwesdold | 0DMIN A A {2dods jo 3n0) aaneuwssyje jo Jaquiny SSIHUNWIWOT uiyum Aanttaq 500

suoiesiuesio

pUETE! 221035 J)|gnd Jaylo yum

Jo} 12350d F'3 ‘Buppiom diysiaupied u pasamjap saaienIul diysizunied ul pasaaiep

diyssauped Jo aduapiAl | OIM3IN A A 3J2u3q Ajunwwo) Jo Jaquiny | saapepul Wjauaqg Alunwwio) 00
dupjiom diysiauneg/Aunwwor

|15uno) Y3 Aq paucIssILILIod

uelunolze Avedwod S921AI3S IY) 0} [RUCHPPE S| eyl JNAY

Aq papinod sishieuy [ OOMIN A A BpeJ] Wouy pajesausd F awodul 1IN | 9yl Aq pajesausd AWwodu| JaN £00

juelunodae Auedwod |2pow Asaalsp
Aq papinosd sishleuy | 0DMIN A A lusidlyya xey alow e woJy Buiaeg sduines 1A 200

Jageuepy

aueuly | (Ajuo TD) {Auo |udy) sa)eJ ssauisng woJdj uondwaxa
ll!9 59)ey ssauisng J2a A A %06 YUMm pajeldosse Bujses s3uines YaNN 100
sjyauag jepueuly

Bunaaw
pieog dunaaw
UBWIBAOYG | |RUOIRJadO

JUIPIAT oym Apasuend Alyyuopy uondudsag NIl | gruag

SUORIUNY PUE S3NAIIE P3Je|dJ 3NSIA| SNOLIBA 10} ‘(INQY) ‘|apow Asanijag aaneussyy pasodosgd

ue|qd uoljesyeay syyauag qs xipuaddy

Page 167



Aanins yeis

jenuue 1g 5,774 40 19BJ3X3 Ue uo paseq INAY
synsal Asains | ODM3N A Aq uayeuspun AsAns JJeis jenuue |g LOIIe)SIES Jels 10
ssauisng sy
01 aAnej2J uonauny/Ayjioe}
oEa Joj S/aINSEdLL B 5sa20e A3y} Jeyl SaJlAas
aa.13e 01 paau M 1Y) 910N | ODMIN I A 3Y} UM UOIIILJSHES JDLIDISN) LOI1DBYSIIES J2LUOISND 010
ssauisng st
0] 3AIE[31 uolduny /Ay ey
yJea 1oj s/aInseawl e ofjojuod ay3
2213e 01 paau |IM1BYI 21ON | OIM3N A A UIY3IM SUOIDUNY |18 Uy uoijedilied sajes uonpedidiiied 600
(sisAjoup
pua.iy -JNQY SO (1am S0 354
yum pabboj aq 03 suiDjdwi0d
|10 Jof JuawdnbaJ
3Y31 2ads UM apnjpul 03 panjosas o3ejuadisd pue yuow
P3aN} OIMIN woly woday | OOMIN A A Jad pad8o| syuie|dusiod Jo JaquInN pagso| sulejdwo) 200
Ayjend
5a553UISNY
370 Jo Jjeyaq uo apew {uoissiwwod Jo 1au}
UOISSILLLLIOD JO U F S3es sassauisng a4ysydiquaq 4o jleyaq
‘3 ay} pue uo p|os spood 3 an|eA 73 ‘sassaUsNg
panoid §3%1AI8S fspood aliysydquaq wouy pasndoid pawoddns
ay) ‘saiuedwod 30Q Jo 151 | OIMIN A A 5301AJ35 pue spood Jo 1adsas ul 3 sassauisng anysysiquaq 200
Sunasw
pieog Fupasw
ajuewsanos | jeuonesado
uaping LITETY Ayanend Ajysuow uondursaq apL | giruag

Page 168



Cyngor

Bl Cgmbven

1

| g~ B Ll__

_ounty Council

'
|

Implementation of an
Alternative Delivery Model
Company

Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 564

The project seeks to implement a Council owned, not for profit Local
Authority Trading Company limited by guarantee, (LATC), for the

Brief description: delivery of various leisure related facilities, activities and functions,
which potentially will include some further service provision where a
compelling rationale can be established.

Date Completed: 17/04/2019 12:44:43 Version: 2
Completed by: Sian Price
Responsible Service: Business Improvement & Modernisation

Localities affected by

the proposal: Whole County,

Residents within DCC Visitors to DCC Users of the facilities DCC schools
DCC Members DCC staff members impacted by the change Rhyl Town
Council LIME Funders Audit Office Regulators Trade Unions Tenants

Who will be affected by
the proposal?

Was this impact

assessment completed | Yes
as a group?

Page 169



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

* * * ( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 23 / 30.

Implications of the score

At the project business case stage there is clarity regarding the potential financial benefits associated
with the establishment of an LATC(LATC), and this will assist the Council to sustain its leisure services
as far as is practical, in what is a challenging financial climate.

It is anticipated that residents will notice no change to their existing provision. However, this is
subject to future WG settlements, which will affect the ability of the council to support service
delivery everywhere.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A globall FOSperous
A prosperous Denbighshire Neutral w:zﬂ:;h{t AP s
A resilient Denbighshire Neutral
A Wales of
A healthier Denbighshire Neutral [EEHHEEEE
Welsh . :
A more equal Denbighshire Neutral Language i |
A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Neutral A Wales of e '
cohesive Loy
A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh communiities e
Neutral
|anguage A more equal
A globally responsible Denbighshire Neutral e

Main conclusions

Overall the impact of this project was assessed as neutral. In the main, this project is seeking to
implement an LATC for the operation of Leisure related facilities functions and activities, in order to
benefit from the specific savings that can only be derived through the establishment of an LATC, and
to enable any commercial endeavours to be pursued, with a view to raising income. It is anticipated
that the service to users will be unchanged, unless the council has to make further significant savings
in the future, and the opportunities for the LATC to raise income, have not materialised sufficiently to
net the effect of a reducing council budget. If this were the case then this service could be affected in
the same way as any other service offered by the council. The Council will contract with the LATC for
the delivery of services and through the contract management the Council to safeguard its aims and
objectives. Each year there will be a process whereby the subsidy and associated benefits are agreed
and this will enable the contract to be adapted to meet any emerging needs.

This wellbeing impact assessment for the epé\%ed I?;Jj;zf was assessed by DCC's Critical Friend's
Review Group who provided valuable obs @comments for consideration. These



comments were considered when updating the wellbeing impact assessment at the business case
stage.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

W We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

W We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

¥ We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 171



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE

WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Neutral

There is potential for change within the areas of economic development,
quality skills and quality jobs for the long term. The positive/negative
impacts in respect of these three areas are dependent on the ability of the
LATC to maximise its commercial potential and be alert to the
opportunities that enable it to access more, or different training to
develop its workforce to further support the business, and provide a
quality experience to service users. The likelihood is that the project will
initially follow the existing practices until the opportunities for change and
betterment are identified. The staff within DCC and the LATC will enjoy
the same terms and conditions and will legally need to be treated
equitably.

An LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the prosperity of
Denbighshire. Through the contract management of the LATC, the council
would seek to safeguard its aims and objectives. Consideration needs to
be given in respect of knowledge migration as a result of the project, and
factored into the project plan.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society No known impact

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Economic
development

Quality skills for the
long term

Quality jobs for the
long term

Childcare

No known impact

There may be things that an LATC can do, over and above what the
Council can do,to provide a greater economic benefit.

There could be better access to free training if it is not Council operated,
however this will depend on what is available to LATC's. That said staff
within the LATC and DCC will be on equal terms and conditions and should
expect equal access to their training needs

If the LATC established does well, this could impact favourably on the
number of quality jobs required to operate the service.

None

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society No known impact

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Economic
development

No known impact

If the LATC established does not perform as well as hoped, or there is less
budget to support it, or people have less money to spend, then there may
be negative impacts.

Page 172



Quality skills for the
long term

Quality jobs for the
long term

Childcare

It is unknown whether any staff TUPE'd to the LATC could still access DCC
training.

Equally if the company is not very successful there will potentially be a
smaller number of quality jobs available.

None

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Neutral

No change is anticipated as a result of the introduction of an LATC. The
aim of this project is to continue the existing practices. The LATC will still
be able to access the preferential energy rates brokered by the Council.
The buildings will still be owned by the Council and maintained through
the capital plan which will include access to any energy saving initiatives
as applicable. There is ho change anticipated in the way in which the
buildings are used and therefore no anticipated biodiversity impacts.

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the resilience of
Denbighshire. Through the contract management of the LATC the council
would seek to safeguard its aims and objectives.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the

natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Reduced energy/fuel

consumption

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk
management

No known impact

No known impact

No known impact

No known impact

No known impact

No known impact

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the

natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Reduced energy/fuel

consumption

No known impact

No known impact
No known impact

No known impact

Page 173



People’'s awareness
of the environment No known impact
and biodiversity

Flood risk

No known impact
management

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

The LATC will have the ability to adapt easily to maximise any
opportunities to contribute to a healthier Denbighshire. If the LATC is
successful in attracting a proportion of its income elsewhere, there is
potentially additional funding to reinvest in the LATC which could
contribute to health benefits, or a lower subsidy expected for the Council
will could ease the pressure on other areas of Council funding, which could
be health related.

Justification for
impact

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to a healthier
Denbighshire. Through the contract management of the LATC the Council
will safeguard its aims and objectives.

Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical

environment that

encourage and No known impact
support health and

well-being

Access to good

quality, healthy food No known impact

People’s emotional
and mental well- No known impact
being

Access to healthcare No known impact

Potentially there are more opportunities via a separate company, as it can
both seek and be more responsive to opportunities, that enhance the offer
to residents.

Participation in
leisure opportunities

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical

environment that

encourage and No known impact
support health and

well-being

Access to good

quality, healthy food O Known impact

People’s emotional
and mental well- No known impact
being

Access to healthcare No known impact

Page 174



Participation in

leisure opportunities

No known impact

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Neutral

The LATC will be required to comply with the Council's guidelines, and will
adopt and adhere to policies based on the Council's in this respect.
Initially it is likely that the LATC will need a period to become established
before looking at further opportunities. The LATC will be aware of price
sensitivity and how this will affect the numbers of users who access the
services offered. The specification for the services procured from the LATC
will be based on what is currently offered, and hence access to specific
user groups will be safeguarded.

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the equality of
Denbighshire. The contract management of the LATC will ensure that the
Council can safeguard its aims and objectives in the future.

Positive impacts identified:

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

No known impact

People who suffer
discrimination or No known impact
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

No known impact

People in poverty No known impact

Negative impacts identified:

Page 175



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

No known impact

People who suffer
discrimination or No known impact
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

No known impact

People in poverty No known impact

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Neutral

There will be an onus on the LATC to consult with its users as it does now.
DCC will still canvass opinion from its residents, and will retain the ability
to alter its contract with any company to reflect any requirements that it
identifies. The LATC will be wholly Council owned, and there will be no
rebranding and hence no negative impact is anticipated for the end
user.The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the
cohesive communities of Denbighshire.

Justification for
impact

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the
communities of Denbighshire. The council would seek to safeguard its
aims and objectives through the contract management of the LATC.

Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities

and individuals No known impact

Community
participation and No known impact
resilience

The attractiveness of

the area No known impact

Connected

o No known impact
communities

Rural resilience No known impact

Negative impacts identified: Page 176



Safe communities
and individuals

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of
the area

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

No known impact

No known impact

No known impact

No known impact

No known impact

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact
Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Neutral

The LATC will be subject to the Council's guidelines in this respect. The
LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the vibrant culture
and thriving Welsh Language of Denbighshire.

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the culture and
welsh language of Denbighshire, and the Council can monitor this
requirement through the contract management arrangements that will be
established.

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Promoting the Welsh
language

Culture and heritage

No known impact
No known impact

No known impact

Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Promoting the Welsh
language

Culture and heritage

No known impact
No known impact

No known impact

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Neutral

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to a more globally
responsible Denbighshire. The council would seek to safeguard its aims
and objectives within any model that is set up.

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the global
responsibility of Denbighshire. The council would seek to safeguard its
aims and objectives through the contract management of the LATC.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 177



Local, national,
international supply No known impact
chains

Human rights No known impact

Broader service
provision in the local No known impact
area or the region

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply No known impact
chains

Human rights No known impact

Broader service
provision in the local No known impact
area or the region

Page 178



Appendix C

Details of other Alternative Delivery Models established and lessons learnt

Officers are aware that during the process to date Members have asked many questions relating to
DCC’s experiences with Clwyd Leisure Trust, what lessons have we learned from that, and have we
looked at what other Authorities in the area, and beyond, are doing in relation to establishing ADMs.

This Appendix seeks to provide Members with reassurances that as a Council we have learned from
the Clwyd Leisure experience and that we have researched what other Authorities are doing in
terms of establishing their own ADMs.

IH

There is clearly no “one model fits all” approach when it comes to establishing an ADM, as there are
a wide range of options. We have carefully considered all options and have suggested an ADM
model that others have used, but the recommendation is based on “best fit” for what we want to
include and what we want to achieve here in DCC.

1. Flintshire County Council;

‘Aura’ was established in September 2017, as a charitable, not-for-profit ADM organisation,
which is responsible for managing the majority of leisure centres and libraries previously
operated directly by Flintshire County Council.

Aura is owned by its employees, not by the Council. The company’s legal model is a
“Community Benefit Society”.

Members of DCC’s, ADM Project Team met with senior managers at Aura. They have been
involved in the original set up of the ADM and have been part of the the senior
management team since the company’s inception. They were able to share the background
to the establishment of the ADM and the learning gained over the last 18 months. Aura’s
business plan is based on Flintshire County Council reducing the subsidy given to the
company by 10% per annum for the initial 3 year contract.

2. Gwynedd County Council;

Gwynedd County Council has recently set up ‘Byw’n lach’, a similar ADM to the one
proposed in DCC i.e. it is a not for profit Local Authority Trading Company limited by
guarantee, to run its Leisure Centres, a couple of synthetic pitches and play areas and the
National GP Referral scheme. The company commenced trading on 1t April 2019.

Whilst it is early days for ‘Byw’n lach’, the same members of the DCC ADM Project Team
benefited from a meeting with Gwynedd County Council’s Project Manager who was able to
share their recent experiences from the implementation perspective. Members of DCC's
finance department also benefitted from a conference call with their counterparts in
Gwynedd.

Page 179



3. Newport City Council;

“Newport Live” is an ADM based on a social enterprise and registered charitable trust. It
was established by Newport City Council to run its Leisure and cultural facilities and
programmes. DCC was made aware of Newport Live by the Arts Council for Wales, which
sited the good working relationship that they had with this enterprise, when DCC’'s ADM
proposal was discussed with them relative to Ruthin Craft Centre and DCC'’s arts programme
that they fund. Arts Council for Wales raised no in principle objection to our proposed
ADM.

The visits to ‘Aura’ and Gwynedd were valuable and reinforced the approach that we are taking to
the implementation within DCC.

For ‘Aura’ although the model is different, many of the implementation processes are the same. The
discussions with both confirmed our thinking regarding items such as pensions, payroll, insurances,
banking arrangements, Service Level agreements for the ongoing provision of services from the
Council, ICT, the leases and contract management arrangements among others. It was also useful to
discuss the way in which the staff were transferred to the new legal entities’ and the interim
arrangements that they put in place during the transition period.

Both sited the importance of relationship management given that the arrangement is new for both
parties. The new company needs to have the freedom to trade, but the Council needs to be able
exercise control through the contract management process.

Lessons have also been learned having regard to Clwyd Leisure which was an ADM based on the
‘Trust’ model. This made it harder for the Council to control the activities of the Trust. The Council
had a maximum of 2 members on the Board of the Trust, had insufficient ability to audit, and had no
contract management arrangements in place.

In addition to the visits to ‘Aura’ in Flintshire and Gwynedd County Council and lessons learned from
Clwyd Trust, a short piece of work was commissioned to gain insight from the experiences of other
ADM companies that are already trading across the UK. Interviews were undertaken with 8 different
arm’s length Alternative Delivery Model companies that had been set up with local authorities. The
majority were from the Leisure Sector and included Trust models as well as Local Authority Trading
Models.

Key Learning Issues;

1. Keep in mind the principle benefits that the Council want to achieve from the establishment
of an ADM. These should be the guiding principles and provide a sense check throughout the
process (e.g. if its about financial savings ensure the ADM Model chosen can benefit from
NNDR and VAT savings, if its about the Council retaining significant control don’t establish a
company owned by its employees etc).

2. Effective contract management between the Council and the new company to maintain an
open and transparent relationship. Contracts need to be in place and clearly outline the
expectations and responsibilities of each party and where possible cover all eventualities (its
fair to say this was not a strength of the Clwyd Leisure Trust arrangements).

Page 180



The need for the company to have the autonomy to trade but the controls in place to
protect the Council’s interests (the trading “Teckal” element is included in the proposed
ADM model).

Where the Council retains a 100% share in the stake holding, the need to have a “Strategic
Board” where certain decisions can be referred to protect the interest of the Council should
be established to complement existing decision making arrangements (such a “Strategic
Board” is proposed as part of the ongoing governance arrangements).

Boards for the ADM tend to be made up of between 7 and 12 Directors with require suitable
and varied expertise and experience to support the company. The choice of the Chair of the
Board is a key appointment for the success of the company (the governance arrangements
makes provisions of a Board for the ADM, its precise make up being a decision deferred to
Cabinet and Council in the autumn).

In establishing the ADM ensure the new arrangement has sufficient budget to succeed,
whilst also ensuring it is not provided with too much of a generous budget that will
negatively affect those functions retained by the Council (much work and challenge has been
carried out in this regard. The revenue budget being transferred to the ADM broadly reflects
the existing revenue budgets committed by the Council to run the facilities and deliver the
services. These “base budgets” have been established over a number of years of rigorous
budget setting arrangements including Service Challenges, savings/efficiency exercises,
reports to CET, Cabinet, Council, Scrutiny etc. Officers are satisfied that the balance is
broadly correct, but accept there will need to be close monitoring of the budget
arrangements to ensure the ADM can deliver the services the Council want it to, whilst also
being expected to provide savings/efficiencies in the same way as all other Council
Services/functions are required to do).

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D

Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure related
activities/functions

Heads of Terms

Page 183
1



BACKGROUND

The Contractor is willing and able to provide the Services in accordance with the
terms and conditions of this Contract.

INTERPRETATION

The interpretation and construction of the Contract shall be subject to the
following provisions:

OFFICIAL NOTICES

Except as otherwise expressly provided within the Contract, no notice or other
communication from one Party to the other shall have any validity under the
Contract unless made in writing by or on behalf of the Party sending the
communication.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND CONFLICT

This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and
supersedes and extinguishes all previous agreements, promises, assurances,
warranties, representations and understandings between them, whether written
or oral, relating to the Contract.

CONTRACT PERIOD

Notwithstanding the date of this Contract, the Contract Period will commence on
the Commencement Date and, unless terminated earlier in accordance with any
provisions within the Contract, it shall remain in force until the Expiry Date or any
date agreed between the Parties as an extension beyond the Expiry Date.

PERFORMANCE

The Contractor shall supply the Services in accordance with the Specification
and the Tender in consideration for the Contract Price.

QUALITY STANDARDS

At all times comply with the Quality Standards, and, where applicable, shall
maintain accreditation with the relevant Quality Standards authorisation body;

Page 184
2



10.

11.

12.

13.

The Contractor shall ensure that all Staff supplying the Services shall do so with
all due skill, care and diligence and shall possess such qualifications, skills and
experience as are necessary for the proper supply of the Services in accordance
with Good Industry Practice.

CONTRACT MANAGER, KEY PERSONNEL AND STAFF

The Contractor shall appoint the Contract Manager. The Contract Manager shall
be competent in the subject matter of this Contract and, with the exception of a
Dispute, shall be able to make decisions under the Contract without the need for
the matter to be escalated within the Contractor’s business. This will not limit in any
way any other of the Contractor’s rights or obligations.

LEASE TO OCCUPY AND SECURITY OF THE PREMISES

Land or Premises made available from time to time to the Contractor by the
Council in connection with the Contract shall be made available to the Contractor
on a Leasehold basis and shall be used by the Contractor solely for the purpose
of performing its obligations under the Contract. The Council may require the
Contractor to enter into a licence agreement for the use of the Premises and may
require the Contractor to pay to the Council a licence fee.

EQUIPMENT

Except as otherwise specified in the Specification, the Contractor shall provide
the Equipment to perform the Services at its own cost. Such Equipment shall be
fit for purpose, well maintained (in accordance with the manufacturer’s servicing
and maintenance requirements), insured and, where necessary, fulfilling any
Quality Standards and/or the requirements contained in the Specification.

ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS AND SOCIAL VALUES

The Contractor shall be required to deliver any agreed social value elements in
accordance with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the
Specification.

The Contractor shall where relevant to the Specification co-operate with the
Council in relation to the economic, social and environmental well-being of the
Council’s area and shall accordingly notify the Council of any best practice ideas
which may improve the same.

HEALTH AND SAFETY AT PREMISES
Page 185
3




14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

While on the Premises, the Contractor shall comply with any health and safety
measures implemented by the Council in respect of the Staff and any other
persons working there.

PROVISION OF MANAGEMENT INFORMATION AND MEETINGS

The Contractor shall, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, submit
Management Information to the Council throughout the Contract Period as
required in the Contract Particulars and in Schedule 4 of the Contract and in the
Specification.

MONITORING OF CONTRACT PERFORMANCE

The Contractor shall comply with the requirements for the monitoring of the
performance of the Services as required in the Contract Particulars including, but
not limited to, providing the Management Information, performance of the Key
Performance Indicators and such data and information as the Contractor may be
required to produce under the Contract.

COUNCIL’S OBLIGATIONS

Except as otherwise expressly provided, the obligations of the Council under the
Contract are obligations of the Council in its capacity as a contracting
counterparty and nothing in the Contract shall operate as an obligation on, or in
any other way fetter or constrain the Council in any other capacity, nor shall the
exercise by the Council of its duties and powers in any other capacity lead to any
liability under the Contract (howsoever arising) on the part of the Council to the
Contractor.

CONTRACT PRICE

The Contract Price for the Services shall be the full and exclusive remuneration
due to the Contractor in respect of the provision of the Services. Unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Council, the Contract Price shall include every
cost and expense of the Contractor directly or indirectly incurred in connection
with the performance of the Services.

VAT

The Contractor shall, where it is VAT registered, be entitled to charge the Council
VAT in relation to the Services provided to the Council.

Page 186
4



19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24.

25.

INVOICING

Unless otherwise specified in the Specification or the Contract Particulars, the
Contractor shall invoice the Council for payment of the Contract Price in
accordance with Schedule 3 no later than seven (7) days after the end of each
Month (or such other frequency as agreed between the Parties in writing).

TAXATION, NATIONAL INSURANCE AND EMPLOYMENT LIABILITIES

The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Contract constitutes a contract for
the provision of services and not a contract of employment. The Contractor shall
at all times indemnify the Council and keep the Council indemnified in full from
and against all claims, proceedings, actions, damages, costs, expenses,
liabilities and demands whatsoever and howsoever arising by reason of any
circumstances whereby the Council is alleged or determined to have been
assumed or imposed with the liability or responsibility for the Staff (or any of
them) as an employer of the Staff and/or any liability or responsibility to HM
Revenue or Customs as an employer of the Staff whether during the Contract
Period or arising from termination or expiry of the Contract.

TERMINATION ON INSOLVENCY OR RELATED EVENTS

Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, the Council may
terminate this Contract with immediate effect by giving written notice to the
Contractor if:

TERMINATION ON CHANGE OF CONTROL

The Contractor shall notify the Council immediately if the Contractor undergoes a
change of Control. The Council may terminate the Contract by notice in writing
with immediate effect within six (6) Months of:

TERMINATION ON DEFAULT

Without prejudice to the above the Council may terminate the Contract by giving
written notice to the Contractor with immediate effect if the Contractor commits a
Default and if:

Notwithstanding Clause the above the Council may terminate the Contract by
giving written notice to the Contractor with immediate effect if:

TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

Page 187
5




26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

The Council may terminate this Contract at any time by giving three (3) Months'
written notice to the Contractor.

CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION OR EXPIRY

DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE

INSURANCE

LIABILITY

Nothing in the Contract shall be construed to limit or exclude either Party's
liability for:

a) death or personal injury caused by its negligence; or
b) fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation; or

C) any breach of any obligations implied by section 12 of the Sale of Goods
Act 1979 or section 2 of the Supply of Goods and Services Act 1982.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Council shall retain ownership of all its Intellectual Property Rights in any
specifications, instructions, plans, data, drawings, databases, patents, patterns,
models, designs or other material provided to the Contractor by the Council.

CONFIDENTIALITY AND PUBLICITY

Subject to Clause F2.2, the Parties shall keep confidential the Confidential
Information of the other Party and shall use all reasonable endeavours to prevent
their Staff, Sub-Contractors and/or representatives from making any disclosure to
any person of any matters relating thereto both during the Contract Period and
for a period of 6 years following termination or expiry of the Contract.

DATA PROTECTION

The Parties’ rights and obligations under this Contract and the Data Protection
Legislation, the Parties acknowledge that the Council is a Data Controller and that
the Contractor is a Data Processor.

Page 188
6



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION
REGULATIONS

The Contractor acknowledges that the Council is subject to the requirements of the
FOIA and the EIR.

DISCRIMINATION

The Contractor shall not unlawfully discriminate within the meaning and scope of
any Law, enactment, order or regulation relating to discrimination (whether in
race, gender, religion, disability, sexual orientation, age or otherwise).

The Contractor shall take all reasonable steps to secure the observance of this
provision by its Staff.

RECORD KEEPING, AUDIT ACCESS AND MONITORING

The Contractor shall keep and maintain until six (6) years after the end of the
Contract Period (or as long a period as may either be agreed between the
Parties or as required by Law), full and accurate records and accounts of the
operation of the Contract including the Services provided under it, the Contract
entered into with the Council and the amounts paid by the Council.

REPLACEMENT OF CORRUPTED DATA

HEALTH AND SAFETY - GENERAL

The Contractor shall comply, and it shall procure that all Staff shall comply, with
all health and safety legislation in force and any health and safety policies of the
Council as supplied by the Authorised Officer.

CORPORATE REQUIREMENTS

PREVENTION OF PROHIBITED ACTS, FRAUD, BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION

LAW AND CHANGE IN LAW

TUPE, PENSIONS AND RE-TENDERING
Page 189
7




42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

CONTRACT VARIATION

RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

WAIVER

SEVERANCE

ASSIGNMENT, SUB-CONTRACTING AND RESPONSIBILITY

The Contractor shall not assign, novate, sub-contract or in any other way dispose
of the Contract or any part of it without Approval.

FORCE MAJEURE

Neither Party shall be liable for failure to perform its obligations under the
Contract if such failure results from Force Majeure.

DISRUPTION AND BUSINESS CONTINUTY

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Each of the Parties will pay their own costs and expenses incurred in connection
with the negotiation, preparation, execution, completion and implementation of
this Contract.

Page 190
8



52.

53.

54.

55.

NON SOLICITATION

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

WELSH LANGUAGE STANDARDS

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015

Page 191
9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E

Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for various leisure
related activities/functions

Further Project Approvals required

(See Heads of Terms within
Appendix D)

Approval required Committee/Board Timescale
Benefits Realisation Plan Project Board June 2019
Project Plan Project Board June 2019
Updated Project e Project Board June/July
Implementation Cost e Reshaping the Council Board | 2019

e Cabinet
LATC updated revenue e Project Board June/July
savings e Reshaping the Council Board | 2019

e Cabinet
Constitution of the LATC e Cabinet June/July
approved e Council 2019
Strategic Governance Board Cabinet September
Membership 2019
LATC Board Membership e Cabinet September/

e Councll October 2019
Lease of the assets to the Asset Management Group and October 2019
LATC County Landlord
Approval of LATC Financial Cabinet November
Plan 2019
Award of contract to LATC Cabinet February 2020

**|n addition to the above there is a role for Scrutiny in advance of any decisions.

Page 193




This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



€0¢ abed

COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

Meeting Item (Description / Title) Purpose of Report Council Lead member and Contact
Decision Officer
Required
(yes/no)
2 July 2019 Annual report of the Scrutiny To consider the Annual Report of Yes Steve Price / Rhian Evans
Committees Scrutiny in line with the Council’s
Constitution
Committee Timetable for 2020 To approve the Committee Timetable | Yes Cllr Mark Young / Steve Price
for 2020
Annual Performance Review To review and approve the Annual Yes Cllr. Julian Thompson-Hill/Alan
2018/19 Performance Review for publication. Smith (contact Nicola Kneale)
Standards Committee Annual Report | To receive the Annual Report of the No Chair of the Standards
Standards Committee Committee / Gary Williams
Implementation of Alternative To approve the constitution of the Yes Cllr Bobby Feeley & Julian
Delivery Model (ADM) for various local authority trading company Thompson-Hill / Graham Boase /
leisure related functions and Sian Lloyd Price
activities
10 September 2019
15 October 2019 Implementation of Alternative To consider the membership of the Yes Cllr Bobby Feeley & Julian
Delivery Model (ADM) for various strategic governance board and the Thompson-Hill / Graham Boase /
leisure related functions and local authority trading company board Sian Lloyd Price
activities
3 December 2019 Use of Plastics To present the findings and Yes Chair of Performance Scrutiny

recommendations of the Scrutiny Task
and Finish Group on how the Council

Committee/Chair of the T&F
Group
Graham Boase/Rhian Evans

G wa)| epuaby



COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

can reduce its use of plasticin a
deliverable and sustainable way

FUTURE ITEMS

Review of polling districts and polling places

To consider a statutory review of
Denbighshire’s polling districts and places.

Cllr Mark Young / Steve Price / Gareth | TBC

Evans

North Wales Growth Bid Governance
Agreement 2

To approve the governance arrangements in

Cllr Hugh Evans / Graham Boase / Gary | TBC

0z abed

relation to the implementation of the growth Williams
deal.
Note for Officers — Full Council Report Deadlines
Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline
July 2019 18 June 2019
September 2019 | 27 August 2019 October 2019 1 October 2019 | December 2019 | 19 November 2019

Updated 22/05/2019 SP

Council Forward Work Programme.doc




G0z abed

Council Briefing Forward Work Programme

Meeting

Item (Description / Title)

Purpose of Report

Lead member and Contact
Officer

COUNCIL BRIEFING | 1

Corporate Parenting and

To receive a briefing on current corporate

Cllr Huw Hilditch-Roberts / Julie

3 June 2019 Safeguarding of Children parenting and safeguarding issues. Moss
2 Single Access Route to Housing A presentation requested for all members by | Cllr Tony Thomas / Geoff Davies
(SARTH) / Allocations Policy and the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice Chairs Group
Administration
3 Clocaenog and Brenig Windfarms To raise awareness of the schemes and how | Alan Smith / Fran Rhodes

Community Benefit Funds

communities access funds.

COUNCIL BRIEFING | 1
11 November 2019

Tourism Strategy

Cllr Hugh Evans / Liz Grieve

Updated 12/03/2019 - SP

Council Briefing Forward Work Programme.doc




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 IMPLEMENTATION OF AN ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY MODEL (ADM) FOR VARIOUS LEISURE RELATED ACTIVITIES/FUNCTIONS
	Appendix A ADM Business Case
	Appendix B WIA
	Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model Company
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:




	Appendix C May 19
	Appendix D Heads of Terms
	Appendix E Further approvals required v2
	Appendix F Risk Register PART 2

	5 COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	Council Briefing Forward Work Programme




